L.

CITY OF PASS CHRISTIAN
REGULAR MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF
ALDERPERSONS January 7, 2025, at 6:00 P.M. REVISED

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call
3. Prayer and Pledge

Consider adoption of the agenda for January 7, 2025, Board of Alderperson Meeting

ADMINISTRATIVE

Consider authorizing the transfer of the SB2468 grant funds of $750,000 from the City Depository to the
SB2468 bank account. A-1

Consider awarding a grant of $255,875 for infrastructure (i.e., water, sewer, retaining wall, sidewalks,
stormwater detention, etc.) to K&H Investments, LLS for the Hilton Tower Commons project on Scenic
Drive west of the St. Paul’s development. The developer will convey property to the City for a portion of
the road that will connect Scenic Drive and Second Street between his property and St. Paul’s. The
developer will commit to investing $2,570,000 in Phase I of the overall projected $4,170,000
development. This will require the construction of two mixed-use structures on Scenic Drive. The
funds will be paid out of the 2024 $750,000 Appropriation for the Capital Expenditure grant that is
limited to infrastructure use (there is no City Match associated with the Capex grant). A-2

Consider approving the reimbursement of Invoice#13 in the amount of $103,663.65 to Eagan Management
Group, LLC for expenses incurred for the Eagan Scenic Drive Development, funds are available through
HBI1353. A-3

Consider approving payment to Overstreet and Associates for Invoice# 3616 in the amount of $2,210.00
for the GOMESA project, 1257 North St Gravity Sewer Phase I & II, funds are available and will be

reimbursed by the GOMESA grant per the City Clerk. A-4



10.

11.

12.

Consider approving a temporary lease agreement with Cellular South Real Estate, Inc., d/b/a C Spire for
the use of surplus City property near the intersection of Woodman Avenue and E. Second Street for
location of Cell on Wheels during the 2025 Mardi gras parade for the lump sum of $2,500.00 as requested
by City Attorney Malcolm Jones. A-5

Consider adopting Resolutions approving terms of the General Obligation Bonds Series 2025, approving
terms of commitment letter, and for related purposes. A-6

Consider adopting Resolution authorizing and directing sale of General Obligation Bonds Series 2025
not to exceed the principal sum of $2,000,000 and for related purposes. A-7

Consider approving quote in the amount of $11,450.00 from Mark Blackmer to remove the derelict vessel
in the Harbor and amend budget line item 117-750-600 accordingly as requested by Alderman Torgeson.
A-8

Consider appointing Bill Hutchinson, Sandra Lobrano, and Mary Bourdin as City Election Commissioners
with their terms to expire June 30, 2025, as recommended by Mayor Rafferty. A-9

Consider changing the City’s online bidding provider from Central Bidding to PH Bidding as requested
by Marian Governor, City Clerk. A-10

Consider motion to accept recommendation of awarding the Bid for the Pier P-2 Electrical Upgrades to
Krol Electric, of Gulfport, MS who provided the lowest and best bid in the amount of $188,389.00 as
recommended by Covington Civil and Environmental Engineers. A-11

Consider authorizing opening the 2025 Bond Series Construction bank account at Hancock Whitney and
authorize the Mayor Jimmy Ratfferty, City Clerk, Marian Governor, Mayor Pro Tem, Kenny Torgeson and

deputy City Clerk, Olivia Lewis as authorized signers. A-12



13. Consider request of the contractor, L] Construction, for the North Street Gravity Sewer Improvements
Phase 1T and I1I to use one of two City-owned properties (See tax maps attached) as a temporary
laydown yard for storage of construction materials to be used during the construction of the
project. The Contractor will be allowed to clear an area not to exceed 1 to 1/12 acres near the adjacent
public road and be required to restore the property to its vegetative condition within thirty days after
final acceptance of the work. The contractor will be required to indemnify and hold harmless the City
during the use of the property and add the City as an additional insured on its liability insurance

policy. A-13

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

1. Consider directing Code Enforcement Office to require RV Park Managers to provide documentation
required by City’s ordinance or conditions imposed for permits for compliance purposes as requested by
Alderman Pickich. COMM DEVEL -1

2. Consider re-appointing Ellen Berry Adams to the Historic Preservation Commission for a three-year term

with effect from January 1, 2025. Ellen’s term expired on December 31, 2024. COMM DEVEL - 2



EVENTS

1. Consider approving the request from The Pass Christian Pirate Excellence Foundation (PEF) for A
Night of New Horizons Fundraiser featuring Chapel Hart to be held Saturday March 15, 2025. All net
proceeds are directed to student scholarships and teacher grants within the Pass Christian School
district. Use of the following resources from the City of Pass Christian in support of the Excellence
Foundation as requested by Susan Putnam. This bringing favorable notice to the resources and
opportunities of the City. EVENTS - 1

- Use of the Harbor Greenspace and adjacent parking lot

- Preparation of the grounds to include treatment for ants as well as grass cutting as appropriate.

- Use of city trash receptacles, (cans and recycle bins).

- Use of the city stage

- Use of City generators (need two)

-Use of the portable panel box

-Two tower lights at $104.00 each per the City's rate United Rental

- Use of tables and chairs from the Randolph center to be dropped off at Harbor by
Beautification/Public works

- City barricades/cones as needed

- Police, Fire, Beautification, Public Works support including overtime if necessary
Fee waived for use of The Randolph Center in case of inclement weather

- And any further resources as deemed ‘necessary and required’ by the Mayor and Board of

Alderman

CONSENT AGENDA

1. Admin: Consider approving Olivia Lewis attending the Ms. Municipal Clerks Program Spring seminar
in Hattiesburg, Ms. on February 26 through February 28, 2025, with a registration fee of $300.00, per
diem in the amount of $84.00 and lodging in the amount of $235.40. CA-1

2. Admin: Consider paying Invoice#3106 from Kirkpals Painting, LLC, in the amount of $2,325.00 for

painting 26 columns at the Randolph Center. CA-2



Police Department: Consider adopting Mississippi Cyber Unit: Memorandum of Understanding for the
purpose of Cyber Protection from the MS office of Homeland Security. This MOU is part of a cyber
assessment that was conducted for the current MS Office of Homeland Security Grant for LPR’s, as
requested by Chief Daren Freeman. CA-3

. Police Department: Consider accepting the deposit in the amount of $7,513.02 from the Treasury
Department in forfeiture account (110-200-560) and the budget will be amended accordingly, as
requested by Chief Daren Freeman. CA-4

. Public Works Department: Consider motion to ratify the resignation of Caden Lizana effective
December 31,2024, and pay him any comp-time and vacation time pay per City Policy that he may have
accrued while employed, as requested by Kirk Ladner. CA-5

. Consider approving the minutes of the regular meeting of the Mayor and Alderpersons, with changes,

for December 3, 2024, as requested by Deputy City Clerk Shannon Starita. CA-6

Motion to approve the Claims Docket in the amount of $340,385.76 CD-1

PUBLIC COMMENT

THEMAYORAND BOARD OFALDERPERSONS WILL ALLOW RESIDENTS AN
OPPORTUNITY TO SPEAK WITH A THREE-MINUTE TIME [IMIT ON FACH
SPEAKER. NO PUBLIC QUESTIONING COMMENTS ARE ALLOWED DURING THE
MEFETING, UNLESS THE MAYOR RECOGNIZES SUCH PERSON.



A-1

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE EMAILED)

DATE OF MEETING: January 7, 2025

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative []

. Requesting Department [X]
Consent []
Executive Session []
Other []
FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:
Capital Improvement Fund []
BP Fund []
o01-__ - [
Other []
AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S) Yes| ] No | ] |

Consider authorizing the transfer of the SB2468 grant funds of $750,000 from the City Depository to the
5B2468 bank account.

accepting, bearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
ratifying, correcting, etc.)

APROVED [ | ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED | |



-2

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE EMAILED)

DATE OF MEETING: [anuary 7, 2025

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative [ ]
Requesting Department [X]
Consent []
Executive Session 1]
Other []
FUNDS TO BE PAID QUT OF:
Capital Improvement Fund []
BP Fund []
oor-__ - []
Other []
AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S)  Yes|[ ] No[ ]

Consider awarding a grant of $255,875 for infrastructure (i.c., water, sewer, retaining wall,
sidewalks, stormwater detention, etc.) to K&H Investments, I.LS for the Hilton Tower
Commons project on Scenjc Drive west of the St. Paul's development. The developer will
convey property to the City for a portion of the road that will connect Scenic Drive and Second
Street between his property and St. Paul's. The developer will commit to investing $2,570,000
in Phase I of the overall projected $4,170,000 development. This will require the construction
of two mixed-use structures on Scenic Drive. The funds will be paid out of the 2024 $750.000
Appropriation for the Capital Expenditure grant that is limited to infrastructure use (there is
no City Match associated with the Capex grant).

accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
ratifying, correcting, etc.)

APROVED | ] ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED | ]



STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
COUNTY OF HARRISON

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of the day of
, 2025, by and between the City of Pass Christian, Ms (hereinafter“City”), a
Mississippi Municipal Corporation, and K & H Investments, LLC, a Mississippi Limited
Liability Company; (hereinafter “Owner”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, in an effort to stimulate economic development in a certain portion of the
Downtown Community Plan, to redevelop blighted areas, and to induce the Owner to build a
commercial and residential development on the North side of East Scenic Drive between St. Paul
Avenue and Market Street in Pass Christian, MS, the governing authorities of the City wish to
fund certain infrastructure improvements for the property as set forth in Exhibit “A”, with the
site plan of the Project being shown in the diagram attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, (hereinafter
“Project™); and

WHEREAS, in exchange for the mutual benefits that will accrue to the parties herein,
the Owner has agreed to invest substantial funds of approximately § 7. & 7o, © 3 0
for the construction of improvements, i.e mixed/use retail and remdentu{l struct}ﬁres for the
“Project” by Owner or through affiliate entities with the understanding that the City would use
$ 255 1K from the Capital Expenditure Fund (CapEx) 2024 Appropriation
(SB2468) under as set forth in the Memorandum of Understanding in Exhibit “C” for
installation of horizontal infrastructure and other eligible improvements; and

WHEREAS, as an inducement to the City and the Owner to expend the aforementioned
financial resources for the planning and development of the Project and the construction of the
residential buildings and infrastructure the parties herein wish to enter into a Development
Agreement to memorialize their commitments and understandings.

WHEREAS, the City and Owner desire to enter into this Development Agreement
to implement the Project for the stated purposes and the parties herein agree that the
redevelopment of the area is in the vital and best interests of the City and is in
furtherance of the health, safety, and welfare of its residents and is in accordance with
the public purposes and provisions of all applicable laws and requirements; and

WHEREAS, the execution of this agreement has been duly authorized on behalf of
Owner and also by the City as set forth in the minutes of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen
of the City and the undersigned parties and public officials are authorized to execute this
Agreement on behalf of the respective entities as their interests appear.



NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the foregoing, and the mutual
covenants and promises contained herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, the City and Owner hereby covenant and agree as follows:

I

Subject to the reappropriation of these CapEx Grant funds by the Mississippi Legislature,
the City agrees to allocate $ 15/ <7<  of CapEx funds for the design and construction of
the infrastructure and other eligible improvements for the Owner’s Project for the items of work
more particularly described in Exhibit “A™ attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
The Owner’s project engineer/architect will design the aforementioned infrastructure, prepare the
construction drawings and specifications for the work, and submit same for review by the City.
The City’s designated project Engineer will review the construction drawings and specifications
for the infrastructure and other eligible improvements. The costs of the services of the City’s
project engineer and of the Owner’s architect/engineer will be paid from the CapEx funds with
the understanding that the eligible costs of such professional services shall not exceed any
amount provided in the CapEx Fund laws or regulations, if applicable. Upon final approval of
the design, construction drawings, and specifications of the infrastructure by the City, the Owner
will solicit bids from at least three licensed contractors acceptable to the City and enter into a
written agreement with the lowest and best contractor selected by the Owner, with such
contractor and the form of the construction contract to be approved by the City. The Owner will
proceed with the construction of the project upon written notice from the City. The Owner
anticipates that this process for design of the Project and entering into the contract for
construction will be completed within approximately days from the execution of this
agreement, weather and other reasons outside of the control of the Owner permitting. The
Owner’s construction contract will require all construction work for the infrastructure to be
completed within the time required by the CapEx Memorandum of Understanding (Exhibit gy ¥
but not less than one year after a Notice to Proceed has been issued, whichever comes first.
During the construction process the City’s project engineer and the Owner’s project engineer/
architect will supervise the construction. The Owner will submit acceptable documentation to
the City pursuant to the terms of the MOU (Exhibit “C”) for reimbursement of all approved
applications for progress payments. Once each progress payment has been approved and
reimbursed by the City, the City Clerk will retain such documentation as shall be required to the
Mississippi Department of Finance and Administration according to the Memorandum of
Understanding attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “C” and any applicable
guidelines or procedures. By execution of this agreement, the Owner grants the City and its
Engineer a temporary construction easement for access to inspect the aforementioned
infrastructure improvements to be constructed.

II.

Prior to entering into the construction contract for the Project the Owner agrees to
provide the City with acceptable evidence of the availability of funds necessary for carrying out
the financial commitment of the Owner to the extent the projected cost of the Project exceeds the
costs covered by the CapEx fund. The Owner further agrees to provide the City with evidence
that it owns the subject property. The Owner further agrees to expend a sum not to exceed
$ $ Z_i ) O, 20O from its own funds or through its affiliate entity to construct the




aforementioned commercial/residential improvements on the subject property. The City reserves
the right to approve such affiliate entity and it is understood that in the event the Owner shall
clect that an affiliate entity will construct the aforementioned retail/residential structures, the
parties herein and the affiliate entity shall enter into a separate agreement for such purposes and
the agreement shall provide the Owner shall continue to be responsible to the City for such
financial obligation until such improvements have been constructed, inspected and approved by
the City. The Owner or its affiliate entity shall expend such funds for the construction of the
aforementioned structures and provide the City with proof of such expenditures acceptable to the
City within one year after all horizontal infrastructure improvements have been completed. To
the extent allowed by law, the City shall consider such documents to be proprietary and
confidential and not disclose same. Unless otherwisc agreed upon as provided herein, the Owner
agrees that it shall be responsible for all costs of construction for the Project not covered by the
CapEx funds and that are not eligible for reimbursement and the City shall have no obligation to
fund improvements and infrastructure for the Project other than set forth herein. The Owner or
its affiliate entity by separate agreement agrees to indemnify and hold the City and its officials,
employees, contractors and agents harmless from any and all suits and claims arising out of or
related thereto from the construction of the Project, including reasonable attorney’s fee and
defense costs. The City does not waive any governmental immunity or defenses it may be
entitled to by law and this provision shall survive the termination of this agreement, The City
Building Official will review all construction improvements, issue permits, and conduct
inspections in the usual and customary manner. All construction improvements and
infrastructure as generally described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference shall be constructed according to applicable Building Codes and applicable state and
federal laws. All construction improvements must be constructed, inspected and approved
within the time period required by this agreement. Following completion of construction and
during the useful and functional life of all improvements for the Project the Owner shall maintain
the improvements and infrastructure in good order, condition, and state of repair, reasonable
wear and tear and conditions outside of Owner’s control excepted.

I,

Subject to the notice and cure rights provided hereinafter the Owner agrees to repay any
funds paid to Owner by the City or expended by the City for infrastructure or other eligible
improvements funded by the CapEx Memorandum of Understanding in the event the Owner fails
to substantially complete the Project and construct the commercial/residential structures in the
time set forth herein, Owner agrees to pay all taxes due for the Project in a timely manner. The
Owner agrees during the construction period to maintain adequate Builder’s Risk wind and other
hazard insurance (excluding flood) for replacement value of the Project improvements, including
completed operations coverage, less and except reasonable deductibles and coinsurance
requirements. The Owner agrees to name the City as an additional insured with subrogation
waived on such Builders Risk insurance policy. In the event of insured damage or destruction
the Owner agrees to use the insurance proceeds to restore the improvements and infrastructure
within twenty-four (24) months from the date of such damage or destruction.



IV,

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, in the event of any default in
performance of this Agreement by the Owner, the Owner or its successors or assigns, shall, upon
written notice from the City, proceed immediately to cure or remedy such default within thirty
(30) days after receipt of written notice. However, if the default cannot, in the exercise of
reasonable diligence, be cured within thirty (30) days, then the defaulting party shall commence
efforts to cure and shall diligently continue to cure the default. If the default is not cured
following the above-described notice and cure period, the City may institute any proceedings
which may be necessary to cure and remedy the default. The parties shall have the right to
institute actions or proceedings as they may deem necessary to enforce this Agreement. Any delay
in instituting or prosecuting any action or otherwise asserting rights under this Agreement shall not
operate as a waiver of rights or limit rights in any way.

V.

The parties and their successors or assigns shall not be in default of their obligations for
delay in performance due to causes beyond their reasonable control and without their fault,
including but not limited to acts of God, acts of the public enemy, acts of the federal or state
government or subdivisions thereof, fires, floods, epidemics, pandemics, quarantine
restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, shortages of labor or materials, or delays of contractors,
or subcontractors due to such causes. The purpose and intent of this provision is that in the event
of the occurrence of any such delay, the time or performance of the obligations of either
party with respect to construction of improvements shall be extended for the period of delay.
However, in order to obtain the benefit of the provisions of this provision, the party seeking the
benefit shall within thirty (30) days after the beginning of the delay of performance notify the
other party in writing of the cause and the reasonably expected length of delay.

.

The rights and remedies of the parties to this Agreement shall be cumulative and the
exercise by either party of anyone or more remedies shall not preclude the exercise by it of any
other remedies for any other default or breach by the other party. A waiver of any right of either
party conferred by this Agreement shall be effective only if in writing and only to the extent
specified in writing,

VL

As part of the consideration for this Agreement, the City and the Owner, their
successors and assigns or personal representati\ves, covenant and agree that; (i) no person, on
the ground of age, sex, race, color, national origin, disability or other protected class shall be
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefit of, or be otherwise subjected to
discrimination in the use of the proposed Infrastructure Improvements for the Project; (ii)
that such discrimination shall not be practiced against the public in their access to and use of
the Infrastructure Improvements; and, (iii) the City and Owner will construct such
Infrastructure Improvements in compliance with all other requirements imposed by
applicable laws or regulations. In the event of a breach of any of any material covenants by



the Owners, their successor or assigns or personal representatives, the City will issue written
notice to the affected Owner(s), their successor or assigns or personal representative, of any
perceived breach of these covenants, and if the Owner(s) unlawfully fail to cure such
perceived breach within thirty (30) days after receipt of the notice, then and only then will the
City have the right to take other action as may be available to the City under this agreement,
which may include the recovery of attorneys fees and costs for enforcing this agreement.

VIIL

Any notices required herein or otherwise regarding this Agreement shall be in
writing and, if directed to Owner, shall be mailed or personally delivered to the
addresses found below. The Owner their successors or assigns, may change their address
for notice purposes by giving written notice to the City, which shall be deemed given
when received by the City Clerk, at the City’s usual mailing address.

VIIL

Subject to the foregoing, the parties hereto agree to act in good faith in performing this
agreement and upon reasonable written demand execute any additional and further documents
necessary to accomplish the express purposes of this Agreement, provided the City agrees to
execute any further and additional documents within the scope of it minutes authorizing this
Agreement,

IX.

The rights under this agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the
City and the Owner and their respective successors or assigns,

This Agreement shall be effective upon the last date of the signature of either party
hereto. This Agreement is intended to be in accordance with all relevant and applicable laws.
If any provision hereof shall for any reason be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the
Agreement shall not be affected thereby, but rather shall be enforced to the greatest extent
permitted by law. This agreement shall be construed under the laws of the State of
Mississippi and shall be enforced in any court of competent jurisdiction of Harrison County,
MS. The parties specifically agree that damages are not an adequate remedy for breach of this
agreement and the parties are entitled to compel specific performance by secking injunctive
relief of the material terms of this Agreement by any party in default hereof. In the event of a
default in the terms of this agreement, the Owner agrees to pay reasonable attorney’s fees and
costs the City may incur in enforcing this agreement.

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall
be an original but all of which shall constitute but one instrument.

The parties hereto agree that this instrument will not be recorded in the Land
Records of the Office of the Chancery Clerk, First Judicial District, Harrison County,



Mississippi, but either party may file and record a summary of this agreement if they choose
to do so.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City, acting by and through its duly authorized
representative has executed this Agreement on the day of ,
2023, '

CITY OF PASS CHRISTIAN, MS

BY:
Mayor Renaud “Jimmy” Rafferty
ATTEST:
City Clerk
K & H Investments, L.LL.C , Owner
BY:
Harrell J, Hilton, Managing Member
BY:
Kori E, Hilton, Managing Member
STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
COUNTY OF HARRISON

PERSONALLY appeared before me, the undersigned authority in and for the
aforesaid County and State, on this the day of , 2023, within
my jurisdiction, the within named Harrell J. Hilton and Kori E. Hilton, who acknowledged
that they are the Managing Members of K & H Investments, LI.C, and that for and on behalf
of said Company he execuied the foregoing instrument as its act and deed, after first having
been duly authorized by said Company so to do.

GIVEN under my hand and official seal this the day of , 2025.

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires:



STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
COUNTY OF HARRISON

PERSONALLY appeared before me, the undersigned authority in and for the
aforesaid County and State, on this the day of , 2025, within
my jurisdiction, the within named Renaud “ Jimmy” Rafferty and Ron Duckworth, who
acknowledged that they are Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of Pass Christian,
Mississippi, and that for and on behalf of said municipality they executed the foregoing
instrument as its act and deed, after first having been duly authorized by said municipality
so to do.

GIVEN under my hand and official seal this the _ day of , 2025..

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires:

Prepared by:

Malcolm F. Jones

City Attorney

200 W, Scenic Drive
Pass Christian, MS 39571
228-452-3311



r-3

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE EMAILED)

il g
IEHERES f
= T7em
e
£

DATE OF MEETING: January 7, 2025

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative
REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

]
X]

]
]
[

Administrative
Requesting Department
Consent :
Executive Session
Other

e

FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:

Capital Improvement Fund
BP Fund

oot~ -

Other

e

]
]
]
1

AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S)  Yes[ ] No[ ]

Consider approving the reimbursement of Invoice#13 in the amount of $103,663.65 to Fagan
Management Group, L1.C for expenses incurred for the Eagan Scenic Drive Development, funds

are avatlable through HB1353.

accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
ratifying, correcting, etc.)

APROVED | | ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED | |



Invoice

Eagan Management Group
3636 N. Causeway Blvd. -
, Date Invoice #
Suite 301
LA 70002 11/19/2024 13
Bill To
City of Pass Christian
Attn: Malcolm Jones
200 W. Scenic Dr.
Pass Christian, MS 39571
P.O. No. Terms Project
Net 15
Quaniy, | Descrption Rete |. " Amount
Reimbursement for Legacy Construction deposit 103,663.65 103,663.65
Total $103,663.65




A——
4

)

EAGAN MANAGEMENT GROUP LLC X __,
3636 N CAUSEWAY BLVD SUITE 301 //N/ ,

METAIRIE, LA 70002

\m\&.&wmwh

CATE

el kmﬁo@ @&&a. 3_.@«%\%3%% __ $ \Dw_%m.@

| -




CONTRACT

Eagan Management LLC
210 W Scenic Drive
Pass Christian, MS 39571

Presented By:
Legacy Counstruction and Development LLC
26105-MC
RL. 890388 | CL. 79326 | MR. 251226
333 Coc¢onut Palm Dr.
Madisonville, LA 70447
(504) 952-8288
admin@nolalegacy.com



AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR

This Construction Contract (*Agreement”) is made and entered into effective as of the 15th day of October, 2024 (“Effective Date™)
by and between Legacy Construction and Development LLC (“Legacy Constr.” or “Contractor”), a Louisiana Limited Liability
Company, and Eagan Management LLC (“Owner”), and governs the terms under which Contractor will furnish construction services
as set forth in detail herein. Contractor and Owner may hereinafter be collectively referred to as “the Parties.”

The Owner: | Eagar Management LLC
210 W Scenic Dr.
Pass Christian, M8 39571

The Contractor:

The Project is:

The contract doctiients (“Contract Docaments™) consist of this Agreement, Addendum A -- The Scope of Work, Addendum B — Change
Order Authirizations, and sty Conditions of the Agreement (General, Supplementary and other Conditions), Drawings, Specifications,
any othét Addénda issued prior to execution of this Agreement, other documents listed in this Agreement, and any Modifications issued
after sxecution of this Agreement; all of which form the Agreement, and are fully a part of the Agreement as if attached to this Agreement
or repeated herein. This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Parties hereto and supersedes any prior
negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. An enumeration of the Coniract Documents, other than
Modifications, appears in Article 9.

ARTICLE2 THE WORK OF THIS CONTRACT

1. 2.1 The Contractor shall fully execute the Scope of Work described in Addendum A, except to the extent
said Scope of Work is altered by any Change orders or specifically indicated in the Contract Documents to
be the responsibility of others.

2. 2.2 The Contractor will not perform and is not obligated to perform any deviation from the Scope or
Work without the written consent of the Owner, Owner understands that it xs responsible for aying the
R ntr‘ ‘tor for any znd all changes ,appfoved bywntten ch i ge orderi e

et

ARTICLE3 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMI’LETION

31 The date of commencement of the Work shall be within 453 day(s) of execution of this Agreement by both Parties and
the Contractor securing all permits required to perform the Scope of Work and the down payment has been recgived
and cleared.

3.2 The Contract Time shall be measured from the date of commencement.

3.3 The Contractor shall achieve Substantial Completion of the entire Scope of Work not later than 120 days from the
date of commencement, subject to adjustments of the Contract Tims as provided in the Contract Documents or any
change orders.

Page i of 5



3.4

35

ARTICLE 4

4.1

42

ARTICLE 5

5.1

52

- ($618.887.50), subject to additiong

Substantial Completion shall be achieved when the Project is fit for its intended purposes (as distinguished from the
date of Owner’s acceptance thereof).

The Parties acknowledge that the Contracter shall be granted additional time to complete the Project in the event that
the Contractor is detayed due to (1) any delays caused by the Owner, and (2) any delays arising from situations beyond
the Confractor’s control including, but not limited to, labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, unavoidable
casualties, strikes, riots, acts of terrorism, hurricanes, floods, adverse weather, acts of God, war, epidemics,
pandemics, or other causes beyond the Contractor’s control.

CONTRACT SUM

t Sun in current fonds for the Contractor’s performance of the
‘ed Fighteen Thonsand, Fight Hundred Eighty-Seven and 50/100
as provided in the Contract Documents or any change orders.

The Owner shall pay the Contractor th
Contract, The Contract Sum shall be Sixik

This Contract is based upon 1 plete the Contract at present material prices, squipment,
and energy as of the date i i i
equipmment, or energy o niract through no fault of Contractor, the Contract

'ffected by any such price increase) shall be adjusted

N Contractor‘wﬂ] complete; construction in Phases, as identified in the Scope of Work. Contractor requires
Owner to pay a 15% down payment for each applicable Phase before construction on said Phase will begin (15%
covers permit filing fees, material, and equipment orders). Coniractor then requires an additional 45% payment at the

"'ha%f-way point of each applicable Phase. Owner then agrees to pay the final 40% for the applicable Phase at

completion. All payments will be made upon receipt of a Payment Applications from the Contractor dictating the
amount owed and percentage of construction completed.

5,12 Owneris responsible to cover half of any and all applicable taxes imposed on the Contractor for Contractor’s

Tax (3.5% / 2 = 1.75%) of the gross project proceeds and any future change orders. Contractor’s Tax to be
paid in advance before work commences per Mississippi Department of Revenue requirements.

FINAL PAYMENT

52.1  Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Contract Sum, shall be made by the Owner to
the Contractor when:

address any punch list items; and

»  More than forty-five (45) but less than sixty (60) days have elapsed after recordation of the substantial completion
certificate by the Contractor, provided that no lens or claims have been made or recorded within forty-five (45)
days after said recordation.

¢ Final 40% payment is subject to a 5% retainage for punch-list completion and approval.

Page 2 of 5



ARTICLE 6

6.1

6.2

ARTICLE 7

7.1

72

7.3

7.5

ARTICLE 8

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

INSURANCE

The Contractor shall provide statutory workers compensation insurance and general liability insurance providing
coverage for this Project and upon request, the Contractor will provide Owner with certificate of insurance evidencing
said coverage. Contractor is to provide Additional Insured Certificates to Qwner.

The Owner is responsible for providing, at its own expense, builder’s risk insurance and flood insurance (if ap_plicable)
covering all risks during construction of said Project.

BREACH OR TERMINATION

annum or the maximum amount allowed by law, whichever is less,
ner also agrees to pay for all collection costs, Including employee
in either collection of and/or protection of its interests in Owner’s

Owner agress 1o pay a service charge g
on all balances thirty days or more
time and expense and all attorns
past due account or performan

Contractor may, at its opti
due hereunder for a
documentation, Upon

knowledge’ and/oi*'dlscovery of any’ alleged defect in the Work or breack of Contract setting forth al] alleged defects
andfor clal_ms of breach-Owner further understands and agrees that failure to provide said Notice will bar recovery of
y leged defect or breach

Upon receipt of such Notlce frotn Owner, Contractor shall have ten (10) business days within which to respond to the
Notice and, at Contractor’s option, to schedule a mutnally agreeable date and time to inspect the Premises. Owner

&irees to provide Contractor, and/or Contractor’s empioyee(s) agent(s), or representative(s), an opportunity to inspect
- the Premises within seven {7) business days of Contractor’s request.

Contractor shall bave forty (40) tusiness days from the date of Contractor’s response, or the date of the inspection if
so elecied by Contractor, in which to correct and/or repair any alleged defect and/or breach accepted by Contractor,
provided materials are available.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Entire Agreement: The whole agreement between the Parties hereto is set forth herein and the Parties shall not be
bound by any agreements, conditions, understandings, or representations unless expressly stipulated and set forth
herein or in any amendments hereto. [xcept as may otherwise be provided herein, no subsequent alteration,
mqendment chancre or addition to t]:us Agreement shall be bmdmg upon the Parties hereto unless reduced to wntmg

Waiver of Covenant: Failure of cither party to require strict performance of any of the covenants, provisions or
conditions of this Agreement, on one or more occasions, shall not constitute a wavier by either party of the right
thereafter to require strict compliance with said covenants, provisions and conditions.

Assignment: Neither Party to this Agreement shall assign the Contract as a whole without written consent of the other.
If either Party attempts to make such an assignment without such consent, that Party shall nevertheless remain legally
responsible for all obligations under the Agreement.

Applicable Law: This Agreement shall be deemed to be a contract made under the laws of the State of Louisiana and
shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Louisiana.

Page 3 of 5



8.5 The Parties hereby acknowledge and agree that this Agreement is the product of arm’s-length negotiation between the
Parties, that they have read the terms of this Agreement, that they have had the option to be assisted by counsel of
their choosing with respect to this Agreement, that they fully understand the terms of this Agreement, and that they
bhave entered into this Agreement voluntarily with full knowledge of the effects hereof. In the interpretation and
congtruction of this Agreement, no account shall be taken of which among the Parties was the originator or drafter of
this Agreement, or of any of its specific provisions.

8.6 If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person, entity, place
or circumstance, shall be held by a court or governmental agency of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unenforceable
or void, the remainder of this Agreement and such term, provision, covenant or condition as applied to other persons,
entities, places and circumstances shall remain_jii full force and effect.

eadings are for convenience of reference only and in no way shall
orth in this Agreement.

8.7 Paragraph Headings: The paragraph caption
be used to constifute or modify the proy:

ged by facsimile or email. Counterpart copies of the Agreement

3.8. Executed copies of this Agreemt
shall toge’cher constitute an criginal Agreement and be treated as one

document.

8.9. Notwithstanding any
differences or contr
under this Agreerie

_ Arbltratlon Association then in effect, unless the Parties agree otherwise, The determination of the arbitrator(s) shall
i" " be final and binding upon all the Parties, A demand for arbitration shall be filed in writing with the other party to the

" Contract and with the American Arbitration Association. The arbitration shall be held in the same city as the location
of the Project, unless the Parties agree otherwise. The Parties agres to share the mediator’s fees equally.

ARTICLEY9 ENUMERATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

9.1 The Contract Documents, except for Modifications or Change Orders issued after execution of this Agreement, are
enumerdted as follows;

9.1.1  The Agreement is this executed Agreement between Owner and Contractor.
912 The General Conditions are N/A.

The Suppleme.ntary and other Condmons of the Contract are those N/A i

PR R e

9.14 The Specifications are those contamed in the:

s Draft Eagan Infrastrocture West Scenic Drive Retaining Wall, Pervious Parking, Utility Connections,
Sidewalk, and Concrete Paving Overlay Construction Specifications (Pre-bid meetine dated: 7/12/2024).

» Eustis Engineering LLC — Geotechnical Exploration Report (dated: 10/15/2023) and Compass Floodplain
Congultants LLC — Cantilever Retaining Wall Design Report (dated; 1/19/2024).

9.1.5  The Drawings are as follows: Compass Floodplain Consultants L1.C ~ pages C.0.0, C1.0, C2.0, C3.0, C3.1,
£4.0,C4.1,C4.2, C3.0, C6.0, C7.0 (dated: 6/2/2024).

9.1.6  The Addenda, if any are as follows:

Page 4 of 5



. Addendum A -- Scope of Work; and

Other documents, if any, forming part of the Contract Documents are as follows:

*  Notice of Contract—to be drafted/completed by Owner Counsel and signed by both Parties for recording.

. Addendum B ~- Change Order Authorizations.
2.1.7
'ARTICLE 10 UTILITIES
0.1 Owmer shail be responsible for providing al

utilities can be utilized from the adjacent;

ARTICLE 11 GUARANTEE

11.1  The Coniractor shall warrant4

free of defects and to co
Owner’s acceptance of,

ARTICLE 12 ACCESS TO PROPER

12.1

Print Name: | 2 gﬁ; LTS gg 5 v} L/
Titie:__Qm-

oue_Oct 1€, 0L %

ervmes {inchy d;mtr material and workmanshlp) furnished by him to be

es needad by Contractor for performing the Scope of Work, Water
also owned by the Owner.

AGREEMENT Partws have executed this agreement the day and date written above.

Contractor: "

Legacy Constructipn and D elopment L
Sign Name:

PnntNam C ,mg Wodehouse
o }

Title; Contractor

Date: _ 10/16/2024

Page 5 of 5



Addendum A
Scope of Work

‘ | Project: Eagan Infrastructure West Scenic Drive Improvements
LM LFMENT - Project Location: 210 W Scenic Dr., Pass Christian, MS 39571
' Owner(s): Eagan Management LLC

I PERMITS
A. Price _
1. Building perits and all city required filing fees for the Infrastructure Phase.
2. The Owner(s) shall pay Legacy Construction and Development LLC, subject to any additions or
deductions because of Change Orders, the lump sum amount of:
a. Total = $5.000.00

IL LAYOQUT AND SURVEYING
A. Scope of Work
1. Contractor to provide necessary survéying for Iayout stations, elevations, and staking required fo
perform all scopes.
a. Owtier to provide TBM and property comers.

B, Price
1. Any additional surveying required in addition to the allowance given below are to be provided via
change order to Legacy.
2. Contractor providing the Owner(s) with an gllowance to- perform the surveying scope:
% Total = $5.500.00

I, TEMPORARY JOB FENCING

A. Scope of Work, ‘
Labor and matetial to install and maintain approximately 450 LF of project fencing 8° to 10° with
windscreen for the duration of the project.

B. Price

1. The Owner(s) shall pay Legacy Construction and Deveiopment LLC, subject to any additions or
deductions because of Change Orders, the lump sum amount of:
a.  Total = $5,500.00

V. PLUMBING
A. Scope of Work
-+ 1. Provide all necessary labor, materials, and equipment to install site water and sewer ling conifections
and feeds according to plans — turnkey.
B. Time and Daration

1. Duration for the work listed above is approximately four (4) weeks from sfart of foundations to the final
wall pour within Legacy’s scope, All other work will be performed as it becomes available.

2. Proposal is based on a standard 5-day, 40-hour workweek. If additional hours are. required to the
aceelerate the schedule or if Legacy is directed 16 work ¢vertime and has not fallen behind through its
own fault, then at a minimum, premium pay will be paid to Legacy

3. Legacy shall be grarited addmonal time fo compiete the Project in the event that Legacy is delayed due
to (1) any delays caused by the Owner, and (2) any delays arising from situations beyond ‘the
Contractor’s control including, but not limited to, labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries,
unavoidable casualties, strikes, riots, acts of tefrorism, hurricanes, floods, adverse weather, acts of God,
‘war, epidemics, pandemics, or other causés beyond the Contractor’s control. If such delays cause
additional expenses or if Legacy suffets loss or damage, there shall be a reasonable increase in the
contract price. '

C. Price

1. The Owner(s) shall pay Legacy Construction and Development LLC, subject to any additions or

deductions becanse of Change Orders, the lump sum amoint of;
a. Total =$96,000.00

Page 1 of 6



CEINETEL

Addendum A
Scope of Work

~ Project: Eagan Infrastructure West Scenic Drive Improvements
BLIEMENT - Project Location: 210 W Scenic Dr., Pass Christian, MS 39571
Owner(s): Eagan Management LLC

V. FOUNDATION AND RETAINING WALL
A. Scope of Work

1.

10.
11,

12.

Labor and material to form the 20”x8°~4” thick retaining wall as detailed on 3/C3.1. (232 LF).
a. Top of foundation to be poured to elevation 14*-0”.
b. Pricing does notinclude any fill material. Legacy will use spoils as backfill and existing spoils
' will be used as base for footing 1o be poured on.
Labor and material to form the 16"x12" thick retaining wall to be poured monolithic with the retaining
wall foundation outlined in line item #1 and as detailed on 3/C3.1. (232 LF).
Labor and material to form the 12/187x8°-0" retaining wall as shown on 3/C3.1. Exposed side of

tetaining wall to be plumb while the soil retention side of the wall is to be battered. (232 LF)

a. Wall to be poured froi top of foundation elevation 14'-0" to top of wall elevation 22"-0”.
Labor and material to form the 30™x96” ADA ramp footings as shown on C6.0 (18 locations).
2, Labor and material to core drill and Irstall (2) #5x24” rébar into each 8"x8” treated timber
posts ag anchor points. (36 rebar total).
b. Labor and material to mount and brace (18) 8”x8” treated timber posts for future ADA ramp
build out. (8 units at-8”x87x16°, 4 upits at 8"x87x18", 6 units at §"x8"x20")
Labor anid material to form the 77 thick concrete Aprons a3 shown on C7.0 (2 locations / 715 SF total),
Labor and matérial to form the 4 sidewalk/drive/parking pad as shown on C5.0. (2,884 SF).
a. Pricing does notinelude any woik associated with the excavation and backfilling located at the
top of drawing C5.0.
Labor and material to fnstall the True Grid Pro Plus pervious paving at the parking areas as shown on
(3.1 and detailed on 2/C3.1. (Approximately 3,550 SF).
a. Legacy will install and compact approximatély 60 of spoils produced from excavation
operations. ' N _
b. Legacy will then install and compact 8” of #57 stone és: a base for the True Grid systen.
(Approximately 88 CY).
¢. Finally, Legacy will install #610 stone-to fill the True Grid system., (Approximately 20 yards),
d. #57 stowe 1s selected in lieu of crished coricrete per not meeting the washed specifications of
1.6.1 Impervious Parking Area: Buse/Subbase Preparation.
¢. Any additional fill required in addition to the qua,rmtles listed above are to be provided via
change order to Legaoy..
Labor and maierial to-install the True Grid Pro Plus pemous paving at the dumpster paci s shown on
C7.0. (Approximately 240 SF),
#. Legacy to provide #610 stone fill material to fill True Grid system only.
b. Legacy will then install and compact 8™ of #57 stone as a base for the True Grid system.
(Approximately 6 CY).
e #37.stong is selected in liew of crished concrete per not meeting the washed specifications of
L6.1 Impervious Parking Avea: Base/Subbase Preparation.
d. Any additional fill required in addition to the quantities listed above are to be provided via
change order to Lec‘acy {Approximately 1 CY).
Provide conerete material for iterns #1 through #6.
a.  All concrete to be normal weight 4,000 psi at 28 days.
Labor to pour items #1 through #6 mcludmg putnping (if needed) ang finishing as reqmred
Provide reinforcing material ineluding shop drawings and réquired installation accessories and supports
for iterns #1 through#6.
a. Reinforcing for wall foundation and wall to be per the reinforcing detail provided on page 10
of the “Fagan Infrastructure Retaining Wall Design Report™,
b. Reinforeing at the aprons (line item #5) and sidewalks/drive/parking pad (line item #6) to be
_ 636 W2.9X W29 wire mesh.
Labor to install arichor bolts and embeds as shown on the Civil Drawings.
Pagel of 6



Addendum A
Scope of Work

Project: Eagan Infrasiructure West Scenic Drive Improvements
WHAPMENT - Project Liocation: 210 W Scenic Dr., Pass Christian, MS 39571
Owner(s): Eagan Management LLC

13.  Grade to be turned over to Legacy at top of wall foundation elevation (elevation 14.0°).

14, Labor and material to tub 24” of the patking side (inside face) of the wall and the entire vertical face of
the outside face of wall,

15. Labor and material to install geofabric at the retaining wall as detailed on 3/C3.1.

B. Time and Duration

1. Duration for the work listed above is approximately nine (9) weeks from start of foundatmns to the final
wall pour within Legacy’s scope. All other work will be pefformed as it becomes available.

2. Proposal is based on a staridard 5-day, 40-hotr workweék, If addifional hours ate required to the
accelerate the schedule or if Leoacy is directed to work overtime and has not fallen behind through its
own fault, then at a minimum, premium pay will be paid to Legacy.

3. Legacy shall b granted additional time to complete the Project in the event that Legacy is-delayed due
to {1) any delays caused by the Ownet, and (2) any delays atising from situations beyond the
‘Contractor's control iricluding, but not limited to, labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries,
unaveidable casualties, strilees, riots, acts of terrorism, hurricanes, floods, adverse weather, acts of God,
war, epidemics, pandemics, or other causes beyond the Contractor’s control. If such delays canse
additional expenses or if Legacy suffers loss or damage, there shall be a reasonable increase in the
cofitract price,

C. Price
- L. The Owner(s) shall pay Legacy Construction and Development LLC, subject to any additions or

deductions because of Change Orders, the lump sum amount of:
a.. Total= $489.637.50

VI. STORM WATER PREVENTION PLAN
A. Scope of Work

1. Labor and fmaterials necessary to follow the guidance Pass Christinn Code of Ordinances Article VI, -
Storm Water Management and Detention. Legacy will install silt fencing or other methods contained
‘within the Mississippi Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) Grdance Manual for
Constriction Activities to eliminate sediment from stormwater runoff at the construction site.

a. To beinstalled on the south side of the staging area. Contained sediments from runoff will be
rernoved from the site af the completion. of construction.

B. Price _
1. Doesnot include prevention plans fora named storm event.
2. The Owner(s) shall pay Legacy Construction and Development LLC, subject fo -any additions or
deduitions because of Change Orders, the lumip sum amount of:
a.  Total = $4,600.00
VI TRAFFIC CONTROL
A. Bcope of Work
1. Traffic control using drums, navigators, Type B warning lights w/ det. Head, Type II barricades § LF,
Tri Pod Sign Stands, Signs (Construction): ' _ ‘
2. Fourteen (14) calendar days usage time. Any additional days will incur additional costs.

B. Price
1. The Owner(s) shall pay Legacy Construction and Development LLC, subject to any additions or
deductions becanse of Change Orders, the Tump sum amount of:
a. Total = $4,750,00

VILDUMPSTER PAD FENCING

Page 3 of 6



Addendum A
Scope of Work

Project: Eagan Infrastructure West Scenic Drive Improvements
LT mmmw Project Location: 210 W Scenic Dr., Pass Christian, MS 39571

Owner(s): Eagan Management LLC

A. Scope of Work

1. Labor and material to install a 6 pine dog ear plank wood fence around the perimeter of the dumpster
pad are.
a. Schedule 40 galvanized steel posts —2-1/2"x8’x16GA (9 units).
b. Double gate with Schedule 40 welded metal frame.
B. Price
1. The Owner(s) shall pay Legacy Construction and Development LLC, subject to any additions or
deductions because of Change Orders, the [ump sum amount of:
a. Total = $3,500.00

IX. ON-SITE TOILETS AND DUMPSTERS
A. Price

1. The OWne‘r(Sj shall pay Legacy Construction and Development LLC, subject to any additions or
deductions because of Changé Orders, the fump sum amount oft
a. Total = $5,000.00

X. PROJECT COSTS
A. BSubtotal: $618,887,50

B. Contracior’s Tax ~ Owaier’s Half (1,75%): 8§10.830.53
. Total Project Cost: $629,718.03

XL EXQLUSQON

Any work not specifically listed in the above scope or not clearly identified on the reference drawings listed.
Any unforeseen conditions which may differ from what is shown on the Structural or Civil Drawings.
Any work associated with demolition outside of the provided scope.
Any work associated with drilling and epoxy of dowels of any kind beyond required by scope.
Any work associated with waterproof ing — 1ot in plans.
Any work associated with screen wall foundat;ons of fence foundations not specifically included above.
Purchasing of stone base material that niay be fequired tinless explicitly listed in the above scope.
Purchasing or installing fill materidl unless specifically noted in the above scope/quantities.
Any work associated with ‘patterned, colored, architectural, sealed or stained concrete that is not specifically
included above.
10. Painting of any kind.
11. Geofabric unless specifically noted in the above scope.
A2, Geogrid —not.in plans.
13, Vapor barriers.
14. Any work associated with the existing electrical feeds.
15. Any work associated with the protection of existing trees.
a.. Due to the close proximity of the existing trees, Legacy i3 not liable and shall be held harmless
for any damages associated with these trees,
b. Legacy request the Owner(s) provide an On-site Arborist for the duration of the project.
¢. Plumbing and retaining wall footers will create contact with tree roots.
16. Steps in foundation and/or wall élevation,
- 17, Waterstop - not in plans.
18, Keyway - not in plans,
19. Form liner— not in plans.
20. Board formed finish.-
21. Specialty finishes.

tooo»&mx.‘h_%wms-a
ha g L A L

*

Page 4 of 6



Addendum A
Scope of Work

‘Project: Eagan Infrastructure West Scenic Drive Improvements
mpg“ﬂm Project Location: 210 W Scenic Dr., Pass Christian, MS 39571
Owner(s): Eagan Management LLC

22. Any work associated with piles.
23. Pedestals other than specifically noted in the above scope.
24. Reinforeing at euirbs (nong shown).
25. Reinforeing af paving unless noted in the above scope.
26, Any work assoclated with asphalt. Extent of asphalt repairs are unknown and should be prcmded by the City.
27. Any work associated with street repairs. Extent of street repairs are unknown and City to provide required scope.
28. Any worlk associated with purchase or installation of fence, sign, and bollard foundations unless specifically
noted in the above scope.
a. Bollards not included in scope - no foundation or elevation plans provided.
29, Degrubbing,
30. Locating and protecting existing utilities/structures. See Number 15.
31. Any work associated with contarmnated soils.
32, Dewatering, Dewatering will be provided within reason frofm work performed.
33. Mass excavation,
34. Mass concrete.
35. Sheit piles or other means of bracing excavations. Street work defail unknown.
36. Termite control.
37, Shering / backshoring of any kind outside of required scope. Stepped or stope will be used for wall work.
38. Admixtures of any kind unless specifically noted in the above scope.
39. Purchasing of embeds, anchor bolts,
40. Purchaging of tension strap material, inchuding plates, bolts, nuts, ete.
41.. Providing inspections of the formwork by a Specidlty Engineer. Formwork drawings are included.
42, Waterproof forms.
43. Duet barks,
44, Caich basins.
45, Any work assoctated with masonry walls including any/all reiniforeing including dowels and concrete fll.
46. Class A finish or as-cast finish — not in plans.
47, Rubbing or grinding of any concrete unless caused by Legacy form failure or specifically noted in the above
SEOPS,
48, Any work associated with structural stegl. ) :
. 49, Mechanical, electrical or other conorets pads hot specifically listed in the scope above,
30, Coordinating drawing dimensions with existing dimensions.
51, Epoxy coated or ga]vamzed reinforeing.
52. Any hardware, bolts, clips, hangers, be:armg pads, ele. unless specifically noted in the above scope.
53, Sawcutting unless specifically noted in the above scope.
54. Joint ;;ealant {nene shown). ) 7
55, Any work associated with the walks, ramps, stairs, or railings unless specifically noted in the above scope.
56. Backer rod. Joint Detail of drive aprons, sidewalk, or street repairs ~not in plans,
57, Expansion joints unless specifically noted in the-above scope.
58. Foam of any kind —not in plans.
59, Trench drains.
60. Welding.
61. Self-consolidating concrefe.
62, Exploratory excavations beyond necessary scope means.
63. Mockups.
64, Void foris of any kind.
65. Setting mechanical eqiiipment, pipe supports, of inserts unless specifically listed in the sbove scope.
66. Testing and Inspections of any kind.
67. Payment and Performance bonds ~ not required when Contractor’s Tax is paid in advance.
68. Davis Bacon Wages (Prevailing Wages).
Page 5 of 6



Addendum A
Scope of Work

(- Project: Eagan Infrasiructure West Scenic Drive Improvements
TONSTHRL Lﬁ};ﬁmw Project Location: 210 W Scenic Dr., Pass Christian, MS 39571

Owner(s): Eagan Management LLC

69. Builders Risk Insurance, Flood Insurance, Owner's Risk Insurance, efc. — any insutances beyond what Legacy
will be providing. '

XIL DRAWING REFERENCE
A. This proposal i$ based specifically on the following drawings issued by Compass Floodplain Consultants, LLC:
1. Architectural Drawings: Nooe provided.
2. Structural Drawings: None provided.
3. Civil Drawings: C0.0 through C7.0 (dated 6/2/2024).
4, Specifications; Draft Copy..
5. Addendum: None provided.

KULCHANGE ORDER(S)
A, The Owner may request in writing changes to the above scope at which time Legacy Construction and
Development LLC will commence with the additional scope or changes to the work once an agreement in price
and extension of time is agreed fo between both parties.

XIV. ALLOWANCE
A. Currenfly the drawings call for approximately 60" of sand backfill beneath 87 of #57 stone to provide a subbase
for the Trye Grid Pervious Paving. Due to the uncertainty of existing g:rade ¢levations, Legacy is providing an
allowance of 1,100 CY of sand to be usad for subbase backfill at the pervious paving. This allowance includes
waste and shrinkage/swell factors. Any additional materials needed will be an additional cost.

XV, CONTINGENCY
A. Legacy is providing 4 contingency of $10,000.00 from: the total projest costs.

XV REQUESY FOR PAYMENT

A. Legacy shall furnish General Liability and Workmen Compensation Insurance during the term of the Contract
for labor and work being performed by Legacy as per the agreed Confract terms and conditions.

XVIL GENERAL CONDITION .
A, Legacy reserves the right fo revise piicing based on more complete information or if the documents or actual
site conditions should differ from those lisied above.

Page 6 of 0



A

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE EMAILED)

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative
REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative []
Requesting Department [X]
Consent [ ]
Executive Session I
Other [1
FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:
Capital Improvement Fund []
BP Fund []
ool-__ - []
Other []
AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S) Yes| | No [ ]

Consider approving payment to Overstreet and Associates for Invoice# 3616 in the amount of $2,210.00
for 1257 North St Gravity Sewer Phase [ & II, These expenses are reimbursable by Gomesa Grant. The
funds are available as confirmed by the City Clerk.

. accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
ratifying, correcting, etc.)

APROVED [ ] ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED | |



o ER I REE I ‘ overstreeteng.com

161 Lameuse St. Suite 203
Biloxi, MS 39530
228.967.7137

CONSULTING ENGINEERS

December 19, 2024

City of Pass Christion
200 West Scenic Dr.
Pass Christian, MS 39571

Re: City of Pass Christian
Overstreet and Associates Engineering Invoices

To Whom It May Concern:

We hereby recommend the following inveices for payment:
+ Invoice 3616 in the amount of $ 2,210.00

Should you have any quastions or need additional information, please do not hesitate to call.

F. Jason QOverstreet, P.E.

JOisit 794

oToN Marian Governor mgovernar@pass-christian.ms.cov
Paul Ratliff profliff@pass-christian.ms.gov
Shannon Starita sstarita@pass-christion.ms.qov

Biloxi [ Long Beach | Pascagoula | Daphne



City of Pass Christian

200 West Scenic Drive
Pass Christian, MS 39571

CONSULTI

161 Lameuse St.
Suite 203
Biloxi, MS 39530
(228) 967-7137

Invoice humber

Date

NG ENGINEERS

3616
12/19/2024

Project 1267 NORTH ST. GRAVITY SEWER PH II

&l
For Servi'ces Rendered From November 18, 2024 Through December 15, 2024
Invoice Summary
Contract Percent Prior Total Remaining Current

Description Amount  Complete Billed Billed Remaining Percent Billed
PRELIMINARY DESIGN 107,500.00 100.00 107,500.00 107,500.00 0.00 0.00 . 0.00
FINAL DESIGN 83,000.00 100.00 83,000.00 83,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PERMITTING 3,000.00 100.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
BIDDING & 12,000.00 100.0C 12,000.00 12,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
NEGOTIATING :
TOPOGRAPHICAL 16,750.00 100.00 16,750.00 16,750.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
SURVEY
CONSTRUCTION 128,000.00 7.70 7,646.25 0,856.,25 118,143.75 92,30 2,210.00
PHASE : ,
CONSTRUCTION 277,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 277,000.00 100.00 0.00
INSPECTION
POST CONSTRUCTION 9,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,000.00 100.00 0.00
REIMBURSABLE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
EXPENSES

Total 636,250.00 36.48 229,896,25 232,108.25 404,143.75 63.52 2,210.00

Page 1 of 2



LIty Of ass Lhristian

InvoIce number

Project 1257 NORTH ST. GRAVITY SEWER PH Il & Il Date 121192024
. Contract Percent Total Prior Current
Description Amount  Complete Billed Billed Billed
PRELIMINARY DESIGN 107,500.00 100.00 107,500.00 107,500.00 0.00
FINAL DESIGN 83,000.00 100.00 83,000.00 83,000,00 0.00
PERMITTING 3,000.00 100.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00
EIDDING & NEGOTIATING 12,000.00 100.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 0.00
TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY 16,750.00 100.00 16,750.00 16,750.00 0.00
Total 222,250.00 100.00 222.250.00 222 250.00 0.00
CONSTRUCTION PHASE
Labor
Billed
Hours Rate Amount
Professional Engineer V
Andrew Levens 13.00 170.00 2,210,00
Invoice total 2,210,00

Thanl you for your business!

Please remit payment fo

Overstreet & Associates, PLLC.

161 Lameuse St. Suite 203
Biloxi, MS 39530

Page2cf2



A5

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE EMAILED)

- £ P R

DATE OF MEETING: January 7, 2024

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative []
Requesting Department [X]
Consent . [ ]
Executive Session L]
Other []
FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:
Capital Improvement Fund ]
BP Fund []
ool-__ - L]
Other [
AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S)  Yes| | No[ ]

Consider approving a temporary lease agreement with Cellular South Real Estate, Inc., d/b/a C
Spire for the use of surplus City property near the intersection of Woodman Avenue and E.
Second Street for location of Cell on Wheels during the 2025 Mardi gras parade for the lump
sum of $2,500.00 as requested by City Attorney Malcolm Jones.

accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
ratifying, correcting, etc.)

APROVED [ ] ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED | ]



-l

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE EMAILED)

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Adminjstrative
Requesting Department
Consent

Executive Session
Other

]
X]
]
]
]

eI

FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:

Capital Improvement Fund
BP Fund

0o-_ -

Other

e

AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S) Yes[] No[ ]

Consider adopting Resolutions approving terms of the General Obligation Bonds Series 2025, approving
terms of commitment letter, and for related purposes.

accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
ratifying, correcting, etc.)

APROVED [ | ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED | |



Resolution No.

RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF PASS
CHRISTIAN, MISSISSIPPI (THE “CITY™), AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE
TERMS OF THE GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND, SERIES 2025, OF THE CITY (THE
“CITY BOND”) AND THE CORRESPONDING TERMS OF THE SPECIAL OBLIGATION
BONDS (PASS CHRISTIAN, MISSISSIPPI GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND PROJECT) OF
THE MISSISSTPPI DEVELOPMENT BANK (THE “BANK BONDS”); APPROVING THE
FORM OF AND EXECUTION OF A COMMITMENT LETTER FOR THE SALE OF THE
BANK BONDS TO THE PURCHASER; AND FOR RELATED PUPOSES

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Board of Aldermen (the “Governing Body”) of the City, acting
for and on behalf of the City, have previously authorized, pursuant to authority under Sections 21-
33-301 et seq., Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended (the “City Bond Act”) and Sections 31-25-
1 et seq., Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended (the “Bank Act”), and pursuant to the Bond
Resolution adopted on the date hereof (the “Bond Resolution”), the issuance and sale of the City
Bond to the Mississippi Development Bank (the “Bank”) for the purpose of providing funds for
certain infrastructure projects of the City; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Bond Resolution, the City has approved the sale of the City
Bond to the Bank based on the terms and conditions of the sale of the Bank Bonds by the Bank to
the purchaser(s) identified by Raymond James & Associates, Inc., acting as placement agent of the
Bank Bonds (the “Placement Agent”); and

WHEREAS, the Placement Agent has identified 4 , Mississippi (the
“Purchaser”), as an appropriate purchaser of the Bank Bonds on the terms and conditions set forth
in the Commitment Letter between the City and the Purchaser in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit “1” (the “Commitment Letter”); and

WHEREAS, it is appropriate and in the best interests of the City to approve and ratify the
terms and conditions of the City Bond and the corresponding Bank Bonds and to approve the form
of and execution of the Commitment Letter to establish the respective rights and obligations of the
parties thereto;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body, acting for and on
behalf of the City, as follows:

SECTION 1. The findings conclusions and statements of fact contained in the foregoing
preambles are hereby adopted, ratified and incorporated herein.

SECTION 2. The terms of the City Bond and the corresponding Bank Bonds and the terms
of their sale to the Purchaser, as specified in the Commitment Letter, are hereby approved and
ratified.

SECTION 3. The Governing Body hereby authorizes the execution by the Mayor, for and
on behalf of the City, of the Commitment Letter in substantially the form of Exhibit “1* hereto,
with such additional completions, changes, insertions and modifications as shall be approved by



the officers executing and delivering the same (the execution thereof constituting conclusive
evidence of approval of any such completions, changes, insertions and medifications).

SECTION 4. The Mayor and City Clerk of the City or any other authorized officer of the
Governing Body is hereby authorized and directed for and on behalf of the City to take any and all
such actions as may be required by the City to carry out and to give effect to this resolution and
the Bond Resolution, and to execute all papers, documents, certificates and other instruments that
may be required or appropriate in connection with the issuance of the City Bond and the Bank
Bonds, the pérformance of the Commitment Leiter or otherwise for the carrying out of the authority
conferred by such resolutions.

SECTION 5. 1f any one or more of the provisions of this resolution shall for any reason
be held to be illegal or invalid, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any of the other
provisions of this resolution, but this resolution shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal
or invalid provision or provisions had not been contained therein, :

_ SECTION 6. The authority conferred by this resolution is supplemental and additional to
the authority conferred by the Bond Resolution. All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict with
this resolution, to the extent of such conflict only, are hereby repealed.

SECTION 7. For cause, this resolution shall become effective upon the adoption hereof,

The above and foregoing Resolution having been reduced to writing and no member of the
governing authority having requested that it be read by the Clerk, the question was put to a vote
by the Mayor, and the result was as follows:

Alderwoman Charlot Voted

Alderwoman Sparkman Voted

Alderman Kimball Voted
Alderman Pickich Voted
Alderman Torgeson Voted _

- The question having received a majority of the affirmative votes of all the members
present and voting, the Mayor declared the Motion carried and this Resolution adopted, this the
day of , 2025.

CITY OF PASS CHRISTIAN MISSISSIPPI
BY:

Renaud “Jimmy” Ré.fferty
ATTEST: '

Marian Governor, City Clerk




Exhibit “1”



A

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE EMAILED)

". P e o

DATE OF MEETING: January 7, 2025

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative []
Requesting Department [X]
Consent [
Executive Session []
Other []
FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:
Capital Improvement Fund []
BP Fund [
0o1-_ - [
Other []
AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S) Yes | ] No| ]

Consider adopting Resolution authorizing and directing sale of General Obligation Bonds Series 2025 not
to exceed the principal sum of $2,000,000 and for related purposes.

accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
ratifying, correcting, etc.)

APROVED [ ] ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED [ ]



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE ISSUANCE OF A GENERAL
OBLIGATION BOND, SERIES 2025, OF THE CITY OF PASS CHRISTIAN,
MISSISSIPPL, FOR SALE TO THE MISSISSIPPI DEVELOPMENT BANK IN A TOTAL
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED TWO MILLION
DOLLARS (82,000,000); PRESCRIBING THE FORM AND DETAILS OF SAID BOND;
PROVIDING CERTAIN COVENANTS OF THE CITY IN CONNECTION WITH SAID
BOND AND DIRECTING THE PREPARATION, EXECUTION AND DELIVERY
THEREOF; AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF SAID BOND TO THE MISSISSIPPI
DEVELOPMENT BANK; AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE FORM OF AND
THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN INDENTURE OF TRUST, THE
MISSISSIPPI DEVELOPMENT BANK BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT, THE CITY
BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND THE PRIVATE PLACEMENT AGREEMENT
IN CONNECTION WITH THE SALE AND ISSUANCE OF THE MISSISSIPPI
DEVELOPMENT BANK SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2025 (PASS
CHRISTTAN, MISSISSIPPI GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND PROJECT), IN THE
AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED TWO MILLION
DOLLARS ($2,000,000); AND FOR RELATED PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the Board of Aldermen of the City of Pass Christian,
Mississippi (the "City™), acting for and on behalf of said City, hereby find, determine, adjudicate
and declare as follows:

1. (a) In addition to any words and terms elsewhere defined herein, the following
words and terms shall have the following meanings, unless some other meaning is plainly intended:

"Aet" means the Bank Act and/or the City Bond Act.

"Agent" means any Paying Agent or Transfer Agent, whether serving in either or both
capacities. The Agent shall initially be the Trustee.

"Authorized Officer" means the Mayor, the Clerk, the Mayor Pro Tempore and any other
officer designated from time to time as an Authorized Officer by resolution of the City, and when
used with reference to any act or document also means any other Person authorized by resolution
of the City to perform such act or sign such document.

"Bank" means the Mississippi Development Bank, a body corporate and politic exercising
essential public functions, or any successor to its functions organized under the Bank Act.

"Bank Aet" means the provisions of Sections 31-25-1 et seq., Mississippi Code of
1972, as amended from time to time.

"Bank Bonds" means the not to exceed $2,000,000 Mississippi Development Bank
Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2025 (Pass Christian, Mississippi General Obligation Bond
Project), authorized to be issued by the Bank pursuant to the Bank Act and the terms and
conditions of the Indenture.

"Bond Counsel" means Wise Carter Child & Caraway, a Professional Association,
Gulfport, Mississippi,

"Bond Resolution" means this resolution, as amended or supplemented from time to
time,




"Business Day" meaus any day, otherthan a Saturday or a Sunday, on which the Trustee
or the City Hall of the City is not closed and on which the payment system of the Federal Reserve
System is operational.

"City Bond" means the not to exceed $2,000,000 General Obligation Bond, Series
2025, of the City authorized and directed to be issued in this Bond Resolution in one or more
series and registered to the Trustee as assignee of the Bank pursuant to the Indenture.

"City Bond Act" means Sections 21-33-301 ef seq., Mississippi Code of 1972, as
amended from time to time.

"Clerk" means the City Clerk of the City.

""Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 in effect on the date of issuance of the
Bank Bonds and the City Bond, and the applicable regulations or rulings promulgated or
proposed thereunder, and any successor thereto, as such Code, regulations and rulings may be
amended from time to time.

"Construction Project means certain capital projects and improvements which shall
consist of any of the following: erecting municipal buildings, auditoriums, community centers,
gymnasiums and athletic stadiums, preparing and equipping athletic fields, and purchasing
buildings or land therefor, and for repairing, improving, adorning and equipping the same and for
erecting, equipping and furnishing of buildings to be used as a municipal or civic arts center;
erecting or purchasing waterworks, gas, electric and other public utility plants or distribution
systems or franchises, and repairing, improving and extending the same; establishing sanitary,
storm, drainage or sewerage systems, and repairing, improving and extending the same; protecting
the municipality, its streets and sidewalks from overflow, caving banks and other like dangers;
constructing, improving and paving streets, sidewalks, driveways, parkways, walkways or public
parking facilities, and purchasing land therefor; purchasing land for parks, cemeteries and public
playgrounds, and improving, equipping and adorning the same, including the constructing,
repairing and equipping of swimming pools and other recreational facilities; constructing bridges
and culverts; altering or changing the channels of streams and water courses to control, deflect or
guide the current thereof; purchasing fire-fighting equipment and apparatus, and providing housing
for same, and purchasing land therefor; purchasing or renting voting machines and any other
election equipment needed in elections held in the municipality; purchasing machinery and heavy
equipment which will have an expected useful life in excess of ten (10) years, but specifically not
including any motor vehicles weighing less than twelve thousand (12,000) pounds.

"Governing Body" means the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the City.

"Indenture" means that certain Indenture of Trust, to be dated on or about the date of
delivery thereof, by and between the Bank and the Trustee, pursuant to which the Bank Bonds are
issued. A copy of the form of the Indenture, in substantially final form, is attached as EXHIBIT
A hereto.

""Interest Payment Date' is used herein as defined in the Indenture as the interest payment
dates of the Bank Bonds.

"Mayor" shall mean the Mayor of the City.



"Municipal Advisor" means Municipal Advisors of Mississippi, Inc., Gulfport,
Mississippi.

"Paying Agent" means any bank, trust company or other institution hereafter
designated by the Governing Body for the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and
interest on the City Bond. The Paying Agent shall initially be the Trustee.

"Payments" has the meaning set forth in Section 14(b) hereof.

"Person" means an individual, partnership, corporation, trust or unincorporated
organization, limited liability company, and a government or agency or political subdivision
thercof,

"Project” means providing funds for (i) the costs of the Construction Project, and (ii)
paying costs of issuance for the City Bond and the Bank Bonds.

"Record Date" has the meaning set forth in Section 1.1 of the Indenture.

"Record Date Registered Owner" means the Registered Owner of the City Bond as of
the Record Date.

"Registered Owner" or "Bondholder" means the Person whose name shall appear in the
registration records of the City maintained by the Transfer Agent and shall initially be the Trustee
as assignee of the Bank as provided for in the Indenture.

"Rule" means Rule 15¢2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time,

"State" means the State of Mississippi.

""Lransfer Agent" means any bank, trust company or other institution hereafter designated
by the Governing Body for the registration of the owner of the City Bond and for the performance
of such other duties as may be herein or hereafter specified by the Governing Body. The Transfer
Agent shall initially be the Trustee. ’

"Trustee" means The Peoples Bank, Biloxi, Mississippi, which financial institution will
have corporate trust powers and be qualified to act as Trustee under the Indenture,

"'2025 Bond Fund” means the City of Pass Chrisiian, Mississippi General Obligation
Bond, Series 2025 Bond Fund provided for in Section 14 hereof.

2025 Construction Fund" means the City of Pass Christian, Mississippi General
Obligation Bond, Series 2025 Construction Fund provided for in Section 15 hereof.

"Underwriter' means Raymond James & Associates, Inc., Memphis, Tennessee, as
Underwriter or placement agent, as the case may be, of the Bank Bonds.

(b) Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed and construed to include
correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders. Unless the context shall otherwise
indicate, words and terms herein defined shall be equally applicable to the plural as well as the
singular form of any of such words and terms.



2. Heretofore, on October 15, 2024, the Governing Body adopted a resolution
entitled "RESOLUTION DECLARING THE INTENTION OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF
ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF PASS CHRISTIAN, MISSISSIPPI, EITHER TO ISSUE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF SAID MUNICIPALITY, OR TO ISSUE A GENERAL
OBLIGATION BOND OF SAID MUNICIPALITY FOR SALE TO THE MISSISSIPPI
DEVELOPMENT BANK, IN ONE OR MORE SERIES, IN THE MAXIMUM AGGREGATE
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED TWO MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000) TO
RAISE MONEY FOR THE PURPOSE OF ERECTING MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS,
AUDITORIUMS, COMMUNITY CENTERS, GYMNASIUMS AND ATHLETIC STADIUMS,
PREPARING AND EQUIPPING ATHLETIC FIELDS, AND PURCHASING BUILDINGS OR
LAND THEREFOR, AND FOR REPAIRING, IMPROVING, ADORNING AND EQUIPPING
THE SAME, AND FOR ERECTING, EQUIPPING AND FURNISHING OF BUILDINGS TO
BE USED AS A MUNICIPAL OR CIVIC ARTS CENTER; ERECTING OR PURCHASING
WATERWORKS, GAS, ELECTRIC AND OTHER PUBLIC UTILITY PLANTS OR
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEMS OR FRANCHISES, AND REPAIRING, IMPROVING AND
EXTENDING THE SAME; ESTABLISHING SANITARY, STORM, DRAINAGE OR
SEWERAGE SYSTEMS, AND REPAIRING, IMPROVING AND EXTENDING THE SAME;
PROTECTING THE MUNICIPALITY, ITS STREETS AND SIDEWALKS FROM
OVERFLOW, CAVING BANKS AND OTHER LIKE DANGERS; CONSTRUCTING,
IMPROVING OR PAVING STREETS, SIDEWALKS, DRIVEWAYS, PARKWAYS,
WALKWAYS OR PUBLIC PARKING " FACILITIES, AND PURCHASING LAND
THEREFOR; PURCHASING LAND FOR PARKS, CEMETERIES AND PUBLIC
PLAYGROUNDS, AND IMPROVING, EQUIPPING AND ADORNING THE SAME,
INCLUDING THE CONSTRUCTING, REPAIRING AND EQUIPPING OF SWIMMING
POOLS AND OTHER RECREATIONAL FACILITIES; CONSTRUCTING BRIDGES AND
CULVERTS; ALTERING OR CHANGING THE CHANNELS OF STREAMS AND WATER
COURSES TO CONTROL, DEFLECT OR GUIDE THE CURRENT THEREOF;
PURCHASING FIRE-FIGHTING EQUIPMENT AND APPARATUS, AND PROVIDING
HOUSING FOR SAME, AND PURCHASING LAND THEREFOR; PURCHASING OR
RENTING VOTING MACHINES AND ANY OTHER ELECTION EQUIPMENT NEEDED IN
ELECTIONS HELD IN THE MUNICIPALITY; PURCHASING MACHINERY AND HEAVY
EQUIPMENT WHICH WILL HAVE AN EXPECTED USEFUL LIFE IN EXCESS OF TEN (10)
YEARS, BUT SPECIFICALLY NOT INCLUDING ANY MOTOR VEHICLES WEIGHING
LESS THAN TWELVE THOUSAND (12,000) POUNDS; AND FOR RELATED PURPOSES;
AND DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF SUCH INTENTION" (the "Intent
Resolution™) indicating its intent either to issue general obligation bonds of the City or to issue
a general obligation bond of the City for sale to the Bank, in one or more series, in the maximum
aggregate principal amount of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) as authorized by the Bank Act
and the City Bond Act for the purposes of providing funds for the Project, and fixed 6:00 o'clock
p.m. on October 15, 2024, as the date and hour for any protest to be made and filed against the
issuance of such general obligation bonds and/or general obligation bond as described in the Intent
Resolution,

3. Heretofore, on November 4, 2024, the Governing Body adopted a resolution
entitled "RESOLUTION DECLARING THE INTENTION OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF
ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF PASS CHRISTIAN, MISSISSIPPI, EITHER TO ISSUE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF SAID MUNICIPALITY, OR TO ISSUE A GENERAI,
OBLIGATION BOND OF SAID MUNICIPALITY FOR SALE TO THE MISSISSIPPI



DEVELOPMENT BANK, IN ONE OR MORE SERIES, IN THE MAXIMUM AGGREGATE
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED TWO MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000) TO
RAISE MONEY TFOR THE PURPOSE OF ERECTING MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS,
AUDITORIUMS, COMMUNITY CENTERS, GYMNASIUMS AND ATHLETIC STADIUMS,
PREPARING AND EQUIPPING ATHLETIC FIELDS, AND PURCHASING BUILDINGS OR
LAND THEREFOR, AND FOR REPAIRING, IMPROVING, ADORNING AND EQUIPPING
THE SAME, AND FOR ERECTING, EQUIPPING AND FURNISHING OF BUILDINGS TO
BE USED AS A MUNICIPAL OR CIVIC ARTS CENTER; ERECTING OR PURCHASING
WATERWORKS, GAS, ELECTRIC AND OTHER PUBLIC UTILITY PLANTS OR
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEMS OR FRANCHISES, AND REPAIRING, IMPROVING AND
EXTENDING THE SAME; ESTABLISHING SANITARY, STORM, DRAINAGE OR
SEWERAGE SYSTEMS, AND REPAIRING, IMPROVING AND EXTENDING THE SAME;
PROTECTING THE MUNICIPALITY, ITS STREETS AND SIDEWALKS FROM
OVERFLOW, CAVING BANKS AND OTHER LIKE DANGERS; CONSTRUCTING,
IMPROVING OR PAVING STREETS, SIDEWALKS, DRIVEWAYS, PARKWAYS,
WALKWAYS OR PUBLIC PARKING FACILITIES, AND PURCHASING LAND
THEREFOR; PURCHASING LAND FOR PARKS, CEMETERIES AND PUBLIC
PLAYGROUNDS, AND IMPROVING, EQUIPPING AND ADORNING THE SAME,
INCLUDING THE CONSTRUCTING, REPAIRING AND EQUIPPING OF SWIMMING
POOLS AND OTHER RECREATIONAL FACILITIES; CONSTRUCTING BRIDGES AND
CULVERTS; ALTERING OR CHANGING THE CHANNELS OF STREAMS AND WATER
COURSES TO CONTROL, DEFLECT OR GUIDE THE CURRENT THEREOF:
PURCHASING FIRE-FIGHTING EQUIPMENT AND APPARATUS, AND PROVIDING
HOUSING FOR SAME, AND PURCHASING LAND THEREFOR; PURCHASING OR
RENTING VOTING MACHINES AND ANY OTHER ELECTION EQUIPMENT NEEDED IN
ELECTIONS HELD IN THE MUNICIPALITY; PURCHASING MACHINERY AND HEAVY
EQUIPMENT WHICH WILL HAVE AN EXPECTED USEFUL LIFE IN EXCESS OF TEN (10)
YEARS, BUT SPECIFICALLY NOT INCLUDING ANY MOTOR VEHICLES WEIGHING
LESS THAN TWELVE THOUSAND (12,000} POUNDS; AND FOR RELATED PURPOSES;
AND DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF SUCH INTENTION" (the "Amended
Intent Resolution”) indicating its intent either to issue general obligation bonds of the City or to
issue a general obligation bond of the City for sale to the Bank, in one or more series, in the
maximum aggregate principal amount of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) as authorized by the
Bank Act and the City Bond Act for the purposes of providing funds for the Project, and fixed 6:00
o'clock p.m. on December 3, 2024, as the date and hour for any protest to be made and filed against
the issuance of such general obligation bonds and/or general obligation bond as described in the
Amended Intent Resolution.

4. As required by law and as directed by the Amended Intent Resolution, said
Amended Intent Resolution was published once a week for at least three (3) consecutive weeks in
The Gazebo Gazette, a newspaper published in the City, and having a general circulation in the
City, and qualified under the provisions of Section 13-3-31, Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended,
the first publication having been made not less than twenty-one (21) days before December 3, 2024
and the last publication having been made no more than seven (7) days prior to such date. Said
notice was published in said newspaper on November 8, November 15, November 22 and
November 29, 2024,



5. On or prior to 6:00 o'clock p.m. on December 3, 2024, no written protest
against the issuance of such general obligation bonds and/or general obligation bond as described
in the Amended Intent Resolution had been filed or presented by qualified electors of the City with
the Clerk; and, therefore, the Governing Body did on that date and hereby does find, determine
and adjudicate that no protest against the issuance of the Bonds and/or the City Bond was duly
filed.

6. The Governing Body is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Act
and other applicable laws of the State to issue its City Bond in a principal amount of not to exceed
$2,000,000, in one or more series, and to sell same to the Bank for the purpose of providing funds
for the Project without any election on the question of the issuance thereof.

7. The Governing Body desires to authorize and approve the issuance of the City
Bond pursuant to this Bond Resolution and the purchase thereof by the Bank with the proceeds of
the Bank Bonds.

8. The assessed value of all taxable property within the City, according to the last
completed assessment for taxation, is Ninety-Three Million Eight Hundred Twenty Thousand
Eight Hundred Fifty-eight Dollars ($93,820,858); the City currently has outstanding bonded
indebtedness subject to the fifteen percent (15%) debt limit prescribed by Section 21-33-303,
Mississippi Code of 1972, in the amount less than or equal to Four Hundred Forty Thousand One
Hundred Eighty-eight Dollars ($440,188), and outstanding indebtedness, both bonded and
floating, subject to the twenty percent (20%) debt limit prescribed by Section 21-33-303,
Mississippi Code of 1972 (which amount includes the sum set forth above subject to the 15% debt
limit), in the amount less than or equal to Six Hundred Fifty-six Thousand Seventy-eight Dollars
($656,078); the issuance of the Bonds or the City Bond hereinafter proposed to be issued, when
added to the outstanding bonded indebtedness of the City, will not result in bonded indebtedness,
exclusive of indebtedness not subject to the aforesaid fifteen percent (15%) debt limit, of more
than fifteen percent (15%) of the assessed value of taxable property within the City, and will not
result in indebtedness, both bonded and floating, exclusive of indebtedness not subject to the
aforesaid twenty percent (20%) debt limit, in excess of twenty percent (20%) of the assessed value
of taxable property within the City, and will not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation
upon indebtedness which may be incurred by the City.

9. The Governing Body hereby receives, examines and considers the following
form of documents concerning the issuance, sale and purchase of the City Bond by the Bank: (i)
the City Bond Purchase Agreement, to be dated the date of sale of the City Bond (the ""City Bond
Purchase Agreement"), by and between the Bank and the City, which provides for the sale of the
City Bond to the Bank; (ii) the Indenture; (iii) the Bond Purchase Agreement, to be dated the date
of sale of the Bank Bonds (the ""Bond Purchase Agreement"), by and between the Bank, the City
and the Underwriter (or a purchaser or purchasers identified by the Underwriter (the “Purchaser™),
with such Underwriter acting as placement agent), which provides for the sale of the Bank Bonds
to the Underwriter (or such purchaser or purchasers), and (iv) the Private Placement Agreement,
to be dated the date of sale of the Bank Bonds (the “Private Placement Agreement”), by and
between the Bank, the City and the Underwriter.

10. The Governing Body does now find, determine and adjudicate that each of the



documents referred to above, which documents are now before the Governing Body, is in
appropriate form and is an appropriate document for the purposes identified.

11, The City will make payments on the City Bond in amounts sufficient to pay the
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bank Bonds, as and when the same shall become
due and payable.

12. The Governing Body does now find, determine and adjudicate that all conditions,
acts and things required by the Act and the Constitution and laws of the State to have existed, to
have happened and to have been performed prior to and in connection with the adoption of this
Bond Resolution, the sale and issuance of the City Bond to the Bank, the sale and issuance of the
Bank Bonds, and the execution by the City of the Bond Purchase Agreement and the City Bond
Purchase Agreement have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and
manner as required by law.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY,
ACTING FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. In consideration of the purchase and acceptance of the City Bond by those
who shall hold the same from time to time, this Bond Resolution shall constitute a contract between
the City and the Registered Owner from time to time of the City Bond and the registered owners
from time to time of the Bank Bonds. The pledge made herein and the covenants and agreements
herein set forth to be performed on behalf of the City for the benefit of the Registered Owner shall
be for the equal benefit, protection and security of the Registered Owner of the City Bond and the
registered owners from time to time of the Bank Bonds, all of which, regardless of the time or
times of authentication and delivery or maturity, shall be of equal rank without preference, priority
or distinction.

SECTION 2. The City Bond is hereby authorized and ordered to be prepared and issued
in one or more series in an aggregate principal amount of not to exceed Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000) to raise money for the Project as authorized by the Act. The Governing Body of the
City is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Act or as may otherwise be provided
by law to issue the City Bond.

SECTION 3. The Governing Body hereby further authorizes and approves the sale of
the City Bond to the Bank pursuant to the terms and provisions of the City Bond Purchase
Agreement and the sale of the Bank Bonds by the Bank to the Underwriter (or Purchaser) pursuant
to the terms and provisions of the Bond Purchase Agreement.

SECTION 4, The Governing Body does hereby find and determine that the City Bond and
the Bank Bonds are being issued to provide financing for the costs of the Project.

SECTION 8§. (a) Payments of interest on the City Bond, and payments of principal other
than the final payment of principal, shall be made by check or draft delivered or mailed to the
Record Date Registered Owner, and the final payment of principal shall be made upon presentation
and surrender thereof at the principal office of the Paying Agent to the Record Date Registered
Owner, in lawful money of the United States of America,

(b)  The City Bond shall be dated the date of its delivery; shall be issued as a fully
registered bond in a single denomination equal to the principal amount thereof; shall be numbered



R-1; shall bear interest from the date thereof at the federally taxable or tax-exempt rate or rates
borne by the Bank Bonds (as provided in the Indenture), payable on each Interest Payment
Date, subject to the limitation that the City Bond shall not bear a greater overall interest rate to
maturity than eleven percent (11%) per annum; and shall mature and become due and payable in
the same manner and atthe same dates and times as provided for the Bank Bonds in the
Indenture; provided, however, that the final maturity for the City Bond shall be no later than
twenty-one (21) years from its date of issuance unless earlier redeemed as provided for in this
Bond Resolution and the Indenture,

(c) The City Bond is subject to redemption prior to maturity, in whole or in part, on
and after January 1, 2034 (or on such earlier or later date or dates as the Mayor, the Clerk and/or
an Authorized Officer may determine pursuant to Section 36 hereof and as is set forth in the City
Bond), at the election of the City. If the City elects so to redeem the City Bond, in whole or in
part, it shall direct the Bank and the Trustee to redeem corresponding maturities of the Bank Bonds
as provided in the Indenture. In that event, the City shall give written notice to the Bank of such
direction and of its election so to redeem the City Bond, of the redemption date, and of the principal
amounts of each maturity to be redeemed (which shall be in authorized denominations as provided
in the Indenture), at least 30 days prior to the stated redemption date. The City shall pay to the
Trustee for deposit in the Redemption Account under the Indenture, prior to the stated redemption
date, the amount of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest to the redemption date on the
corresponding Bank Bonds to be redeemed, together with any other fees due hereunder or under
the Indenture to effectuate said redemption. The payment by the City to effectuate such
redemption of the Bank Bonds shall, to the extent paid, constitute an equal and corresponding
payment and redemption of the City Bond or portion thereof. It is intended that redemption of the
City Bond may only occur through a corresponding redemption of the Bank Bonds as provided in
the Indenture, and the City hereby accepts such redemption provisions by this reference.

(d) A default in the due and punctual payment of any interest or principal on the City
Bond or a default by the City under this Bond Resolution is an Event of Default (as defined in the
Indenture) entitling the Trustee to exercise certain remedies under the Indenture, including, but
not limited to, the acceleration of all principal and interest due and owing on the Bank Bonds
outstanding. If the Trustee exercises such remedies under the Indenture, the principal and interest
due and owing on the City Bond may be accelerated in accordance with the Indenture and the City
shall cause the City Bond to be redeemed and paid in full.

SECTION 6. (a) When the City Bond shall have been validated and executed as herein
provided, it shall be registered as an obligation of the City in the office of the Clerk in a record
maintained for that purpose, and the Clerk shall cause to be imprinted upon the City Bond, over
her manual or facsimile signature and manual or facsimile seal, her certificate in substantially the
form set out in Section 8.

) The City Bond shall be executed by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor
and countersigned by the manual or facsimile signature of the Clerk, with the seal of the City
imprinted or affixed thereto; provided, however all signatures and seals appearing on the City
Bond, other than the signature of an authorized officer of the Transfer Agent hereinafter provided
for, may be facsimile and shall have the same force and effect as if manually signed or impressed.
In case any official of the City whose signature or a facsimile of whose signature shall appear on
the City Bond shall cease to be such official before the delivery or reissuance thereof, such
signature ot such facsimile shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes, the same as



if such official had remained in office until delivery or reissuance.

(¢} The City Bond shall be authenticated and delivered to the Bank by the Transfer
Agent upon payment of the purchase price therefor in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the Indenture and the City Bond Purchase Agreement. There shall also be delivered to the Bank a
complete certified transcript of the proceedings had and done in the matter of the authorization,
issuance, sale and validation of the City Bond, and the final, unqualified approving opinion of
Bond Counsel.

(d)  Prior to or simultaneously with the authentication and delivery of the City Bond by
the Transfer Agent, the City shall file with the Transfer Agent:

(i) A copy, certified by the Clerk, of the transcript of proceedings of the Governing
Body in connection with the authorization, issuance, sale and validation of the City
Bond; and

(i)  An authorization to the Transfer Agent, signed by the Mayor or an Authorized
Officer, to authenticate and deliver the City Bond to the Bank; and

(iii)  Such other documentation, if any, as may be required by this Bond Resolution, the
Bond Purchase Agreement, Bond Counsel and the Indenture.

SECTION 7. (a) The City hereby appoints the Trustee designated under the Indenture as
‘the Paying Agent, Trustee and Transfer Agent for the City Bond. The City specifically reserves
the right to hereafter designate and/or approve a separate Paying Agent, Transfer Agent and/or
Trustee in its discretion, subject, however to the terms and conditions of the Indenture, as
hereinafter provided.

(b}  Solong as the City Bond shall remain outstanding, the City shall maintain with the
Transfer Agent records for the registration and transfer of the City Bond. The Transfer Agent is
hereby appointed registrar for the City Bond, in which capacity the Transfer Agent shall register
in such records and permit to be transferred thereon, under such reasonable regulations as may be
prescribed, the City Bond if entitled to registration or transfer,

(©) The City shall pay or reimburse the Agent for reasonable fees for the performance
of the services normally rendered and the incurring of normal expenses reasonably and necessarily
paid as are customarily paid to paying agents, transfer agents and bond registrars, subject to
agreement between the City and the Agent. Fees and reimbursements for extraordinary services
and expenses, so long as not occasioned by the negligence, misconduct or willful default of the
Agent, shall be made by the City on a case-by-case basis, subject, where not prevented by
emergency or other exigent circumstances, to the prior written approval of the Governing Body.

(d) (i) An Agent may at any time resign and be discharged of the duties and obligations
of the function of the Trustee, Paying Agent and Transfer Agent pursuant to the
terms and conditions stated in Article 11 of the Indenture.

(i)  In the event of the resignation or removal of the Agent, a successor Agent
shall be selected as provided in Section 11,7 of the Indenture.



(iii) ~ In the event of a change of Agents, the predecessor Agent shall cease to be
custodian of any funds held pursuant to this Bond Resolution in connection with
its role as such Agent, and the successor Agent shall become such custodian;
provided, however, that before any such delivery is required to be made, all fees,
advances and expenses of the retiring or removed Agent shall be fully paid. Every
predecessor Agent shall deliver to its successor Agent all records of account,
registration records, list of Registered Owners and all other records, documents
and instruments relating to its duties as such Agent,

(iv)y  The provisions of Section 11.8 of the Indenture shall govern the acceptance
of any appointment of a successor Agent.

(v)  Should any transfer, assignment or instrument in writing be required by any
successor Agent {rom the City to more fully and certainly vest in such successor
Agent the estates, rights, powers and duties hereby vested or intended to be vested
in the predecessor Agent, any such transfer, assignment and written instruments
shall, on request, be executed, acknowledged and delivered by the City.

(vi)  The City will provide any successor Agent with certified copies of all
resolutions, orders and other proceedings adopted by the Governing Body relating
to the City Bond.

(viiy  All duties and obligations imposed hereby on an Agent or successor Agent
shall terminate upon the accomplishment of all duties, obligations and
responsibilities imposed by law or required to be performed by this Bond
Resolution.

SECTION 8. The City Bond shall be in substantially the following form, with such
appropriate variations, omissions and insertions as are permitted or required by this Bond
Resolution:

- [Remainder of this page lefi blank intentionally. ]



[CITY BOND FORM]

THIS CITY BOND HAS BEEN ASSIGNED TO
MISSISSIPPI, AS TRUSTEE (THE "TRUSTEE") UNDER AN INDENTURE OF TRUST
(THE "INDENTURE'") DATED AS OF , 2025, BY AND BETWEEN THE
MISSISSIPPI DEVELOPMENT BANK AND THE TRUSTEE. THIS CITY BOND IS
REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF THE TRUSTEE AND IS NON-TRANSFERABLE
EXCEPT AS PERMITTED IN THE INDENTURE.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
CITY OF PASS CHRISTIAN, MISSISSIPPI
GENERAIL: OBLIGATION BOND

SERIES 2025
NO. R- $
Interest Maturity Original Date of
Rate Date Issue Date Authentication
(as set forth | (as set forth , 2025 , 2025
below) below)

» Mississippi, as Assignee of the
Mississippi Development Bank

Registered Owner:

Principal Amount:

The City of Pass Christian, located in Harrison County, Mississippi (“City™), a body politic,
existing and organized under the laws of the State of Mississippi (“State”™), acknowledges itself to
owe and, for value received, hereby promises to pay in lawful money of the United States of
America the principal amounts set forth below on the corresponding maturity dates. Final payment
of principal shall be made upon the presentation and surrender of this Bond on January 1, 2040 at
the principal office of , , Mississippi, or its successor, as paying agent (“Paying
Agent”) for this General Obligation Bond, Series 2025, of the City (this “Bond™).

The City further promises to pay, in lawful money of the United States of America, interest
on such principal amounts from the date of this Bond or from the most recent interest payment
date to which interest has been paid at the applicable rate of interest set forth below on January 1
and July 1 of each year, beginning July 1, 2025 (each, an “Interest Payment Date™) until the
outstanding principal amount shall have been paid in full,




This Bond shall be payable as to principal on January 1 of each vear in the years and
principal amounts, and such portions of principal shall bear interest at the rates of interest per
annum, as hereinafter set forth:!

YEAR AMOUNT RATE OF
INTEREST
{January 1 Maturity)

2026 $110,000
2027 100,000
2028 105,000
2029 110,000
2030 115,000
2031 120,000
2032 125,000
2033 130,000
2034 135,000
2035 140,000
2036 150,000
2037 155,000
2038 160,000
2039 170,000
2040 175,000

Payments of the principal amount of this Bond and interest thereon shall be made to the
registered owner hereof who shall appear in the registration records of the City maintained by the
Paying Agent who is also the registration agent and transfer agent (“Transfer Agent™) in time to
reach said registered owner at least five Business Days (as defined in the Bond Resolution
hereinafter defined) preceding the applicable Interest Payment Date.

Payments of interest on this Bond, and payments of principal other than the final payment
of principal, shall be made by check or draft delivered or mailed to such registered owner at its
address as it appears on such registration records. Payments of principal shall be noted on the face
of this Bond by the Paying Agent and the final payment of principal on January 1, 2040 shall be
made upon presentation and surrender hereof at the principal office of the Paying Agent. The
registered owner hereof may change such address by written notice to the Transfer Agent by
certified mail, return receipt requested, or such other method as may be subsequently prescribed
by the Transfer Agent, such notice to be received by the Transfer Agent not later than the 15% day
of the calendar month preceding the Interest Payment Date that it is intended to be effective.

This Bond is registered as to both principal and interest and is issued in the form of a single
typed bond with annual maturities set forth on the face hereof in the authorized aggregate principal
amount of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) to provide funds necessary for (a) erecting municipal
buildings, auditoriums, community centers, gymnasiums and athletic stadiums, preparing and
equipping athletic fields, and purchasing buildings or land therefor, and for repairing, improving,
adorning and equipping the same and for erecting, equipping and furnishing of buildings to be

! Preliminary, subject to change.



used as a municipal or civic arts center; erecting or purchasing waterworks, gas, electric and other
public utility plants or distribution systems or franchises, and repairing, improving and extending
the same; establishing sanitary, storm, drainage or sewerage systems, and repairing, improving
and extending the same; protecting the municipality, its streets and sidewalks from overflow,
caving banks and other like dangers; constructing, improving and paving streets, sidewalks,
driveways, parkways, walkways or public parking facilities, and purchasing land therefor;
purchasing land for parks, cemeteries and public playgrounds, and improving, equipping and
adorning the same, including the constructing, repairing and equipping of swimming pools and
other recreational facilities; constructing bridges and culverts; altering or changing the channels of
streams and water courses to control, deflect or guide the current thereof; purchasing fire-fighting
equipment and apparatus, and providing housing for same, and purchasing land therefor;
purchasing or renting voting machines and any other election equipment needed in elections held
in the municipality; purchasing machinery and heavy equipment which will have an expected
useful life in excess of ten (10) years, but specifically not including any motor vehicles weighing
less than twelve thousand (12,000) pounds, and (b) paying the costs of issuance of this Bond and
the Bank Bonds (as defined herein).

This Bond is issued under the authority of the Constitution and statutes of the State,
including Sections 21-33-301 et seq. and Sections 31-25-1 et seq., Mississippi Code of 1972
(together, the “Act™), and by the further authority of proceedings duly had by the Mayor and Board
of Aldermen of the City including a resolution adopted January 7, 2025 (“Bond Resolution™).

The Bond Resolution constitutes a contract between the City, the registered owner of this
Bond and the registered owners of the Bank Bonds (as hereinafter defined). Reference is hereby
made to the Bond Resolution and to all amendments and supplements thereto for the provisions,
among others, with respect to the nature and extent of the security for the Bondholder, the rights,
duties and obligations of the City and the Bondholder and the terms upon which this Bond is or
may be issued and secured.

This Bond may be transferred or exchanged by the registered owner hereof in person or by
his attorney duly authorized in writing at the principal office of the Transfer Agent but only in the
manner and subject to the limitations set forth in the Bond Resolution, and upon surrender and
cancellation of this Bond. Upon such transfer or exchange, a new Bond of the same aggregate
principal amount and maturity and rate of interest as the surrendered Bond will be issued.

The City and Paying Agent may deem and treat the registered owner hereof as the absolute
owner hereof, whether this Bond be overdue or not, for the purpose of receiving payment of or on
account of principal hereof and redemption premium, if any and interest due hereon and for all
other purposes. All such payments so made to the registered owner shall be valid and effectual to
satisfy and discharge the liability upon this Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and
neither the City nor the Paying Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

The City will duly and punctually pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this
Bond at the dates and places and in the manner mentioned in the Bond Resolution, according to
the true intent and meaning thereof. Notwithstanding any schedule of payments on this Bond, the
City agrees to make payments upon this Bond and be liable therefor at such times and in such



amounts (including principal, premium, if any, and interest) so as to provide for payment when
due of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the $2,000,000 (not to exceed) Mississippi
Development Bank Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2025 (Pass Christian, Mississippi General
Obligation Bond Project) (the “Bank Bonds™) outstanding under the Indenture of Trust dated as of
January 1, 2025 (the “Indenture”} by and between the Mississippi Development Bank and The
Peoples Bank, Biloxi, Mississippi, as trustee (“Trustee”), whether upon a scheduled Interest
Payment Date, at maturity or by mandatory redemption or optional redemption. Payments of
principal of and interest on this Bond are to be applied to an equal and corresponding payment of
principal and interest on the Bank Bonds. .

This Bond is subject to redemption at the times, in the amounts and subject to the same
requirements as apply to the Bank Bonds as set forth in the Indenture.

THIS BOND IS NOT AN OBLIGATION OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI AND
THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST ON THE BOND IS NOT
GUARANTEED BY THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPL This Bond is and will continue to be
payable as to principal and interest out of and secured by an irrevocable pledge of the avails of
a direct and continuing tax to be levied annually without limitation as to time, rate or amount
upon all the taxable property within the geographical limits of the City;, provided, however,
that such tax levy for any year shall be abated to the extent that the City on or prior to
September 1 of that year has transferred money to the Series 2025 Bond Fund established under
the Bond Resolution, or has made other provisions for funds, to be applied toward the payment of
the principal of and interest on this Bond due during the ensuing fiscal year of the City, in
accordance with the provisions of the Bond Resolution. The City, when necessary, will levy
annually a special tax upon all taxable property within the geographical limits of the City
adequate and sufficient to provide for the payment of the principal of and the interest on this
Bond as the same falls due.

This Bond is the only evidence of indebtedness issued and outstanding under the Bond
Resolution. This Bond has been purchased by the Mississippi Development Bank, has been
assigned to the Trustee under the Indenture, is registered in the name of the Trustee and is non-
transferrable except as provided in the Bond Resolution and in the Indenture.

This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any
benefit or security under the Bond Resolution until the certificate of registration and authentication
hereon shall have been signed by the Authentication Agent,

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, RECITED AND REPRESENTED that all conditions, acts,
and things required by law to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to
and in the issuance of this Bond, in order to make the same a legal and binding general obligation
of the City according to the terms thereof, do exist, have happened and have been performed in
regular and due time, form and manner as required by law, For the performance in apt time and
manner of every official act herein required, and for the prompt payment of this Bond, both
principal and interest, the full faith and credit of the City are hereby irrevocably pledged.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Bond to be executed in its name and
on its behalf by the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor of the City, countersigned by the
manual or facsimile signature of the City Clerk of the City, under the seal of the City, which said
signatures and seal said officials adopt as and for their own proper signatures and seal, all on this
the day of , 2025,

CITY OF PASS CHRISTIAN, MISSISSIPPI

By:

Mayor

COUNTERSIGNED:

By:

City Clerk

(SEAL)

CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRATION AND AUTHENTICATION

This Bond is the Bond described in the within mentioned Bond Resolution and is the
General Obligation Bond, Series 2025, of the City of Pass Christian, Migsissippi.

» MISSISSIPPI
As Authentication Agent

By:

Authorized Officer

Date of Registration and Authentication



REGISTRATION AND VALIDATION CERTIFICATE

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
COUNTY OF HARRISON
CITY OF PASS CHRISTIAN

I, the undersigned City Clerk of Pass Christian, Mississippi, do hereby certify that the
within Bond has been duly registered by me as an obligation of said City pursuant to law in a book
kept in ray office for that purpose and the issuance of the Bond was confirmed by a validation
decree of the Chancery Court of the First Judicial District of Harrison County, Mississippi,
rendered on the day of , 2025.

City Clerk

(SEAL)



ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto
(Name and Address of Assignee)

(Insert Social Securify Number or other Tax Identification Number of Assignee)

the within Bond and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint
» attorney, to transfer the within Bond on the records kept for
registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises.

Signature Guaranteed

(Bank, Trust Company, or Date of Assignment
Transfer Agent}

NOTICE: The signature to this
Assignment must correspond with
the name as it appears upon the face
of the within Bond in every
particular manner, without alteration
or any change whatever.

Signature Guaranteed:

Authorized Officer
[END OF CITY BOND FORM]

SECTION 9. In case the City Bond shall become mutilated or be stolen, destroyed or lost,
the City shall, if not then prohibited by law, cause to be authenticated and delivered a new City
Bond of like date, number, maturity and tenor in exchange and substitution for and upon
cancellation of such mutilated City Bond, or in lieu of and in substitution for such City Bond stolen,
destroyed or lost, upon the Registered Owner's paying the reasonable expenses and charges of the
City in connection therewith, and in case of a City Bond siolen, destroyed or lost, its filing with
the City or Transfer Agent of evidence satisfactory to them that the City Bond was stolen, destroyed



or lost, and of its ownership thereof, and furnishing the City or Transfer Agent with such security
or indemnity as may be required by law or by them to save each of them harmless from all risks,
however remote.

SECTION 10. This City Bond shall be a general obligation of the City and the City hereby
irrevocably pledges its full faith, credit and taxing power for the purpose of effectuating and
providing for the payment of the principal of and interest on the City Bond as the same shall
respectively mature and acerue. For the purpose of effectuating and providing for the payment of
the principal of and interest on the City Bond as the same shall respectively mature and accrue,
there shall be and is hereby levied a direct, continuing special tax upon all of the taxable property
within the geographical limits of the City, adequate and sufficient, after allowance shall have been
made for the expenses of collection and delinquencies in the payment of taxes, to produce sums
required for the payment of the principal of and the interest on the City Bond according to the
terms thereof; provided, however, that such tax levy for any year shall be abated to the extent that
the City on or prior to September 1 of that year has transferred money to the 2025 Bond Fund of
the City Bond, or has made other provisions for funds, to be applied toward the payment of the
principal of and interest on the City Bond due during the ensuing fiscal year of the City, in
accordance with the provisions of this Bond Resolution. Said tax, if necessary, shall be extended
upon the tax rolls and collected in the same manner and at the same time as other taxes of the City
are collected, and the rate of tax which shall be so extended shall be sufficient in each year fully to
produce the sums required as aforesaid, without limitation as to time, rate or amount. The avails
of said tax are hereby irrevocably pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest on the
City Bond according to the terms thereof as the same shall respectively mature and come due.
Should there be a failure in any year to comply with the requirements of this section, such failure
shall not impair the right of the Registered Owner of the City Bond in any subsequent year to have
adequate taxes levied and collected to meet all of the aforesaid obligations of the City Bond.

SECTION 11. Only if the City Bond shall have endorsed thereon a certificate of registration
and authentication in substantially the form hereinabove set forth, duly executed by the Transfer
Agent, shall the City Bond be entitled to the rights, benefits and security of this Bond Resolution.
The City Bond shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless and until such certificate of
registration and authentication shall have been duly executed by the Transfer Agent, which
executed certificate shall be conclusive evidence of registration, authentication and delivery under
this Bond Resolution. The Transfer Agent's certificate of registration and authentication on the
City Bond shall be deemed to have been duly executed if signed by an authorized official of the
Transfer Agent, but it shall not be necessary that the same officer sign said certificate on the City
Bond that may be issued hereunder at any one time.

SECTION 12. Ownership of the City Bond shall be in the Bank or its assignee. The Person
in whose name the City Bond shall be registered in the records of the City maintained by the
Transfer Agent may be deemed the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and payment of or on
account of the principal of or premium, if any, or interest on the City Bond shall be made only to
or upon the order of the Registered Owner thereof, or his legal representative, but such registration
may be changed as hereinafter provided. All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy
and discharge the liability upon the City Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.

SECTION 13. The City Bond shall be transferable only as provided in the Indenture. Upon



the transfer of the City Bond, the City, acting through its Transfer Agent, shall issue in the name
of the transferee a new City Bond of the same principal amount and maturity and rate of interest
as the surrendered City Bond.

SECTION 14. (a) The City hereby establishes the 2025 Bond Fund which shall be
maintained with a qualified depository in its name for the payment of the principal of, premium, if
any, and interest on the City Bond, and the payment of Agents' fees in connection therewith. There
shall be deposited into the 2025 Bond Fund as and when received:

(i} The avails of any of the ad valorem taxes levied and collected pursuant to Section
10 hereof;

(ii)  Any income received from investment of monies in the 2025 Bond Fund,

(ili)  Any other funds available to the City which may be lawfully used for payment of
the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the City Bond or for other
obligations of the City which may be due under the Indenture, and which the
Governing Body, in its discretion, may direct to be deposited into the 2025 Bond
Fund.

{b) As long as any principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the City Bond or the Bank
Bonds remains outstanding and/or other obligations of the City remain outstanding under the
Indenture, the Clerk is hereby itrevocably authorized and directed to withdraw from the 2025 Bond
Fund sufficient monies to make the payments necessary (the "Payments') to pay (i) the principal
of and interest coming due on the Bank Bonds, (ii) the amounts required for the payment of the
redemption price (including interest accrued through the date of redemption and any premium due
thereon) of outstanding Bank Bonds being redeemed, and (iii) any Additional Payments (as defined
in the Indenture), and to transfer same to the account of the Trustee in time to reach the Trustee at
least five (5) Business Days prior to the date on which said amounts shall become due, without
defense or set off by reason of any dispute between the City and the Trustee. The Trustee shall
deposit all Payments received in the General Account of the General Fund of the Indenture, or such
other fund or account in the Indenture as so directed in the Indenture.

SECTION 185. (a) The City hereby establishes the 2025 Construction Fund which shall be
maintained with a qualified depository. The net proceeds received upon the sale of the City Bond
shall be deposited in the 2025 Construction Fund. Any income received from investment of monies
in the 2025 Construction Fund shall be deposited in the 2025 Construction Fund and shall be used
for the cost of the Construction Project and, if necessary, shall be deposited in the 2025 Bond Fund
for the payment of debt service on the City Bond. From the 2025 Construction Fund there shall be
held and disbursed moneys for the acquisition and construction of the Construction Project, as
authorized by the Act. Any amounts which remain in the 2025 Construction Fund after the
completion of the Construction Project shall be transferred to the 2025 Bond Fund and used as
permitted under State law,

(b) Funds on deposit in the 2025 Construction Fund may be invested in Investment
Securities, as defined in the Indenture, to the extent they are authorized by the Bank Act and
applicable provisions of State law.



SECTION 16. (a) Payment of the final installment of principal and premium, if any, on the
City Bond shall be made to the Record Date Registered Owner thereof upon the presentation and
surrender of the City Bond at the principal office of the Paying Agent.

(b) Payment of each installment of interest and principal on the City Bond shall be
made to the Record Date Registered Owner thereof. Interest and principal shall be payable in the
aforesaid manner irrespective of any transfer or exchange of such City Bond subsequent to the
Record Date and prior to the due date of such payment.

(c) Interest and principal (other than the final installment of principal) on the City Bond
shall be paid by check or draft mailed to the Record Date Registered Owner at the address
appearing in the registration records of the Transfer Agent in time to reach the Record Date
Registered Owner at least five (5) Business Days prior to an Interest Payment Date. Any such
address may be changed by written notice from the Registered Owner to the Transfer Agent by
certified mail, return receipt requested, or such other method and at the times as may be
subsequently prescribed by the Transfer Agent.

SECTION 17. The City Bond shall be submitted for validation as provided by Chapter 13,
Title 31, Mississippi Code of 1972, and to that end the Clerk is hereby directed to make up a
transcript of all legal papers and proceedings relating to the City Bond and to certify and forward
the same to the State’s Bond Attorney for the institution of validation proceedings.

SECTION 18. The City covenants to comply with each applicable requirement of the Code
and the regulations promulgated thereunder necessary to maintain the exclusion of interest on the
Bank Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and, in furtherance thereof, to
comply with a certificate of the City to be execuied and delivered concurrently with the issuance
of the City Bond and the Bank Bonds (the " Tax Certificate''), or such other covenants compliance
with which may, from time to time, be required in order to maintain the exclusion of interest on
the Bank Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The City shall not take any
action or omit to take any action, which action or omission, if reasonably expected on the date of
initial issuance and delivery of the Bank Bonds, would cause the Bank Bonds to be "private activity
bonds" or "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Sections 141(a) and 148(a), respectively, of the
Code, or any successor provisions. Notwithstanding any other provisions to the contrary, so long
as necessary in order to maintain the exclusion of interest on the Bank Bonds from gross income
for federal income tax purposes under the Code, the covenants contained in this Section 18 shall
survive the payment of the City Bond and the Bank Bonds and the interest thereon, including any
defeasance thereof,

SECTION 19. The City represents as follows:

{a)  The City shall take no action that would cause the Bank Bonds to be "federally
guaranteed” within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code;

(b)  The City shall take all necessary action to have the Bank Bonds registered within
the meaning of Section 149(a) of the Code; and

(c) The City will not employ any device or abusive transaction with respect to the
investment of the proceeds of the Bank Bonds and, to the extent necessary, the City Bond.

SECTION 20. The City hereby covenants that in connection with the Bank Bonds it shall



make, or cause to be timely made, to the United States of America any rebate payment required
by Section 148(f) of the Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder, and, to that end,
the City agrees to comply with the Tax Certificate to be executed by the City on the date of the
issuance and delivery of the City Bond and the Series 2025 Bonds, as such Tax Certificate may be
amended from time to time in accordance with its terms.

SECTION 21. The City Bond shall be sold to the Bank based on the terms and conditions
of the sale of the Bank Bonds by the Bank to the Underwriter, or, if applicable, the Purchaser,
of the Bank Bonds.

SECTION 22, The Mayor, the Clerk and/or any Authorized Officer are hereby authorized
to sign and file or cause to be filed a completed LR.S. Form 8038-G "Information Return for
Governmental Obligations” pursuant to Section 149(e) of the Code.

SECTION 23. The Mayor, the Clerk and/or any Authorized Officer are hereby authorized
to execute and deliver the Tax Cerfificate in order to comply with Section 148 of the Code and
the applicable regulations thereunder.

SECTION 24. The City may issue refunding bonds, in one or more series, with the
consent of the Bank pursuant to a supplement to this Bond Resolution or a separate resolution to
provide funds for the refunding of all or a portion of the City Bond so long as: (a) no default has
occurred and is continuing under this Bond Resolution or the Indenture; and (b) there shall have
been filed with the City and the Trustee an opinion of Bond Counsel that the exclusion from
gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on the Bank Bonds then outstanding
under the Indenture shall not be adversely affected.

Such refunding bonds shall be appropriately designated, shall be dated, shall bear
interest at a rate or rates not exceeding the maximum rate then permitted by law, shall be
numbered, shall have such paying agents and shall have such maturities and redemption
provisions, all as may be provided in the supplement to this Bond Resolution or separate
resolution of the Governing Body, authorizing the issuance of such refunding bonds.

It is intended that this Section 24 allow for the provision of refunding bonds
commensurate with the ability of the Bank to issue its refunding bonds as provided in Section
2.5 of the Indenture.

SECTION 28. (a) The Bank and the City, without the consent of the owners of any of the
Bank Bonds outstanding under the Indenture, may enter into supplements to this Bond Resolution
which shalt not be inconsistent with the terms and provisions hereof for any of the purposes
heretofore specifically authorized in this Bond Resolution or the Indenture, and in addition thereto
for the following purposes:

(i) To cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission in this Bond Resolution or the
Indenture;

(ii) To grant to or confer upon the Trustee for the benefit of the Bondholders and the
holders of the Bank Bonds any additional benefits, rights, remedics, powers or
authorities that may lawfully be granted to or conferred upon the Bondholders or
the Trustee, or to make any change which, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, does
not materially and adversely affect the interests of the Bondholders or the holders



of the Bank Bonds and does not require consent of the holders of the Bank Bonds
pursuant to Section 12.2 of the Indenture;

(iiiy  To subject to the Indenture additional revenues, properties or collateral;

(iv)  To modify, amend or supplement the Indenture or any indenture supplemental
thereto in such manner as to permit the qualification thereof under the Trust
Indenture Act of 1939 or any similar federal statute hereafter in effect or to
permit the qualification of the Bank Bonds for sale under the securities laws of
the United States of America or of any of the states of the United States of
America, and, if they so determine, to add to the Indenture or any indenture
supplemental thereto such other terms, conditions and provisions as may be
permitted by said Trust Indenture Act of 1939 or similar federal statute;

(v) To evidence the appointment of a separate or co-trustee or the succession of a
new Trustee under the Indenture or the succession of a new Agent; and

(vi)  In connection with issuance of refunding bonds in accordance with Section 24
above.

(b) The provisions of this Bond Resolution may be amended in any particular with the
written consent of the Bank and the owners of not less than a majority of the aggregate principal
amount of Bank Bonds then outstanding; provided, however, that no such amendment may be
adopted without the consent of all of the owners of the Bank Bonds which effects (i} an extension
of the maturity of the principal of or the interest or redemption date on the City Bond or any Bank
Bond, or (ii) a reduction in the principal amount of the City Bond or any Bank Bond or change in
the rate of interest or redemption premium thereon, or (iii) a privilege or priority of any Bank Bond
or Bonds over any other Bank Bond or Bonds, or (iv) a reduction in the percentage of owners of
the Bank Bonds required for such amendment, or (v) the creation of any lien securing any of the
Bank Bonds other than a lien ratably securing all of the Bank Bonds at any time outstanding under
the Indenture, or (vi) any modification of the trusts, powers, rights, obligations, duties, remedies,
immunities and privileges of the Trustee without the written consent of the Trustee,

©) If at any time the Bank and the City shall request the Trustee to consent fo a
proposed amendment for any of the purposes of this Section 25, the Trustee shall, upon being
satisfactorily indemnified with respect to expenses, cause notice of the proposed execution of such
proposed amendment to be given in the manner required by the Indenture to amend the Indenture.
Such notice shall briefly set forth the nature of the proposed amendment and shall state that copies
thereof are on file at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee for inspection by all holders
of Bank Bonds. If, within 60 days or such longer period as shall be prescribed by the Bank
following such notice, the owners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the
Bank Bonds outstanding at the time of the execution of any such proposed amendment shall have
consented to and approved the execution thereof as herein provided, no owner of any Bank Bond
shall have any right to object to any of the terms and provisions contained therein, or the operation
thereof, or in any manner to question the propriety of the execution thereof, or to enjoin or restrain
the Trustee, the City or the Bank from executing or approving the same or from taking any action
pursuant to the provisions thereof. Upon the execution of any such proposed amendment as in this
Section permitted and provided, this Bond Resolution shall be and be deemed to be modified and
amended in accordance therewith.



(d) Copies of any such supplement or amendment shall be filed with the Trustee and
delivered to the Bank and the City before such supplement or amendment may become effective.

SECTION 26. The Mayor, the Clerk and/or an Authorized Officer of the Governing Body
are authorized to execute and deliver such resolutions, agreements, certificates and other
documents as are required for the sale, issuance and delivery of the City Bond.

SECTION 27. The Indenture is hereby made a part of this Bond Resolution as though set
forth in full herein and shall be, and the same hereby is, approved in substantially the form attached
as EXHIBIT A hereto. The Mayor, the Clerk and/or an Authorized Officer of the Governing Body
arc hereby authorized to approve such additional changes as may be requested or approved by the
Bank. The Governing Body hereby approves and acknowledges the Indenture and the terms and
provisions thereof and recognizes that many items governing the terms and conditions of the City
Bond are based upon terms, limitations and conditions provided in the Indenture. The Peoples
Bank, Biloxi, Mississippi, is hereby approved to serve as trustee under the Indenture.

SECTION 28. The City Bond Purchase Agreement, in the form submitted to this meeting,
is hereby made a part of this Bond Resolution as though set forth in full herein and shall be, and
the same hereby is, approved in substantially the form attached as EXHIBIT B hereto. The Mayor,
the Clerk and/or an Authorized Officer of the Governing Body are hereby authorized and directed
to execute and deliver the City Bond Purchase Agreement for and on behalf of the City in
substantially the form attached hereto, with such completions, changes, insertions and
modifications as may be approved by said officers, said execution being conclusive evidence of
such approval.

SECTION 29. The Bond Purchase Agreement, in the form submitted to this meeting, is
hereby made a part of this Bond Resolution as though set forth in full herein and shall be, and the
same hereby is, approved in substantially the form attached as EXHIBIT C hereto. The Mayor,
the Clerk and/or an Authorized Officer of the Governing Body are hereby authorized and directed
to execute and deliver the Bond Purchase Agreement for and on behalf of the City, with such
completions, changes, insertions and modifications as may be approved by said officers, including
without limitation any changes as may be necessary to reflect that the Bank Bonds are privately
placed to a Purchaser identified by the Underwriter, said execution being conclusive evidence of
such approval, subject to the following conditions: (a) a total amount of Bank Bonds, in one or
more series, not to exceed a total aggregate principal amount of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000);
(b) the Bank Bonds will bear interest at the rates to be provided in the Indenture and shall not bear
a greater overall interest rate to maturity than eleven percent (11%) per annum; (¢) approval by the
City of the sale of the City Bond to the Bank evidenced by the City's execution of the City Bond
Purchase Agreement; (d) maturity schedule for the Bank Bonds of not to exceed twenty (20) years
from the date of issuance; and (e) terms and provisions of the Bank Bonds in compliance with the
Act.

SECTION 30. The Private Placement Agreement, in the form submitted (o this meeting,
is hereby made a part of this Bond Resolution as though set forth in full herein and shall be, and
the same hereby is, approved in substantially the form attached as EXHIBIT D hereto. The Mayor,
the Clerk and/or an Authorized Officer are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver
the Private Placement Agreement with such completions, changes, insertions and modifications as
may be approved by said officers, with execution being conclusive evidence of such approval.

SECTION 31. The Mayor, the Clerk and/or an Authorized Officer are hereby



authorized and directed to si gn requisitions and perform such other acts as may be necessary to
authorize the payment by the Trustee for the Bank Bonds on the closing date of the Bank Bonds
of the costs of issuance of said Bank Bonds and costs of issuance for the City Bond of the City.

SECTION 32. The Mayor, the Cletk and/or an Authorized Officer are hereby
authorized and directed to make all final determinations necessary to finalize the Indenture and
the sale of the Bank Bonds, including, but not limited to, the form thereof, manner of sale, the
date of sale, the dated date and payment dates of the Bank Bonds, the final principal amount of
the Bank Bonds, the interest rate or rates to be borne by the Bank Bonds, the maturity schedule
relating to the Bank Bonds, the redemption terms of the Bank Bonds, the purchase price or
prices to be paid for the Bank Bonds and any other terms thereof; provided, however, that all
such determinations -shall be made subject to approval by the Bank, to be evidenced by the
execution of the Bond Purchase Agreement for the sale of the Bank Bonds. To that end, the
Mayor, the Clerk and/or an Authorized Officer are hereby authorized to execute and deliver a
Commitment Letter with the Purchaser(s) identified by the Underwtiters on such tetms as shall
be approved by the officer(s) executing and delivering the same.

SECTION 33, The Mayor, the Clerk and/or an Authorized Officer are hereby authorized
and directed to execute and deliver any additional documents, agreements, instruments,
requisitions and certificates, which are required in connection with the sale and issuance of the
Bank Bonds and the City Bond. Notwithstanding any other provision herein or in any
attachments hereto, the Governing Body further authorizes any necessary changes to the name
or title or series designation of the Bank Bonds or the City Bond and corresponding changes to
any of the related documents approved hereby if it is determined, after consultation with the
Municipal Advisor, that it is in the best interest of the City for the Bank Bonds to be issued at a
later date or in one or more tax-exempt or taxable series, as municipal bond market conditions
may dictate.

SECTION 34. Upon the recommendation of the Municipal Advisor, the Mayor, the
. Clerk and/or an Authorized Officer are hereby authorized to apply for, execute and deliver, a
commitment for the provision of municipal bond insurance and any additional documents and
certificates which are required by any provider of such municipal bond insurance selected to
provide credit enhancement in connection with the issuance of the Bank Bonds. Such insurer
shall be selected by the Bank and the City following negotiations with prospective insurers by
the Municipal Advisor. Any changes, insertions and omissions as may be required by the
provider of the municipal bond insurance to the Indenture and the City Bond are to be approved
by the City and the Bank, and the execution of the commitment for said municipal bond
insurance being conclusive evidence of such approval. Payment of the premiums, if applicable,
for such municipal bond insurance out of the proceeds of the Bank Bonds is hereby approved.
The Mayor, the Clerk and/or an Authorized Officer are hereby authorized to execute and deliver,
if applicable, the commitment for municipal bond insurance on behalf of the Bank and/or the
City. '

SECTION 35. The Mayor, the Clerk and/or an Authorized Officer are authorized to
execute and deliver such resolutions, agreements, certificates and other documents as are
requited for the sale, issuance and delivery of the City Bond. The Governing Body further
authorizes Bond Counsel, the City Attorney of the City and the Municipal Advisor to prepare
and distribute all necessary documents and to do all things required in order to negotiate the sale
of the Bank Bonds and to effectuate the sale and issuance of the City Bond and the Bank Bonds.



SE.CTION 36, The Mayor, the Clerk and/or an Authorized Officer are hereby authorized -
and directed to make all final determinations necessary in connection with the City Bond,
including, but not limited to, the form thereof, the manner of sale, the date of sale, the dated
date and payment dates, the final principal amount of the City Bond, the interest rate or rates to
be borne by the City Bond, the maturity schedule relating to the City Bond, the redemption
terms of the City Bond, and the price to be paid for the City Bond and any other terms thereof,
subject to the provisions of the Act and this Bond Resolution.

SECTION 37. If any one or more of the provisions of this Bond Resolution shall for any
reason be held to be illegal or invalid, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any of the other
provisions of this Bond Resolution, but this Bond Resolution shall be construed and enforced as
if such illegal or invalid provision or provisions had not been contained herein.

SECTION 38. All orders, resolutions or proceedings of the Governing Body in conflict
with any provision hereof shall be, and the same are hereby repealed, rescinded and set aside,
but only to the extent of such conflict. For cause, this Bond Resolution shall become effective
upon the adoption hereof.



EXHIBIT A
FORM OF INDENTURE



EXHIBIT B
FORM OF CITY BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT



EXHIBIT C
FORM OF BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT



EXHIBIT D
FORM OF PRIVATE PLACEMENT AGREEMENT



BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT

THIS BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is dated January ,
2025, by and between the MISSISSIPPI DEVELOPMENT BANK (the "Bank"), a public body
corporate and politic of the State of Mississippi (the “State”), created pursuant to the provisions of
Section 31-25-1 et seq., Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended (the "Act"), having its principal
place of business in the City of Jackson, Mississippi, and CITY OF PASS CHRISTIAN,
MISSISSIPPI (the "City"), a local governmental unit under the Act.

WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Bank is authorized to purchase securities (as defined
in the Act) issued by local governmental units (as defined in the Act); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Aldermen of the City adopted
January 7, 2025 (the “City Bond Resolution”), the City has duly authorized the issuance of its bond
designated City of Pass Christian, Mississippi, General Obligation Bond, Series 2025 in the form
of one fully registered bond in the maximum principal amount of Five Million Dollars
($5,000,000), to be dated the date of delivery (the "City Bond"), as authorized under Sections 21-
33-301 et seq., Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended (the "City Bond Act"), and desires to sell
the City Bond to the Bank in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement as
authorized under the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Bank has authorized the issuance of its bonds designated Mississippi
Development Bank Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2025 (Pass Christian, Mississippi General
Obligation Bond Project), to be dated the date of delivery (the "Series 2025 Bonds"), the proceeds
of which will be used to purchase the City Bond and for related purposes, pursuant to an Indenture
of Trust (the "Indenture”), by and between the Bank and The Peoples Bank, Biloxi, Mississippi,
as trustee (the “Trustee™), as permitted by the Indenture; and

WHEREAS, the City will direct, and the Indenture requires, the Trustee to deposit the
purchase price of the City Bond into the 2025 Construction Fund established under the City Bond
Resolution, or as otherwise authorized under the Indenture, to fund the Project (as defined in the
City Bond Resolution);

NOW, THEREFORE, the Bank and the City agree:

Section 1, Purchase of City Bond. Subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, the Bank hereby agrees to purchase the City Bond and the City hereby agrees to sell
to the Bank the City Bond at the price of $ (representing the par value of the Series
2025 Bonds which is $2,000,000.00, plus $ original issue premium, less placement
agent’s fee of § ,less § to be deposited in the Bond Issuance Expense

Account (as defined in the Indenture)), which purchase price is to be transferred by the Trustee to
the 2025 Construction Fund under the City Bond Resolution in payment of the City Bond. The
terms of the City Bond are as set forth in the City Bond Resolution and incorporated herein by
reference.



Section 2. Conditions Precedent to Purchase of the City Bond. The City will take all
action required by law to enable it to issue and sell its City Bond to the Bank. The City’s obligation
to issue and sell the City’Bond and the Bank’s obhgatlon to purchase the City Bond are expressly
contingent upon Clty s taking all steps and receiving all approvals required by the laws of the State
of Mississippi to issue the City Bond, including, but not all inclusive, the following:

i) Delivery of a transcript of pmceedmgs of the City in
coniiection with the authorization, issuance, sale and
validation: of the City Bond in compliance with the City
Bond Act and the Act;

(i)  Execution and delivery of this Agreement for the sale of the
City Bond to the Bank;

(iii) Reserved;

(iv)  Delivery of a certificate of an authorized officer of the City
stating that no event of defanlt under the City Bond
Resolution nor an event which with notice or lapse of time
or both would become an event of default tinder the City
Bond Resolution has oceurred and is continuing;

(v)  Delivery of an opinion of bond counsel satisfactory to the.
Bank which shall set forth, among other things, that the City
Bond is the valid and binding general obligation of the City;
and that this Agreement and the City Bond Resolution are
valid and binding obligations of the City enforceable in
accordance with their terms (subject to standard assumptions
and exceptions);

{(vi)  Such further documents, certificates and opinions as may be
required by the Indenture, this Agreement, the Bank Bond
Purchase Agreement to be entered into by and among the

Baiik, the City and the purchaser(s) of the Series 2025 Bonds

* with respect therefo, and the Private Placement Agreement
to be entered into by and among the Bank, the City and
Raymond James & Associates, Inc,, Memphis, Tennessee,
with respect to the Series 2025 Bonds.

Section 3. Payment of the City Bond: Security.

() The City Bond shall be a general obligation of the City and the City hereby
irtevocably pledges its full faith, credit and taxing power for the purpose of effectuating and
providing for the payment of the principal of and interest on the City Bond as the same shall
respectively mature and accrue. For the purpose of effectuating and providing for the payment of



the principal of and interest on the City Bond as the same shall respectively mature and accrue,
there shall be and is hereby levied a direct, continuing special tax upon all of the taxable property
within the geographical limits of the City, adequate and sufficient, after allowance shall have been
made for the expenses of collection and delinquencies in the payment of taxes, to produce sums
required for the payment of the principal of and the interest on the City Bond according to the
terms thereof; provided, however, that such tax levy for any year shall be abated to the extent that
the City on or prior to September 1 of that year has transferred money o the 2025 Bond Fund
established under the City Bond Resolution, or has made other provisions for funds, to be applied
toward the payment of the principal of and interest on the City Bond due during the ensuing fiscal
year of the City, in accordance with the provisions of the City Bond Resolution. Said tax, if
necessary, shall be extended upon the tax rolls and collected in the same manner and at the same
time as other taxes of the City are collected, and the rate of tax which shall be so extended shall be
sufficient in each year fully to produce the sums required as aforesaid, without limitation as to
time, rate or amount: The avails of said tax are hereby irrevocably pledged for the payment of the
principal of and interest on the City Bond according to the terms thereof as the same shall
respectively mature and come due.

(i)  The City further agrees that it will deposit with the Paying Agent for the City Bond,
which i also the Trustee under the Indenture, no later than five Business Days (as defined in the
City Bond Resolution) prior to each principal or interest payment date of the City Bond, sufficient
monies to pay the principal of and interest payments on the City Bond scheduled to be paid on
such payment date, including past due amounts, if any, which deposit shall be used to pay the
principal of and accrued interest on the City Bond due on such payment date, continuing to January
1, 2040,

(iii)  The City acknowledges and agrees that failiire to make cach such deposit when due
in an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest payments on the City Bond scheduled
to be paid on the next payment date, including past due amounts, if any, will be an Bvent of Default
under the Indenture entitling the Trustee to exercise certain remedies under the Indenture,
including the acceleration of all principal and interest due on the City Bond and the Series 2025
Bonds.

Section4.  ‘Redemption. The City Bond is subject to mandatory sinking fund
redemption as provided therein. Upon written request of the City, which request may be made at
any time specifying a redemptzon date on or after J arary 1,20__, the Bank agrees to redeem the
Series 2025 Bonds, in whole or in part, as specified in such natme provided however, that such
redemption shall be pursuant to and as required by the City Bond Resolution and the Indenture,

Section 5. Tax Covenants. The City bereby acknowledges the tax-related covenants
sot forth in Sections 18 through 20 of the City Bond Resolution and hereby agrees with and
covenants to the Bank that it will fully comply with such covenants as set forth therein and will
give the Bank written notice of any known violation or breach of such covenants and agreements
as each may apply to the City Bond or the Series 2025 Bonds only.

Section6. . Rebate, To the extent the City Bond or the Series 2025 Bonds are subject
to the rebate requirement as set for in Section 148(f) of the Tnternal Revenue Code of 1986, as



amended, and the Regulations promulgated thereunder (the "Rebate Requirement™), the City
agrees to pay to the Bank for prompt payment to, or to provide evidence to the Bank of payment
to, the United States of America of the Rebate Requirement determined by the City to result from
the investment of moneys that constitute gross proceeds of the City Bond or the Series 2025 Bonds.
The City agrees to provide documentation to the Bank showing the computation of the Rebate
Requirement and payment of such Rebate Requirement when required,

Section 7. Assipnment of City Bond. The City and the Bank agree that the City Bond
and the payments to be made thereon may be pledged or assigned by the Bank to the Trustee under
and pursuant to the Indenture,

Section 8. Financial Reporting. The City agrees to furnish to the Bank as long as any
portion of the City Bond remains outstanding annual financial reports, audit reports and such other
financial information as is reasonably requested by the Bank, 1nclud1ng information which
concerns the City’s and the Bank’s obligation to tebate excess earnings according to the Rebate
Requirement with respect to the City Bond or the Series 2025 Bonds,

Section 9. Reserved,

Section 10.  Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall for any reason be
held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not
affect any of the remaining provisiohs of the Agreement and this Agreement shall be construed
and enforced as if such invalid or unenforceable provision had not been contained herein,

Section 11.  Reserved.

Section 12.  Indemnity. The City will, to the fullest extent permitted by law, protect,
indemnify and save the Bank and its officers, agents and employees and any person who controls
the Bank within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933, harmless from and against all liabilities,
losses, damages, costs, expenses (including attorneys’ fef;s and expenses of the Bank), taxes,
causes of action, suits, claims, demands and judgements of any nature arising from:

(2)  violation of any agreement, provision or condition of the
City Bond Resolution, the City Bond or the Indenture except
a violation by the Bank;

(b)  any statement or inforfnation relating to the expenditure of
the proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds or the City Bond
contained in the "Tax Certificate” or similar documeit
furnished by the City to the Bank which, at the time made,
is misleading, untrue or incorrect in any material respect; and

(c) any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a
materidl fact contained in any offering material relating to
the sale or marketing of the Series 2025 Bonds (as from time
to time amended or supplemented) or arising out of or based



upon the omission or alleged omission to state therein a
material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in
order to make the statements therein not misleading, or
failure to properly register or otherwise qualify the sale of
the Series 2025 Bowds or failure to comply with any
licensing or other law or regulation which would affect the
‘manner whereby or to whom the Series 2025 Bonds could
be sold.

Promptly after receipt by the Bank or any such other indemnified person, as the case may
be, of notice of the commencement of any action with respect to which indemnity may be sought
against the City under this Section, such person will notify the City in writing of the
commmericement thereof, and, subject to the provisions hereinafier stated, the City shall assume the
defense of guch action (including the employment of counsel, who shall be counsel reasonably
satisfactory to the Bank, or such other person as the case may be, and the payment of expenses).
Insofar as such action shall relate to any alleged liability with respect to which indemnity may be
sought against the City, the Bank or any such other indemnified person shall have the right to
employ separate counsel in any such action and to participate in the defense thereof, but the foes
and expenses of such counsel shall not be at the expense of the City unless the employment of such
Counse] has been specifically authorized by the City. The City shall not be liable to indemmify
any person for any setflement of any such action effected without its consent.

The provisions of this Section shall survive the payment and discharge of the Series 2025
Bonds,

Section 13.  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more
counterparts, any of which shall be regarded for all purposes as an original and all of which
constitnte but one and the same instrument. The Bank and the City each agree that it will execute
any and all documents or other instruments and take such other actions as may be necessary to
- give effect to the terms of this Agreement.

Section 14,  Waiver, No waiver by either the Bank or the City of any term or condition
of this Agreement shall be deemed or construed as a waiver of any other fetins or conditions, hor
shall a waiver of any breach be deemed to constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach, whether

of the same or of a d1fferent sectlon, subsection, pa.ragmph clause phrase or other provision of

~thig A BresTEnL,

Section 15.  Entire Agreement. 'This Agreement merges and supersedes all pitor
negotiations, tepresentations, and agreements between the Bank and the City relating to the subject
maiter hereof'and constitutes the entire agreement between the Bank and the City in respect hereof,

[The remainder of this page intentiondlly left blank]



IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, we have hereunto set our hands as of the day of January,
2025, :

MISSISSIPPI DEVELOPMENT BANK

By:

Fxecutive Director

ATTEST:

Assistant Secretary

Signature Page to City Bond Purchase Agreement, dated as of January __, 2025 between

i

the Mississippi Development Bank and the City of Pass Christian, Mississippi.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands as of the day of January,

2025,
CITY OF PASS CHRISTIAN, MISSISSIPPI
By:
Mayor
ATTEST:
By:

City Clerk

Signatare Page to City Bond Purchase Agreement, dated as of Jannary __, 2025 between
the Mississippi Development Bank and the City of Pass Christian, Mississippi.



PRIVATE PLACEMENT AGREEMENT

This PRIVATE PLACEMENT AGREEMENT, dated January _ , 2025 (this
"Placement Agreement"), is by and among the MISSISSIPPI DEVELOPMENT BANK (the
"Bank"), a public body corporate and politic of the State of Mississippi (the "State") exercising
essential public functions, CITY OF PASS CHRISTIAN, MISSISSIPPI (the "City"), a body
politic existing under the Constitution and laws of the State, and RAYMOND JAMES &
ASSOCIATES, INC., Memphis, Tennessee (the "Placement Agent™).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of a resolution adopted on January 7, 2025 (the
"City Bond Resolution"), the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the City (the “Governing Body™),
acting for and on behalf of the City, have authorized the issuance of the City's General Obligation
Bond, Series 2025 (the "City Bond"), in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed $2,000,000
and the sale thereof to the Bank; and

WHEREAS, the City Bond is being issued for the purpose of providing financing for (a)
certain capital projects and improvements which shall consist of any of the following: erecting
municipal buildings, auditoriums, community centers, gymnasiums and athletic stadiums,
preparing and equipping athletic fields, and purchasing buildings or land therefor, and for
repairing, improving, adorning and equipping the same and for erecting, equipping and furnishing
of buildings to be used as a municipal or civic arts center; erecting or purchasing waterworks, gas,
clectric and other public utility plants or distribution systems or franchises, and repairing,
improving and extending the same; establishing sanitary, storm, drainage or sewerage systems, and
repairing, improving and extending the same; protecting the municipality, its streets and sidewalks
from overflow, caving banks and other like dangers; constructing, improving and paving streets,
sidewalks, driveways, parkways, walkways or public parking facilities, and purchasing land
therefor; purchasing land for parks, cemeteries and public playgrounds, and improving,
equipping and adorning the same, including the constructing, repairing and equipping of swimming
pools and other recreational facilities; constructing bridges and culverts; altering or changing the
channels of streams and water courses to control, deflect or guide the current thereof; purchasing
fire-fighting equipment and apparatus, and providing housing for same, and purchasing land
therefor; purchasing or renting voting machines and any other election equipment needed in
elections held in the municipality; purchasing machinery and heavy equipment which will have an
expected useful life in excess of ten (10) years, but specifically not including any motor vehicles
weighing less than twelve thousand (12,000) pounds (the "City Bond Project"); and (b) paying
costs of issuance for the City Bond and the Bonds (hereinafter defined).

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms and provisions of an Indenture of Trust, dated as of
January 1, 2025 (the "Indenture"), by and between the Bank and The Peoples Bank, Biloxi,
Mississippi, as trustee (the "Trustee"), and the provisions of a resolution adopted by the Board of
the Bank on January , 2025 (the "Bank Resolution"), the Bank will issue its not to exceed
$2,000,000 Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2025 (Pass Christian, Mississippi General Obligation
Bond Project) (the "Bonds") to provide funds to purchase the City Bond, to pay capitalized interest
on the Bonds, and the City Bond, if any, and to pay the costs incident to the sale and issuance of
the Bonds and the City Bond (the "Project"); and




WHEREAS the Bonds are more fully described in the Indenture and in Schedule 1
attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, the Bank hag employed the Placement Agent to act as its agent in connection
with the private placement of the Bonds.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the covenants herein made, and upon
the terms and subject to the conditions herein set forth, the parties hereto agree as follows:

Section 1. Definitions, All capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise herein defined shall
have the meanings ascribed to them in the Indenture and the City Bond Resolution.

Section 2. Appointment of Placement Agent. Pursuant to the Tndenture, the Bank Resolution,
the City Bond Resolution and this Placement Agreement, the Bank and the City hereby appoint the
Placement Agent as exclusive placement agent with respect to the Bonds, and the Placement Agent
~ hereby accepts such appointment, with such duties as described herein, in the Indenture and in the
City Bond Resolution,

Section 3. Placement of the Bonds. The Placement Agent hereby agrees, as the agent of the Bank
and the City, to place the Bonds with N Mi‘ssissippi, its affiliates, assigns
or nominees (the "Purchaser"), pursuant to the terms set forth in the Purchaser’s Commitment
Letter, attached hereto as Schedule II. The Purchaser is to purchase the Bonds at the purchase price
as set forth in Schedule 111 (the "Purchase Price™). It is understood that the purchase of the Bonds
by the Purchaser is subject to (a) receipt by the Placement Agent of an opinion of Wise Carter
Child & Caraway, a Professional Association, Gulfport, Mississippi ("Bend Counsel") to the
effect that the Bonds constitute legal, valid and binding limited obligations of the Bark enforceable
in accordance with the terms thereof and are payable from and secured only by the certain payments
and funds to be received by the Bank and the Trustee and pledged to the Bonds underthe Indenture,

and to the effect that the interest on the Bonds is exempt from federal and State of Mississippi
income faxes under existing laws, regulations, Tulings and judicial decisions; (b) the deélivery of
certificates in form and tenor satisfactory to the Placement Agent and the Purchaser evidencing the
proper execution and delivery of the Bonds and receipt of payment therefor, including statements
of the Bank and the City, dated as of the date of such delivery, to the effect that there is no litigation
pending or, to the knowledge of the signer or signers thereof, threatened relating to the issuance,

sale and delivery of the Bonds or the City Bond; and (c) satisfaction of other conditions specified
in the Indenture, the City Bond Resolution and the Bond Purchase Agreement among the Bank,

the City and the Purchaser (the "Bond Purchase Agreement"”), The Placement Agent shall be
required to deposit or cause the Purchaser to deposit the Purchase Price with the Trustee on ot
before January __, 2025, or such later date to which the Purchasers and the parties may agree (the
"Closing Date"}, as set forth in Schedule 11l attached hereto. Subject to the acquisition of the
Bonds by the Purchaser, the Trustes will pay $ from the proceeds of the Bonds or from
other funds of the City to the Placement Agent for its Placement Agent Fee (the "Placement Agent
Fee") on or after the Closing Date. [The Bonds will be placed on the Closing Date with the
Purchaser pursuant to the facilities of the Depository Trust Company in accordance with the
exemptions set forth in Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commisgsion.]




Section 4. Tax Exemption. Bond Counsel will deliver an opinion to the effect that interest on
the Bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes under existing statntes,
regulations, rulings and court decisions, subject to customary qualifications.

Section 5. Payment of Purchase Price. The Placement Agent agrees that it will fund or cause the
Purchaser to directly fund the Purchase Price in immediately available funds pursuant to directions
ofthe City on the Closing Date. Ifthe Placement Agent or Purchaser does not transfer to the Trustee
the Purchase Price of the Bonds to be acquired by it or the Purchasers otherwise refuse to acquire
the Bonds, the Placement Agent will use its reasonable best efforts to arrange for substitute
Purchasers for the Bonds on the tefms set forth in Section 3.

Section 6. Limitation. Nothing contained in this Placement Agreement shall obligate the
Placement Agent to purchase the Bonds in the event the Purchasers fail to pay the Purchase Price
of the Bonds or in the event the Placement Agent is unable to arrange for substitute Purchasers to
purchase the Bonds.

Section 7. Fees and Expenses. The Placement Agent Fee set forth herein represents the total
eompensation due to the Placement Agent for its services under this Placement Agreement. The
City is responsible for all other expenses and fees due in connection with the sale, delivery and
issuance of the Bonds which are to be paid from the balance of the proceeds of the Bonds not
utilized for the Project or from other funds of the City.

Section 8. Obligations of Placement Agent. The Bank and the City acknowledge and agree that
this Placement Agreement does not constitute a guarantee by the Placement Agent to arrange the
placement of the Bonds. It is understood that the Placement Agent's obligations under this
Placement Agreement are to uge reasonable efforts throughout the term of this Placement
Agreement to perform the services described herein. The Bank and the City acknowledge and
agree that the Placement Agent is being retained to act solely as placement agent for the Bonds,
and not as an agent, advisor or fiduciary to the Bank or the City, and that this Placement Agreement.
is niot intended to confer rights or benefits on any member, affiliate, sharcholder or creditor of the
Bank or the City or any other person or entity or to provide the Bank or the City or any other person
with any assurances that the transaction will be consummated.

The Placement Agent shall act as an independent contractor under this Placement
Agreement, and not in any other capacity, including as a fiduciary. The Bank and the City
aoknowledge and agree that: (i) the transaction contemplated by the Placement Agreement is an
arm's length, commercial transaction among the Bank, the City and the Placement Agent ini which
the Placement Agent is acting solely as a principal and is not acting as a municipal advisor,
financial advisor or fiduciary to the Bank or the City; (ii) the Placement Agent has not assumed
any advisory or fiduciary responsibility to the Bank or the City with respect to the transaction
contemplated hereby and the discussions, undertakings and procedures leading thereto
(irrespective of whether the Placement Agent has provided other services or is currently providing
other services fo the City on other matters); (iii) the only obligations the Placement Agent has to
the Bank or the City with respect to the transaction contemplated hereby expressly are set forth in
this Placement Agreement; and (iv) the Bank and the City have consulted their own legal,
accounting, tax, financial and other advisors, as applicable, to the extent it has deemed appropriate.



Section 9. Governing Law. This Placement Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Mississippi.

Section 10, Counterparts. This Placement Agreement may be executed in one or more
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which, when taken together, shall
constitute but one and the same instrument,

Section 11. Binding Effect. This Placement Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the
benefit of, the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns, except that no party hereto
may assign any of its rights or obligations hereunder without the consent of the other party.
Section 12. Investor Letf_er. The Purchaser shall execute an Investor Letter in substance and in
form attached as Appendix C to the Commitment Letter attached hereto as Schedule I1.

Section 13, [DTC and CUSIPs]; No Rating or Offering Document. [The Bonds shall be
registered with the Depository Trust Company, New York, New York and assigned CUSIPs]. The
Bonds shall not be (i) assigned a separafe rating by any municipal securities agency, or (ii) issued
pursuant to any type of offering document or official staternent.

[re111é1inder of page left intentionally blank]




IN WITNESS WHEREDF,_ the parties hereto have caused this Placement Agreement to
be executed by their respective duly authorized representatives as of the day and year first above
“written.

RAYMOND JAMES & ASSOCIATES,
INC., as Placement Agent

By:

Managing Director

MISSISSIPPI DEVELOPMENT BANK

By
Executive Director
ATTEST:
By
Secretary
CITY OF PASS CHRISTIAN,
MISSISSIPPI
(SEAL)
By:
Mayor
ATTEST:
By:
City Clerk



SCHEDULE I*

" $2,000,000 (not to exceed)

Due: January 1, 2040, as follows:

Maturity Par Interest
Date Amount Rate
January 1 of:
2026 $110,000
2027 100,000
2028 105,000
2029 110,000
2030 115,000
2031 120,000
2032 125,000
2033 130,000
2034 135,000
2035 140,000
2036 150,000
2037 155,000
2038 160,000
2039 170,000
2040 175,000
Total $2,000,000

“*Preliminary, subject to change.




SCHEDULE I

TERM SHEETS

S-H



SCHEDULE I
PURCHASE PRICE

Par Amount of Bonds $2.000,000.00

AGGREGATE PURCHASE PRICE $2:000,000.00




$2,000,000
MISSISSIPPI DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2025
(PASS CHRISTIAN, MISSISSIPPI GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND PROJECT)

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT

January _, 2025

Executive Director

Mississippi Development Bank
735 Riverside Drive, Suite 300
Jackson, Mississippi 39202

City of Pass Christian, Mississippi
200 West Scenic Drive
Pass Christian, Mississippi 39571

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned (the "Purchaser"), being duly authorized,
offers to enter into the following agreement with the Mississippi Development Bank (the "Bank")
and the City of Pass Christian, Mississippi (the "City") which, upon your acceptance of this offer
as evidenced by your execution hereof, will be in full force and effect in accordance with its terms
and binding upon the Bank, the Purchaser and the City.

This offer is made subject to acceptance by you of this agreement on or before 5:00 o'clock
P.M., Jackson, Mississippi time on January ___, 2025. Unless otherwise provided, the terms used
in this Bond Purchase Agreement have the meanings set forth in the Indenture of Trust to be dated
as of January 1, 2025 (the "Indenture"), between the Bank and The Peoples Bank, Biloxi,
Mississippi, as trustee (the "Trustee"), as previously approved by the Bank and the City.

1. Upon the terms and conditions and upon the basis of the representations, warranties
and covenants hereinafter set forth, the Purchaser hereby agrees to purchase from the Bank, and
the Bank hereby agrees to sell to the Purchaser, (i) all (but not less than all) of the $2,000,000
aggregate principal amount of the Bank's Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2025 (Pass Christian,
Mississippi General Obligation Bond Project), dated the date of delivery (the "Series 2025
Bonds"), at the purchase price of $2,000,000 (such price representing the principal amount of the
Series 2025 Bonds). The Series 2025 Bonds will be limited obligations of the Bank and will be
issued under and pursuant to, and are to be secured by, the Indenture. The Series 2025 Bonds shall
be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on the date or dates as stated in Exhibit I hereto,
shall bear interest payable on January 1 and July 1, beginning July 1, 2025, and semi-annually
thereafter on January 1 and July 1 in each year, at the rate or rates as stated in Exhibit I hereto,
shall be redeemable prior to maturity and shall have the other terms and provisions as stated in the
Indenture.



2. The Purchaser will execnte and deliver to the Bank and the City at the Closing (as
hereinafter defined) an investment letter of the Purchaser in connection with its purchase of the
Series 2025 Bonds ini form and substance satisfactory to the Bank and thé City. [The Purchaset
acknowledges that the Bonds shall be registered with the Depository Trust Company, New York,
New York and assigned CUSIPs]. The Bonds shall not be (i) assigned a separate rating by any
municipal securities agency, or (ii} issued pursuant to any type of offering document or official
staternent. g

3. The Bank represents that it has, or agrees to, authorize, execute and deliver the
Indenture, this Bond Purchase Agreement, the separate Bond Purchase Agreement dated as of the
date hereof, between the City and the Bank (the "City Bond Purchase Agreement") and the Private
Placement Agreement among the Bank, the City and Raymond James & Associates, Inc.,
Meinphis, Ténnessee (the “Private Placement Agreement”), prior to the date of Closing with only
such changes therein from the forms thereof on the date hercof as are approved by the Purchas er,
the Closing in all events to be deerhed such approval,

The City has authorized and agrees to execute and deliver the City Bond Purchase
Agreement, the City Bond, this Bond Purchase Agreement and the Private Placement Agreement.

4, The Bank hereby represents and warrants to and covenants with the Purchaser that:

(8)  The Bank is and will be as of the date of the Closing a publi¢ body corporate and
politic of the State of Mississippi.

(b)  The Bank is and will be as of the date of Closing authorized under the laws of the
State of Mississippi, including particulatly the Act, to: (i) adopt such resclutions as are necessary
to approve the issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds; (if) issue the Series 2025 Bonds for the purpoges
described in such resolutions; (iii) lend the proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds to the City through
the purchase of the City Bond for the purposes described in such resolutions; (iv) enter into,
execute and deliver this Bond Purchasé Agreement, the Indenturs, the City Bond Purchase
Agreement, and the Private Placement Agreement; and (v) pledge and assign the City Bond to the
Trustee pursuant to the Indenture, as securily for the payment of the Series 2025 Bonds,

- (¢) The Bank has full power and aufhority to consummate the transactions
contemplated to be consummated by it pursuant to this Bond Purchase Agfeement, the Series 2025

- Bonds, the Indenture, the City Bond Purchase Agreement and the Private Placement Agreement.

| (d)  The Bank shall have prior to the Closing duly authorized 4ll necessary dction to be
taken by it for: _

()  The issuance and sale of the Seties 2025 Bonds upon the terms set forth
herein and in.the Indenture;

(i)  the purchase from the City of the City Bond pursuant to the City Bond
Purchase Agreement;

(iif)  the execution, delivery and/or receipt of this Bond Purchase Agreement, the

2



Indenture, the City Bond Purchase Agreement, the Series 2025 Bonds and the Private
Placement Agreement, the approval and the execution, delivery, receipt and/or approval of
any and all such other agreements and documents as maay be required to be executed,
delivered and received by the Bank in order to catry out, give effect to and consummate
the fransactions contemplated hereby; and

(iv)  the effectuation and consummation of the transactions contemplated by this
Bond Purchase Agreement, the Indenture, the City Bond Purchase Agreement and the
Private Placement Agreement.

(&)  The Series 2025 Bonds, when issued, delivered and paid for as herein and in the
Indenture provided, will have been duly authorized and issued and will constitute valid and binding
special limited obligations of the Bank enforceable in accordance with theirterms and entitled to
the benefits and security of the Indenture (subject to any applicable bankruptey, reorganization,
insolvency, moratorium or other similai laws affecting the enforeement of creditors' rights from
timeé to time in effect and further subject to the availability of equitable remedies).

(B The resolution of the Board of Directors of the Bank authorizing the issuance and
sale of the Series 2025 Bonds adopted on January 8, 2025 (the "Bank Resolution™), hag not been
modified, amended or repealed and is in full force and effect on the date hereof,

(g)  The Bank will direct the Trustee to apply the proceeds from the sale of the
Series 2025 Bonds immediately upon the Closing as specified in the Indenture and in any
instructions delivered at Closing by an authorized officer of the Bank.

()  The Bank is in compliance with all material laws and regulations applicable to it
and its operatians which, if violated by the Bank, could adversely affect the Bank's ability to take
the actions cantemplated hereby and by the City Bond Purchase Agreement, the Private Placement
Agreement and the Indenture.

(i) The Bank isnot, in any way which could adversely affect the Bank's ability to take

the dctions contemplated hereby and by the City Bond Purchase Agreement, the Private Placement
Agreement and the Indenture, in breach of or in defailt under any existing law, court or
administrative regulation, decres, otder, agreement, indenture, mortgage, lease, sublease or other
instrument to which it is a party ot by which it or its property is or may be bound, and no event

hag oecurred and 15 continuing which; with the passage of tifie or the giviig of TiGtice, oF both,
‘would constitute a default or an event of‘ default thereunder which could adversely affect the Bank's
ability to take the actions contemplated hereby or by the City Bond Purchase Apresment, the
Private Placement Agreement or the Tndenture.

) The execution and delivery by the Bank of this Bond Purchase Agreement, the
Series 2025 Bonds, the Indenture, the City Bond Purchase Agreement, the Private Placement
Agreement, the assignment to the Trustee of the City Bond and the comphance by the Bank with
the provisions of each of the foregoing documents will not, to any extent of in any way which
could adversely affect the Bank's ability to take the actions contemplated hereby and by the City
Bond Purchase Agreement, the Private Placeinent Agreement and the Indenture, conflict with or
constitute on the part of the Bank a breach of or 4 default under any existing law, court or



administrative regulation, decree or order or any agreement, indenture, mortgage or loan
agreement by which the Bank or it§ property is or may be bound.

(k)  Other than the anticipated court proceedmgs to validate the Series 2025 Bonds, no
litigation or proceeding to which the Bank is a party is pending or, to the knowledge of the Bank,
threatened against or affecting the Bank (i) contesting the due organization or valid existence of
the Bank, (ii) to restrain ot enjoin the issuance or delivery of the Series 2025 Bonds, the application
of the proceeds thereof as provided in the Indenture, the functioning of the Bank or the paymerit,
collection or application of revenues pursuant to the Indenture, the Private Placement Agreement,
the City Bond Purchase Agreement or the City Bond, (iii) in any way contesting or affecting any
anthority for, or the validity or execution of the Series 2025 Bonds, the Indenture, the Private
Placement Agreement, the City Bond Purchase Agreement or this Bond Purchase Agreement the
application of the proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds as provided in the Tridenture or the payment,
collection or application of revenues or the pledge thereof pursuant to the Indenture, the City Bond
Purchase Agreement or the Series 2025 Bonds, or (iv) in any way contesting the right and power
of the Bank to take the actions to be taken by the Bank contemplated by such documents. To the
knowledge of the Bank, there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in
equity or before of by any court, public board or body pending or threatened against or affecting
the Bank (or any meritorious basis therefor) wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding
would adversely affect the transactions contemplated hereby or the validity of any agreement or
instrument to which the Bank is a party and which is used or contemplated for use in the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby,

D The Bank covenants that between the date hereof and the Closing it will not take
any action or permit any action within its control to be taken which will cause the representations
and warranties of the Bank made herein o beuntrue as of the Closing.

(in) The Bank agrees that all representations, warranties and covenants made by it
hereunder shall remain in full force and offect despite any investigation by or on behalf of the
Purchaser and shall survive aity terinination of this Bond Purchase Agreement

5. The City hereby represents and warrants to and covenants with the Purchaser that:

()  The Cityis and will be as of the date of the- Closing a political subdivision of the
State of M1351381pp1 '

(b)  The City is and will be as of the date of Closing authorized under the laws of the
State of Mississippi, including particularly the Act to: (i) adopt such resolutiosis as aré hecéssary
to approve the borrowing of the proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds, including the Bond Resolution
adopted by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the City on J anuary 7, 2025 (the “City Bond
Resolution™); (ii) execute and deliver the City Bond for the purposes described in the City Bond
Resolution; (iii) borrow the proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds from the Bank for the purposes set
forth in the City Bond Resolution; (iv) enter into, execute and deliver this Bond Purchase
Agreement, the City Bond Purchase Agreement, the City Bond, and the Private Placement
Agreement; and (v) approve the pledge and assignment to the Trustee of the City Bond pursuant
fo the Indenture, as security for the payment of the Series 2025 Bonds.



(¢)  The City has full power and authority to consummate the transactions contemplated
to be consummated by it pursuant to this Bond Purchase Agreement, the Series 2025 Bonds, the
Indenture, the City Bond Purchase Agreement, the City Bond, and the Private Placement
Agreement.

{(d)  The City shall have prior to the Closing duly authorized all necessary action to be
‘taken by it for:

() theissuance and sale of the City Bond to the Bank and approving the borrowing
of the proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds from the Bank and the use of such proceeds as
contemplated by the City Bond Resolution;

(il) the execution, delivery and/or receipt of this Bond Purchase Agreement, the
City Bond Purchase Agreement, the City Bond, and the Private Placement Agreement, the
approval and the execution, delivery, receipt and/or approval of any and all such other
agreements and docuinents as may be required to be executed, delivered and received by
the City in order to carry out, give effect to and consummate the transactions contemplated
heteby and by the City Bond Resolution; and

(iii) the effectuation and conswmmation of the transactions contemplated by this
Bond Purchase Agreement, the City Bond, the Indenture, the Private Placement Agreement
and the City Bond Purchase Agieement,

(&) The City Bond, when issued, delivered and paid for as herein, in the City Bond
Resolution and in the Indenture provided, will have been duly authorized and issued and will
constitute a valid and binding general obligation of the City enforceable in accordance with its
terms (subject to any applicable bankruptcy, Teorganization, insolvency, moratorium or other
similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' fights from time to time in effect and further
subject to the availability of equitable remedies).

® The City Bond Resolution, authorizing the issuance of the City Bond and the
borrowing of the proceeds of the Serigs 2025 Bonds, as adopted on T anudry 7, 2025, has riot been
modified, amended or repealed and is in full force and effect on the date hereof :

(g)  The City will direct the Bank to apply the proceeds from the sale of the Series 2025

- Bonds ithmediately upoi the Clositig as specified i the Tndertiire and in iy instrictions deliversd
at Closing by an authorized officer of the City,

(b}  The City is in compliance with all material laws and regulations applicable to it and
its operations which, if violated by the City, could adversely affect the City's ability to take the
actions contemplated heteby and by the City Bond Resolution, the City Bond Purchase Agreement,
the City Bond, the Indenture, and the Private Placement Agreement. _

(D) The City is not, in any way which could adversely affect the City's ability to take
the actions contemplated hereby and by the City Bond Resolution, the City Bond Purchase
Ag,Teement the City Bond, the Private Placement Agreement and the Indenture, in breach of or in



default under any existing law, court or administrative regulation, decree, order, agreement,
indenture, mortgage, lease, sublease or other instrument to which it is a party or by which it or its
property is or may be bound, and no event has occurred and is continuing which, with the passage
of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a default or an event of default thereunder
which could adversely affect the City's ability to take the actions conteniplated hereby or by the
City Bond Resolution, the City Bond Purchase Agreement, the City Bond, the Private Placement
Agreement or the Indenture.

G) The execution and delivery by the City of this Bond Purchase Agreement, the City
Bond, the City Bond Purchase Agreement, the Private Placement Agreement and the other
documents contemplated hereby and by the City Bond Resolution and the City Bond and the
compliance by the City with the provisions of each of the foregoing documents will not, to any
extent orin any way which could adversely affect the City's ability to take the actions contemplated
hereby and by the City Bond Resolution, the City Bond Purchase Agreement, the Private
Placement Agreement and the Indenture, conflict with or constitute on the part of the City a breach
of or a default under any existing law, court or administrative regulation, decree or order or any
agreement, indenture, mortgage or loan agreement by which the City or its property is or may be
bound. :

(k) Other than the anticipated court proceedings to validate the City Bond, no litigation
or proceeding to which the City is a party is pending or, to the knowledge of the City, threatened
against or affechng the C1ty (1) contesting the due organization or valid existence of the City, (ii)
to restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of the Series 2025 Bonds or the City Bond, the
application of the proceeds thereof as provided in the City Bond Resolution and the Indenture, the
functioning of the City or the payment, collection or application of revenues pursuant to the City
Bond Resolution, the Indenture, the City Bond Purchase Agreement, the Private Placement
Agreement or the City Bond, (iii) in any way contesting or affecting any authority for, or the
validity or execution of the Series 2025 Bonds, the Indenture, the City Bond Purchase Agreement,
the Private Placement Agreement or this Bond Purchase Agreement, the application of the
proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds or the City Bond as provided in the City Bond Resolution and
the Indenture or-the payment, collection or application of revenues or the pledge thereof pursuant
to the City Bond Resolution, the Indenture, the City Bond Purchase Agreement or the City Bond,
or (iv) in any way contesting the right and power of the City to take the actions to be taken by the
City contemplated by such documents. To the knowledge of the City, there is no action, suit,
proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in equity or before or by any court, public board or

" body pending or threatened against of affecting the City (or any meritorious basis therefor) wherein

an unfavorable decision, ruling of finding would adversely affect the transactions contemplated
hereby or by the City Bond Resolution or the validity of any agreement or instrument to which the
City is a party and which i3 used or contemplated for nse in the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby or by the City Bond Resolution.

(0 The City covenants that between the date hereof and the Closing it will not take any
action or permit any action within its control to be taken which will cause the representations and
warranties of the City made herein to be untrue as of the Closing,



(m) The City agrees that all representations, warranties and covenants made by it
hereunder shall remain in full force and effect despite any investigation by or on behalf of the
Purchaser and shall survive any termination of this Bond Purchase Agreement.

6. At 10:00 o'clock A.M.,, Central time, on January __, 2025 or at such other time or
such other date, as shall have been mufually agreed upon by the Bank, the City, the Placement
Agent and the Purchaser, the Bank will deliver, or cause to be delivered, to [the Purchaser/Cede &
Co., as nominee of the Depository Trust Company (“DTC)], the Series 2025 Bonds in a form
acceptable to Bond Counsel, duly exccuted and duly authenticated by the Trustee, together with
the other documents hereinafter mentioned, against payment to the Trustee of the purchase price
therefor plus accrued interest, if any, in immediately available funds by check or wire transfer or
transfers.

Delivery of the Series 2025 Bonds as aforesaid shall be made at such location as is mutually
agreed upon by the Purchaser, the Bank and the Trustee. Concurrent with such delivery, the Bank
and the City shall deliver the certificates, reports and documents described in Section 7 hereof at
the offices of Bond Counsel or such other place as shall have been mutually agreed upon by the
Bank, the City and the Purchaser. Such delivery is herein called the "Closing.”

7. The obligations of the Purchaser hereunder to purchase the Series 2025 Bonds shall
be subject to the performance by the Bank of its obligations to be performed hereunder at and prior
to the Closing, to the performance by the City of its obhgahons to be performed hereunder at or
prior to the Closing, to the accuracy in all material respects, in the reasonable Judgment of the
Purchaser, of the representations and warranties of the Bank and of the City herein, in both cases,
as of the date hereof and as of the time of the Closing and, in compliance with the following
conditions:

(2) At the time of the Closing, (i) the Indenture, the City Bond Resolution, the City
Bond Purchase Agreement, the City Bond, and the Private Placement Agreement shall have been
executed by the party or parties thereto and shall be in full force and effect and the forms of such
nstruments as of the date hereof shall not have been amended, modified or supplemented except
as may have been agreed to in writing by the Purchaser, the Closing in all events however to be
deemed such approval, (ii) the Bank and the City shall have duly adopted and there shall be in full
force and effect such resolutions as shall, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, be necessary in
connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, (iii) the representations and warranties of
the Bank provided in Section 4 hereof and of the City in Section 5 heteof shall be true, complete -
and cotrect in all material respects as. if then made, (iv) the Bank and the City shall perform or
have performed all obligations required under or specified in this Bond Purchase Agreement to be
performed at or prior to the Closing, and (v) the proceeds of the sale of the Series 2025 Bonds shall
be applied and deposited as described in the Indenture,

(b} At or prior to the Closing, the Bank shall have delivered the Series 2025 Bonds as
directed by the Purchaser and shall have assigned and delivered the City Bond to the Trustee.

() Ator prior to the Closing, the Purchaser shall receive the following documents:

(1)  the approving opinion of Bond Counsel dated the date of the Closing,



substantially in the form approved by the Bank, including to the effect that interest on the
Series 2025 Bonds is not included in gross income for federal or State income tax purposes,
together with a letter to the Purchaser authorizing reliance thereon:

(2)  anopinion, dated the date of Closing, of counsel for the Bank, in form and
content reasonably acceptable to the Purchaser, either addressed to the Purchaser or
accompanied by a letter to the Purchaser authorizing reliance thereon,

(3)  an opinion, dated the date of the Closing, of counsel for ﬂle City, in form
and content reasonably acceptable to the Purchaser, either addressed to the Purchaser or
accompanied by a letter to the Purchaser authorizing reliance thereon;

(4)  acertificate of the City, addressed to the Bank and the Purchaser, dated the
~date of the Closing, signed by authorized officers of the City, in form and content
reasonably accepiable to the Purchaser;

(5)  a certificate of the Bank dated the date of the Closing and signed by an
appropriate official or representative of the Bank, in form and content reasonably
acceptable to the Purchaser;

(6)  executed or conformed copies of each of the Indenture, the City Bond
Purchase Agreement, the Private Placement Agreement, and the Clty Bond, duly executed
by the parties thereto;

(7)  acertified copy of the Bank Resolution of the Bank authorizing, approving
or ratifying the execution and delivery of the Series 2025 Bonds, the Indenture, the Private
Placement Agreement, the City Bond Purchase Agreement and this Bond Purchase
Agreement;

(8)  certified copies of the City Bond Resolution of the City authorizing the
execution and delivery of this Bond Purchase Agreement, the City Bond Purchase
Agreement, the City Bond, and the Private Placement Agreement, together with a
gertification as to incumbeney of officers; .

(9)  a certificate of the Trustee to the effect that (i) all‘moneys and sccurities
delivered fo the Trustee under and pursuant to the Indenture have been duly deposited to
the credit of the appropriate funds established under or in accordance with the Indenture or
otherwise applied as provided in the Indenture, (i) the Indenture has been duly executed
and delivered by the Trustee, (iii) the Series 2025 Bonds have been authenticated and (iv)
the Trustee has no knowledge of any default under the Indenture;

(10)  evidence of validation of the Series 2025 Bonds by judgment of the
Chancery Court of the First Judicial District of Hinds County, Mississippi and of validation
of the City Bond by judgement of the Chancery Court of the First Judicial District of
Harrison County, Mississippi; and



(11)  such additional legal opinions, certificates, proceedings, instruments and
other documents as the Purchaser or Bond Counsel may reasonably request to evidence
compliance by the Bank and the City with legal requirements, the truth and accuracy, as of
the time of Closing, of their respective representations contained herein and the due
performance or satisfaction by each thereof at or prior to such time of all agreements then
to be performéd and all conditions then to be satisfied by each thereof.

The Barik and the City will furnish the Purchaset with additional conformed copies of such
opinions, certificates, letters and documents as the Purchaser reasonably requests,

If eithet the Bank or the City shall be'unable to satisfy the conditions to the obligations of
the Purchaser contained in this Bond Purchase Agreement (and such conditions shall not be
waived), or if the obligations of the Purchaser to purchase and accept delivery of the Series 2025
Bonds shall be terminated for any reason.permitted by this Bond Purchase Agreement, this Bond
Purchase Agreement shall terminate and neither the Purchaser nor the Bank shall be under further
obligation hereunder. However, the Purchaser may, in its sole disctetion, waive orie or more of the
conditions imposed by this Bond Purchase Agreement for the protection of the Purchaser and
‘proceed with the Closiug contemplated hereby .

8. All representations, warranties and agreements of the Bank and the City herein shall
remain operative and in full force and effect, regardless of any investigations made by or on behalf
of the Purchaser, and shall survive any termination of this Bond Purchase Agreement by the
Purchaser pursuant to the terms hereof,

9, The Bank will pay or cause to be paid from, but only from, the proceeds of the
Series 2025 Bonds, and other moneys provided by the City, all expenses.incident to the
performance of the Bank's and the City’s obligations under this Bond Purchase Agreement and the
Privaie Placement Agreement, including, but not limited to, mailing oy delivery of the Series 2025
Bonds, fees of the Placement Agent as provided in the Private Placement Agreement, fees and
disbursements of Bond Counsel, Purchaser’s counsel, Bank counisel and counsel for the City,
expenses of the Bank, fees forbond ratings, costs and expenses of pr eparing and reproducing this
Bond Purchase Agreement, the Indenture, the City Bond Purchase Agreement, the City Bond, and
the Privaté Placement Agreement and fees and expenses of the Trustee.

10, Anynotice or other communication to be given to the Bark, the City, the Placement

*Agent or the Purchaser under this Bond Purchase Agreentent shall be given in wiiting and shall bs —

mailed or delivered to the following respective addresses until otherwise directed by wiitten notice
to the other parties hereto:

The Bank: Mississippi Development Bank
753 Riverside Drive, Suite 300
Jackson, Mississippi 39202
Aftention: E.F. “Buddy” Mitcham, Executive Director



The City: City of Pass Christian
200 West Scenic Drive
Pass Christian, Mississippi 39571
Attention: Mayor

The Placement Agent: Raymond James & Associates, Inc.
1100 Ridgway Loop, Suite 300
Memphis, Tennessee 38120
Attn: Lindsey Rea

The Purchaser; [to come]

_ -11. This Bond Purchase Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the Barnk, the City,

the Placerment Agent and the Purchaser and their tespective successors and assigns and no other
person shall acquire or have any right hersunder or by virtue hereof, All representations,
- warranties and agreements in this Bond Purchase Agreement shall remain in full force and effect,
regardless of (a) delivery of and payment for the Series 2025 Bonds hereunder and (b) any
termination of this Bond.Pur chase Agréement.

12, The Bank and the City acknowledge and agree that the purchase and sale of the
Series 2025 Bonds pursuant to this Bond Purchase Agreement and the Private Placement
Agreement is an arm’$-length commercial transaction among the parties thereto. The City has
engaged Mumicipal Advisors of Mississippi, Inc. as its municipal advisor in connection with this
trangsaction,

13.  This Bond Purchase Agreement shall be poverned by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of Mississippi.

14, This Bond Purchase Agreement inay be executed in seéveral counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which together shall constitute one and the same
instroment,

Very truly youss,

By

[Name and Title]

10



Accepted and agreed to as of
5:00 o'clock p.m.,

Jackson, Mississippi time,

on the date first above written:

MISSISSIPPI DEVELOPMENT BANK

By:

Executive Director

CITY OF PASS CHRISTIAN, MISSISSIPPI

By:

Mayor

11



EXHIBIT I

SERIES 2025 BONDS*
Maturity Par Interest
Date Amount Rate
January 1 of:
2026 $110,000
2027 100,000
2028 105,000
2029 110,000
2030 115,000
2031 120,000
2032 125,000
2033 130,000
2034 135,000
2035 140,000
2036 150,000
2037 155,000
2038 160,000
2039 170,000
2040 175,000
Total $2,000,000

~ *Preliminary, subject to change.




INDENTURE OF TRUST

BY AND BETWEEN
MISSISSIPPI DEVELOPMENT BANK

AND

THE PEOPLES BANK,
BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI,
AS TRUSTEE

DATED AS OF JANUARY 1, 2025

MISSISSIPPI DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2025

(PASS CHRISTIAN, MISSISSIPPLGENERAL-OBLIGATION BOND PROJECT)



1.1
1.2

2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4
2.5
2.6
2.7
238
29

31

32
3.3
34
35
3.6
3.7
3.3

1 CONTENTS

Page
ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS AND RULES OF INTERPRETATION
DIBEIONS 1 11vvvvvsvverassssessiorssesesseseaseesesssmssssessessssessasetsseessessssennessemsessereessesssassssesssseess sessos s 2
Rules Of IteIPTELALION 1orv i vareirrnceceneiarivernernssreeersaeseressrensssesstnresscerassessasesasesnnssrsssssens 9
ARTICLE 2
AUTHORIZATION AND ISSUANCE OF BONDS
Authorization and fssuance of Series 2025 Bonds......u.... e e r b bt 9
Purpose and Disposition of Series 2025 BONUS. ... ree.isioriosironsieresresiossssosisessesons veo 10
General Description of the Series 2025 Bonds ... B PN et 10
Provisions for Issuance ofBonds ........oeovceeoioriinensereersserenesesnnnes s e asseane e 11
Provisions for Issuance of Refunding Bonds.......oconrvccoensiorrnoninns PR RO 12
Form of Bonds ..o ORI aressereimes e es e YOO SR TN .12
Book-Entry Only SYSIOMm ..o iviurrei o irccierassieosmmonsserssses i sisisnoens o prerurnsemnesionienee 21
Successor Securities Depository; Transfers Outside Book-Entry Only System............... 21
Paymenis...ccoiimmnsconeanmrirmsinisrne Aot T e A2 s em e e brs e Veorsisennpssanian eeribrises 22
ARTICLE 3
GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF BONDS
Medium, Formn and Place of Payment. ....covveriiinin. arienes s ey eivasag e aareane weearenaers 22
Legends..vnn..e. s rreeranene revasensansininnenn retnearnsereraterrirerane e raes et iereanrs rrreeres 22
EXECUEOTL 11 ivscenrririmrivensrersivecsermerensres vt sennins —— ereeiees et SO ISR 1
ATREOHCAON 1ot crasrairbansrn s secesisaseest g i ede Feiorsesensfo s doeeseneesasase s sas st sns b sseesessas. 23

Muitilated, Lost, Stoleit of IDeStroyed BOndS.. ... verrrersimmsessivsssssscrnisersarseeeromsommsenesenren 23

Registration, Transter and Exchange of Bonds; Persons Treated as OwWners ... 23



3.9
3.10
3.11

312

4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6

5.1
5.2
5.3
5.4
55
5.6
57
5.8
5.9
5.10
.11
5.12
5.13

Other Obligations Payable from Revenues......coucceveveniones et snan TR 25
Temporary Bonds......covnnn vt FPR——— SR S v 23
Limitations on Obligations of Bank.........eeveeerensr. e R ceerererienersnes vt 25
Immunity of Officers and Directors.....c.covvvovrmrvcrecereranne bt e st e resanis w20
ARTICLE 4
REDEMPTION OF BONDS PRIOR TO MATURITY
Redemption and Redemption Prices and Terms for Series 2025 Bonds .....ccovvvurirerin,. 26
Redemption at the Election or Direction of the Bank .....cerewimesmeoreccosivnnrersemmersenns 27
Selection of Serfes 2025 Bonds to be Redeemed .......v.vveervocvcscsnecrreoreeerieesesessissnes 27
Redemption PAYMENtS. . ..viiirinmio iimisimsiomenesiosrsesssrsesmessesssessesssssssessosooneesssns 27

Notice of Redemption......... SNSRI T OE S e sttt er st sns 27

Cancellation ......coeeevinne e r e T e e e Yo E 1) e e aer e ar e seetes SRR e 28

ARTICLE 5
GENERAL COVENANTS
Payment of Principal and TItErest..,.....cooivemmrieomererinimmeravesieriassevessones s 28
Performande of Covenants by Bank ......ooveivsiornersereonons e e et e fhets et s eeransrenees 28
Instrumertts of Furthe ASSULANCE vv..vverroreornseescremreesese o et bt es e 28
[RESERVED] ..soeooeooeeiomeems oo oo e eeeseseeee e ereer e 28
28

LR R

Covenants Concerning Prograifi o i iesererererseses

Possession and Inspection of City Bond.........ccomvricoerevenn crerian s assrsereiremrnnissivans siners 29

Accou-ﬁts”'ﬁﬁ&.lﬁéport’s..,..,.-. ......... bbb te e earrrars e ane et raas s s rre e nergeert et et e e aatns 29

e 29

Bank Covenants with Respect 10 City Bond....oucneoervoiiioniimioeoso oo

Monitoring TaveStmEntSi . e e esorerssseresresnesessensans N revreareres rerteere et e eiiernerans 30
[RESERVED]..ovvriimniitmarmemsamionissimsmsiren it ammsmssseosmens emsssmsessssessensessssmen oo 30
[RESERVED] 1.t vvvvvveomsesmssesoseos o essemenceresssseesseesssesssossossessmsesss oo oo s vt e 30
30

Covenants Concerning Preservation of Tax EXEIPON ..o ivoviescoressseseeecsenssessennes

iii



6.1
6.2
6.3
6.4
6.5
6.6
6.7
6.8
6.9
6.10
6.11
6.12
6.13
6.14

7.1
7.2
73

ARTICLE 6
REVENUES AND FUNDS
Source of Payment of Bonds....... et ot rameneeemras prtvestevntnibenr et bronas mnas wenererterarnsanraneonse 30
Creation of Funds.......... hraeArsenes mR R DR LR AR AR 1R P s a RS ORI 1§
Deposit of Net Proceeds of Bonds ... cccormmnineinmensn i seenn wmeensseneriesens 30
Deposit of Revenues and Ofher RECEIIS. . ercesivorseusssecrarmnsresssmseessssissesssssesssosnsemssons 30
Operation of General ACCOUNE «i.: v mrosossnssieeseesseseesmersesseesessssss e 3 1
Operation of the Redemption ACCOUNE ........cvvcreenesinisnsseecessessmsisecrcoremmmessnsennenen 3 1
Operation of the PumhaseAccountSl
IRESERVED] oo vvsereeeseossssstesssesesessosesssos e 32
[RESERVED] ... O OO ¥
Operation of Bond Tssuance EXpENSe ACCOUIE. ..u...iirsrrnivrosesrieerersinemessnerssssssoneons e 32

Opetation of fhe Rebate FUN ....ocvoviervsisercveevesessemsssesesresess oo s esses oo seeesesseens., 32,

‘Moneys to be Held it TTUST.c...ovo v ieiionnneerorerecsssmsesnses e s re s e et aesssanreens 33

Amounts Remainitig in Funds o ACCOUNS 1. urr e imrcosinirssssesssssesmnsseossesssosensonesne: 33
Certain VEIIGAHONS e evsersnis st ircranrans s eceences s envarts s sessieseicnsaiesrssovesmireenssenserirssonns 33
ARTICLE 7
PURCHASE OF CITY BOND

Terms and Conditions of Purchase........ R e RSO UUU SRR -

PULCRASES. .. i1 s v iemres et e ses rerrs e eas ctneness et emsensees s eome e e e oses et st sses s es et eees e e eeme s es oo o34

Retention and Inspection of DOCIIMENIS. . ...vewuisiivivesieeearsesssesssnssararss coresereseesssseessessenae. 34

74

8.1
8.3

Rep(n’: 35

ARTICLE 8
INVESTMENT OF MONEYS
General Provisions ... reessesicessovesesneres e ere o bbb s nnsnreenie 30
Arbitrage Restrictions; Bonds to "Remain Tax EXempto . e e . vearrer 36

Valuation ofInvestments 36

iv



10.1
102
103
104
105
106
107
10.8
109
10.10

11.1
11.2
11.3
11.4

1.5 .

11.6
11.7
11.8
11.9
11.10

ARTICLE 9
DISCHARGE OF INDENTURE
ARTICLE 10
DEFAULT PROVISIONS AND REMEDIES OF TRUSTEE AND BONDHOLDERS

Defaults; Events of Default...oovevveeoreeriencerierereenens e e fnee thc e e e n e ree e e ratr e ebee 38
Remedies: Rights of Bondholders ........coceeieeeironrensressonns ferenee e s s e aeaereas 39
Rights of Bondholders to Direct Proceedings ... ...oovvviveerrivrecrivriorern. U 40
Appointment OF RECEIVELS ...ocvvvriimiiarsraumiominioninerosnscsenass st ssrerssesasessasasessntossesssens 40
Application of Moneys ......... TP e Ean e st r e et 40
Remedies Vested in the Trustee ......ivivivnseoeneon. etreernret e eyt e e raresrenens eraieean bt aesaiton 42
Rights and Remedies of Bondholders ............ s et e et e s abes sererreeneerens 42
Termination of Proceedings.......coeevveevevncrinorvennnn, ST USSP OT U OTUORRRNY : /2

Waivers of BYEIts 0f DETAUIE 1ecoveerevrreeoeeeeessesesssessessssonesesssssseeeseessees oo 43
Notice of Defaults under Section 10. I(d) or (e); Opportumty ofthe Bank to Cure Such

DEfAtlIs .ocuvveiiiciiiiciiiirins e ittt s bt en e eeeseeraesh et er et emee e 43
ARTICLE 11
TRUSTEE
Acceptance of the Trusts.....ccovivimircreinn, SOV SRRSO ceeeens 43
Fees, Charges and Expenses of the Trustee .......... e e e e e essarnen o 440
Intervention by the TIUSIEe ....vovirreviveereeicererniariearireons festeraer et s R s bbb b et eren s 46
Successor Trustee. ... e SYP S rerr e e 46
Resignation by the TIUSIEE ...ccv v ssesecs e v s e essssee s enese e see s e s sserens 46
Removal of the Trustee......... rererenaineens et st vt b s eae s ey eraesbese 46
Appointment of Successor Trustee by the Bondholders; Temporary TIUStee ..., 47
Concerning Any Successor TIUStee ............... et eerar e eh b er b e RSt e nee e s s r e eesennens 47 -
Indemmnification.......... e e pasrenrra s enaans e rerrerter e ettt bin 47
Successor Trustee as Trustee of Funds, Paying Agent and Registar. .......comwranneen., w48



12,1
12.2

13.1
13.2
13.3
13.4
13.5
13.6

13.7
13.8
13.9

ARTICLE 12

SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES
Supplemental Indentures not Requiring Consent of Bondholders .......... et eneias 48
Supplemental Indentures Requiring Consent of Bondholders............. e vt 49
ARTICLE 13
MISCELLANEOQUS
Consents, Etc., of Bondholders ............. b semeamansaCie s anasashe b e b bArE rereranies vt e iariine 50
Limitation of Rights.,.c..cccrccvnninns ehaseins e s s evebaden b eint sy Sarsnarrenid - e 50
Severability oo oo terrimeerirearrserstbeens it tebeba e tereesannesaern s ebrevrnr e ran e ian e aesaargaeas 50
NOTICEE vivriensrercirioresrererasneesvaserviesvpeesine , ...................................................... 50
Trustee as Paying Agent and RegiStrar ...overcvernn. prvrens cenereernns FTUIOON e 51

Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and HOHAAYS ... esiseereesssesesrerennns 51

COTNIEIPATES 1o ren vttt bine s essmsssseiess e rsetvegssens s rvsmssare s besesesneseenserssetessoreseessssrssessososssssns 91

vi



ENT FIRUST

THIS INDENTURE OF TRUST (this "Indenture™) is dated as of January 1, 2025, by
and between the MISSISSIPPI DEVELOPMENT BANK, a public body corporate and politic,
of the State of Mississippi (the "State") exercising essential public functions (the "Bank'),
organized under the provisions of Sections 31-25-1 et seg., Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended
and supplemented from time to time (the "Bank Act™), and THE PEOPLES BANK, a state baoking
association duly organized and existing under the laws of the State and authorized to accept and
execute trusts of the character herein with its principal corporate trust office in Biloxi, Mississippi, as
trustee (the "Trustee").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Bank is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Act to issue
bonds for the purpose of buying Securities of Local Governmental Units (all as defined in the
Bank Act); and

WHEREAS, the execufion and delivery of this Indenture has been in all respects duly and
validly authorized by a resolution duly passed and approved by the Board ofthe Bank.

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS INDENTURE OF TRUST WITNESSETH:
GRANTING CLAUSES

The Bank, in consideration of the premises and the acceptance by the Trustee of the trusts
hereby created and of the purchase and aceeptarice of the Bonds by the ownets thereof, and for
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is heréby acknowledged, in order to
secure the payment of the principal of, Rédemption Price (as hereinafier defined), and interest on
the Bonds according to their tenor and effect and to secure the performance and observance by the
Bank of all covenants expressed or 1rnp11ed herein and inthe Bonds, does hereby grant, transfer,
bargain, sell, cotvey, mortgage, essign and pledge, and grant a security interest in, the rights,
interests, properties, moneys and other assets described in the following Granting Clauses to the
Trustee and ifs successors in trust and assigns forever (collectively, the "Trust Estate"), for the
purpose of securing the performance of the obligations of the Bank hereinafter set forth, such grant,
transfer, bargaining, sale, conveyance, mortgage, assignment, pledge and security interest, as
descnbed in the fc}llowmg Grantmg Clauses

G BANTING CI iAUSE FIRST

All cash and securities now or hereafter held in the Funds and Accounts created or
¢stablished under this Indenture (other than the Rebate Fund) and the investment earnings {hereon
(other than the Rebate Fund) and all proceeds thereof (except to the extent in the Rebate Fund or
any amounts which are transferred from such Funds and Accounts from time to time in accordance
with this Indenture to the Rebate Fund). All capitalized words and phrases used but not otherwise
defined herein have the meanings ascribed to such words and phrases in Section 1.1 hereof unless
the context réquires otherwise.



GRAN CL E SECOND

The City Bond acquired and held by the Trustee pursuant to this Indenture, all the payments
thereunder, including Additional Payments, as defined herein, dueunder the City Bond Resolution,
all the earnings thereon and all proceeds thereof.

GRAN CLAUSE T

All funds, accounts and monies hereinafter pledged to the Trustee as security by the Banlc to
the extent of that pledge.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all and singular the Trust Estate, whether now owned or
hereafier acquired, unto the Trustee and its respective successors in trust and assigns forever;

IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, upon the terms and trusts herein set forth for the equal
and proportionate benefit, security and protection of all present and future owners of the Bonds
issued under and secured by this Indenture without privilege, priotity or distinction as to the lien of
otherwise of any of the Bonds over any of the other Bonds except as otherwise expressly
‘provided herein;

PROVIDED HOWREVER, that if the Bank shall pay or cause to be paid, or there shall
otherwise be paid of made provision for payment of, the principal of and interest on the Bonds
due or to become due thereon, at the times and in the manner mentionsd in thé Bonds, and shall
pay or cause to be paid or there shall otherwise be paid or made provision for payment to the
Trustee of all sums of money due or to become due according. to the provisions hereof and shall
otherwise comply with Article 9 hereof, then this Indenture and the rights hereby granted shall
cease, determine and be void; etherwise this Indenture to be and remain in full force and effect.

THIS INDENTURE OF TRUST FURTHER WITNESSETH, and itis expressly declared,
‘that all Bonds issued and secured hereunder are to be issued, authenticated and delivered, and all
said property, rights and interests, including, without limitation, the amounts hereby assigned and
pledged, are to be dealt ‘with and disposed of under, upon and subject to the terms, conditions,
stipulations, covenants, agreements, trusts, uses and purposes hereinafter expressed, and the Bank
has agreed and covenanted, and does herchy agree and covenant, with the Trustee and with the
Tespective owners, from time to time, of the Bonds, or any part thereof, as follows (subjsct, however,
to the provisions of Sections 3.11 and 3.12 hereof);

| ARTICLE1 |
DEFINITIONS AND RULES OF INTERPRETATION

1.1 Definitions, The following capitalized words and- pmases have the following
meanings when used in thig Indenture unless the context otherwise requires:

"Accounts" means the accounts created pursuant o Arti_cl,e 6 hereof.

"Act” means, fogether, the Bank Act and the City Bond Act,



"Additional Payments" means such Additional Payments as required by this Indenture,
which include, each and all of the following, to be paid by the City under the City Bond Resolution:

(a) all Costs of Issnance to the 'extent not paid from the proceeds of the Series
2025 Bonds;

(b)  to or upon the order of the Trustee, upon demand, all fees of the Trustee
for services rendered under the Indenturé and all fees and charges of the paying agent,
registrars, legal counsel, accountants, engineers, public agencies and others incurred in
the performance on request of the Trustee of services required under the Indenture for
which the Trustee and such other persons are entitled to payment or reimbursement,
provided that after payment in full thereof the City may, without creating a default
hereunder, contest in good faith the necessity or reasonableness of any such services, fees
or expenses other than the Trustee's fees for ordinary services as set forth in‘the Indenture
paying agency feesand any fees or charges of public agencies;

(¢)  ‘to the Issuer and the Trustee, the Program Expenses, and all other reasonable
expenscs incurred by the Issuer and the Trustee in relation to the Construction Project under
the City Bond Resclution which are not otherwise required to be paid by the City undet the
terms of the City Bond Resolution and all indemnity payments required to be made under
Section 11.9 hereof; and

(d)  anyand all out-of-pocket costs and expenses (including, without limitation,
the reasonable fees and expenses of any counsel, accountants, appraisers or other
professionals) incurred by the Trustee or the Issuer at any time, in connection with (i) the
preparation, hegotiation and execution of this Indenture, the City Bond, the City Bond
Resolution and all other Bond Documents, any amendment of or modlﬁcanon of this
Indenture, the City Bond, the City Bond Resolution or the other Bond Documents
(including in connection with any sale, transfer, or attempted sale or transfet of any interest
herein o a participant or assignee); (n} any litigation, contest, dispute, suit, procaedmg or
action, whether instituted by the Issuer, the Trustss, the City or any other ‘person in any -
way relating to the Construction Project, the City Bond, the City Bond Resohution, the
other Bond Documents, -or the City's affairs; (iif) any attempt to enforce any rights of the
Trustes or the Issuer against the City or any other person which may be obligated to the
Trustee and/or Issuer by virtue of the City Bond, the City Bond Resolution, the othér
Bond Docuiients or any other Construction Project related docyment, (iv) any action to
protect, collect, sell, liquidate or otherwise dispose of the Construction Project; and (V)

petforming any of the obligations relating to or payment of any obligations of the City
hereunder in accordatice with ‘the terms hereof or any other Bond Document.

"Authorized Officer" means the President, Vice President, Fxecutive Director, Secretary
or Assistarit Secretary of the Bank or such other person or persons who are duly authorized to
act on behalf of the Bank.

"Bank" means the Mississippi Development Bank, a body corporate and politic exmclsmg
essential public fimetions, or any successor to ifs functions, organized under the Bank Act.

"Bank Act' means the provisions of Sections 31-25-1 et seg., Mississippi Code of 1972, as
amended or supplemented from time to time,



"Bankruptcy Code" means 11 United States Code Sections 100 et seq., as amended or
supplemented from time to time.

"Beneficial Owner" meavs, whenever used with respect to a Bond, the person whose name
is recorded as the beneficial owner of such Bond by a DTC Participant on the records of such DTC
Participant, or such person's subrogee.

"Bond Counsel" medans an attorney or firm of attorneys approved by the City and the
Bank nationally recognized in the area of municipal law and matters relating to the exclusion of
interest on state and local govermment bonds from gross income under federal tax law, including
particularly compliance with Section 148(f) of the Code. Wise Carter Child & Caraway, a
Professional Association, Gulfport, Mississippi, is serving as Bond Counsel in connection with the
sale and issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds.

"Bond Documents™ shall mean this Indenture, the City Bond Resolution, the Bond
Purchase Agreement and the City Bond Purchase Agreement.

"Bond Issuance Expense Account" means the account by that name created by Section 6.2
hereof,

"Bond Purchase Agreement” means that certain Bond Purchase Agreement, dated
» 2025, by and among the Bank, the Purchaser and the City in connection with the issuance

and sale of the Series 2025 Bonds.
“Bond Register” means the reglstranon records of the Bank lept by the Trustee to

evidence the registration and transfer of the Bonds,

“Bondholder” or “holder of Bonds” or “owner of Bonds” or any similar term means the
- Registered Owner of any Bond.

“Bonds” means the Series 2025 Bonds and any Refunding Bonds issued pursuant to this
Indenture, :

“Business Day” means any day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, on which the Trustee or
the City Hall of the City is not closed and on which the payment system of the Federal Reserve
Systen is ODBI ational,

“City” shall mean the City of Pass Christian, Mississippi, a “local governmental unit” under
the Bank Act, -

"City Bond" means the $2,000,000 General Obligation Bond, Series 2025 issued by the
City pursuant to the City Bond Resolution and registered to the Trustee as sssignee of the Bank
pursuant to this Indenture.

"City Bond Aet" means the provisions of Mississippi Code of 1972, Sections 21-33-301
et seq., Mississippl Code of 1972, as amended or supplemented from tithe to time.



"City Bond Payment" means the amounts paid or required to be paid from time to time, for
principal, premium, if any, and interest on the City Bond held by the Trustee pursuant to this
Indenture.

"City Bond Purchase Agreement™ means that certain City Bond Purchase Agreement,
dated 2025, by and between the City and the Bank in connection with the issuance
and sale of the City Bond.,

"City Bond Resolution" means that certain Bond Resolution adopted by the City on
January 7, 2025, in connection with the issuance of the City Bond.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 in effect on the date of issnance of the
Series 2025 Bonds, and the applicable regulations or rulings promulgated or proposed thereunder,
and any successor thereto.

"Construction Project" means providing funds for financing certain capital projects and
improvements which shall consist of any of the following: erecting municipal buildings, auditoriums,
comununity centers, gymnasiums and athletic stadiums, preparing and equipping athletic fields, and
purchasing buildings or land therefor, and for repairing, improving, adorning and equipping the same
and for erecting, equipping and furnishing of buildings to be used as a municipal or civic arts center;
erecting or purchasing waterworks, gas, electric and other public utility plants or distribution systems
or franchises, and repairing, improving and extending the same; establishing sanitary, storm, drainage
or sewerage systems, and repairing, improving and extending the same; protecting the mmnmpahty,
its streets and stdewalks from overflow, caving banks and other like dangers; constructing, improving
and paving streets, sidewalks, driveways, parkways, walkways or public parking facilitics, and
pur chasmg land therefor; purchasing land for parks, cemeteries and public playgrounds, and
improving, equipping and adorning the same, including the constructmg, repairing and equipping of
swimming pools and other recreational facilities; constructing bridges and culverts; altering or
changing the channels of streams and water courses to control, deflect or guide the current thereof:
purchasing fire-fighting equipment and apparatus, and providing housing for same, and purchasmg
land therefor; purchasing or renting voting machines and any other election equipment needed in
elections held in the municipality; purchasing machinery and heavy equipment which will have an
expected useful life it excess of ten (10) vears, but specifically not including any motor vehicles
weighing less than twelve thousard (12,000) pounds.

"Costs of Issuance" shall mean items of expense payable or reimbursable directly by or
indirectly by the Bank and related to the anthorization, sale, validation and issuance of the Bonds
and the City Bond as allowed by the Code, which items of expense shall include, but not be
limited to, printing costs, costs of reproducing documents, filing and recording fees, initial fees
and charges of the Trustee, legal fees and charges, professional consulfants' fees, financial advisor
fees and expenses, costs of credit ratings, fees and charges for execution, transportation and
safekeeping of Bonds, credit enhancements or liquidity facility fees, fees and expenses of the
Underwriter and the Purchaser, and other costs, charges and fees in connection with the for egoing.

"Counsel" means an attorney or firm of attorneys duly admitted to practice law before
the highest court of any state and approved by the Rank and the Trustee.

"DTC" means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York,



"DTC Participants" shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 2.7 herein.

"DTC's Blanket Letter of Repr,esentations"" means the Blanket Letter of Representations,
dated January 9, 1997 between the Bank and DTC.

"Default" means an event or condition the occurrence of which, with the Iapse of time or
the giving of notice or both, would become an Event of Default hereunder.

"Event of Default”" means any occurrence or event specified in Section 10.1 hereof.

"Funds" means the funds created pursuant to Asticle 6 hereof (except for the Rebate
Fund).

"General Account" means the account by that name created by Section 6.2 hereof,
"General Fund" means the fund by that name created by Section 6.2 hereof,

"Governmental Obligations” means to the extent permitted by State law (a) direct
obligations of the United States of America; and (b) obligations guaranteed as to principal and
interest by the United States of America or any federal agency whose obligations are backed by the
full faith and credit of the United States of America, including but not limited to: Department of
. Housing and Urban Development, Export-Import Bank, Farmers Home Administration (or
successor  thereto), Federal Financing Bank, Federal Housing Administration, Maritime
Administration, Small Business Administration, which obligations include but are not limited to
certificates or receipts representing direct ownership of future interest or principal payments on
obligations described in clause (a) or in this clause (b) and which ate held by a custodian in
safekeeping on behalf of the holders of such receipts,

"Indenture" means this Indenture of Trust, and all supplements and amendments hereto
entered into pursuant to Atticle 12 hereof,

"Interest Payment Date" means any date on which interest is payable on the Bonds, and
for the Series 2025 Bonds, January 1 and July 1, commencing July 1,2025,

"Investment Securities” means any and all securities, instruments and the like in which the
Bank is authorized from time to time to invest its funds under State law, including but not limited
to Governmental Obligations.

"Local Governmental Unit" means (i) any county, municipality, utility district, regional
solid waste authority, county coaperative service district or political subdivision of the State, (ii) the
State or any agency thereof, (iii) the institutions of higher learning of the State, (iv) any ecucation
building corpotation established for instifutions of higher learning, or (v) any other governmental
unit created under S tate law,

"Notice Address” means, with respect to the City, the Bank, the Trustee, and the
Underwriter: :



Banl: Mississippi Development Bank
735 Riverside Drive, Suite 300
Jackson,MS 39202
Attn: Executive Director

Trustee: The Peoples Bank
152 Lameuse Street
Biloxi, MS 39530
Attn.: Corporate Trust Department

Underwriter: Raymond James & Associates, Inc.
1100 Ridgeway Loop, Suite 300
Memphis, TN 38120

City: City of Pass Christian, Mississippi
200 West Scenic Drive
Pass Christian, Mississippi 39571
Attn: Mayor

"Opinion of Bond Counsel” means an opinion by a nationally recognized firm
experienced in matters relating to the tax exemption for interest payable on obligations of states
and their instrumentalities and political subdivisions under federal law, and which is acceptable fo
the Bank and the Trustee.

"Opinion of Counsel" means a written opinion of Counsel addressed to the Trustee, for the
benefit of the owners of the Bonds, who may (except as otherwise expressly provided in this
Indenture) be Counsel to the Bank or Counsel to the owners of the Bonds and who is acceptable to
the Trustee,

"Qutstanding" or "Bonds Outsfanding“ means all Bonds, which have been authenticated
and delivered by the Trustee under this Indenture, including Bonds held by the Bank, except:

(a) Bonds canceled afier purchase in the open market or because of payment
at or redemption prior to maturity; :

.(b) Bonds deemed paid under Article 9 hereof: and

(c)  Bonds in licu of which ofher Bonds have been authenticated under Section
3.5, 3.6 or 3.10 hereof,

"Paying Agent" means The Peoples Bauk, Biloxi, Mississippi, or any successor thereto,
acting as the Paying Agent under the City Bond Resolution.

"Principal Office" means, as it relates to the Trustee, the address for the Trustee sct
forth under the definition of Notice Address above.

"Principal Payment Date" means the maturily date or the mandatory sinking fund



redemption date of any Bond.

"Program" means the program for purchasing Securities of Local Governmental Units by
the Bank pursuant to the Bank Act.

"Program Expenses” means all of the fees and expenses of the Trustee relating to the
Bonds or City Bond and costs of determining the amount rebatable, if any, to the United States of
America under Section 6.11 hereof, all to the extent propetly allocable to the Program and
approved in writing by (he Bank.

"Project" means providing financing for (a) the purchase of the City Bond to finance the
Construction Project and (b) paying the Costs of Issuance for the City Bond and the Series 2025
Bonds,

"Purchase Account' means the account by that name created by Section 6.2 hereof,

"Purchaser" means i or such other purchaser or purchasers as may be
identified by the Underwriter.

"Rebate Fund" means the fund by that name created by Section 6.2 hereof.

"Record Date" means, with réspect to any Interest Payment Date, the fifteenth day of
the calendar month next preceding such Interest Payment Date.

"Redemption Account” means the account by that name created by Section 6.2 hereof,

"Redemption Price” means, with respect to any Bond, the principal amount or portion
thereof being redeemed, plus the applicable premium, if any.

'*Refunding Bonds" means Bonds issued pursuant to Section 2.5 hereof and any
Supplemental Indenture.

"Registered Owner" means the person or persons in whose name any Bond shall be
registéred on the Bond Register.

"Revenues" means the Funds and Accounts (except for the Rebate Fund) and all income,
- revenues and profits of the Funds and Accounts (except for the Rebate Fund) referred to in the
granting. clauses hereof including, without Hmitation, all City Bond Payments and any additional
amounts paid to the Trustee under the City Bond Resolution or from any other source whatsoever.

"S&P" means Standard & Poor's Ratings Group, a division of The McGraw Hill
Companies, its successors and assigns, and, if dissolved or liquidated or if it no Jonger performs the
functions of a securities rafing agency, "S&P" shall be deemed to refer fo any other nationally
recognized securities rating agency designated by the City (with the approval of the Bank), by
written notice to the Trustee.

"Secretary" means the Secretary or the Assistant Secretary of the Bank.



"Series 2025 Bonds" means $2,000,000 Mississippi Development Bank Special Obligation
Bonds, Series 2025 (Pass Christian, Mississippi General Obligation Bond Project) issued pursuant
to Section 2.1 of this Indenture,

"State" means the State of Mississippi.

"Supplemental Indenture" means an indenture supplemental to or amendatory of this
Indenture, executed by the Bank and the Trustee in accordance with Asticle 12 hereof,

"Tax Certificate" means the Tax Certificate of the City or the Tax Cettificate of the Bank,
as the context requires, delivered in connection with the Series 2025 Bonds.

"Trustee" means The Peoples Bank, Biloxi, Mississippi, or any successor thereto hereunder.

"Trust Estate" means the property, rights, and amounts pledged and assigned to the
Trustee pursuant to the granting clauses hereof.

"Underwriter” means Raymond James & Associates, Ine., Memphis, Tennessee, acting as
underwriter or placement agent for the Series 2025 Bonds.

1.2 Rules of Interpretation. For all purposes of this Indenture, except as otherwise
expressly provided orunless the context otherwise requires:

(2) "Ihis Indenture" means this instrument as originally executed and as it
may from time to time be supplemented or amended pursuant to the applicable provisions hereof,

: (b) All references in this instrument to designated "Articles,” "Sections” and
other subdivisions are to the designated Axrticles, Sections and other subdivisions of thig instrument
as originally executed. The words "herein,” "hereof," "hereunder," and "herewith” and other words
of similar import refer to this Indenture as a whole and not to any particular Article, Section or
other subdivision,

(c) The terms defined in this Article or elsewhere in this Tndenture have the
meanings assigned to them in this Article or elsewhere in this Indenture, as the case may be, and
include the plural as well as the singular.

() All accounting termis not othérwise defined her¢in have the meanings
asgigned to them in accordance with generally aceepted accounting principles.

(e) Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed and construed to include
cotrelative words of the feminine and neuter genders.

(f)  The headings or captions used in this Indenture are for convenience of
reference only and shall not define or limit or describe any of the provisions hereof or the §COpe o
intent thereof.



ARTICLE 2
AUTHORIZATION AND ISSUANCE OF BONDS

2.1 Authorization and Issnance of Series 2025 Bonds. Bonds of the Bank to be
lknown and designated as "Mississippi Development Bank Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2025
(Pass Christian, Mississippi General Obligation Bond Project),” are hereby authorized to be issued.
The aggregate principal amount of Series 2025 Bonds that may be issued, authenticated and
Outstanding hereunder is Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000).

There is hereby created by this Indenture, in the manner and to the extent provided herein,
a continuing pledge and lien to secure the full and final payment of the principal or Redemption
Price of and interest on all of the Series 2025 Bonds issued pursuant to this Indenture, The Series
2025 Bonds shall be payable solely from the Revenues, The State shall not be liable on‘the Series
2025 Bonds and the Series 2025 Bonds shall not be a debt, liability, pledge of the faith or loan of
the credit or moral obligation of the State. The Series 2025 Bonds shall contain on the face thereof
a statement to the effect that the Bank is obligated to pay the principal of the Series 2025 Bonds,
and the interest and thie redemption premium, if any, thereon only from the Revenues and that the
State is not obligated to. pay such principal, interest or redemption premiurm, if any, and that
neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State is pledged to the payment of the
Series 2025 Bonds. In the Bank Act, the State has pledged to and agreed with the holders of any
Series 2025 Bonds that the State will tiot limit or alter the rights hereby vested in the Bank to
fulfill the terms of any agreements inade with the Bondholders or in any way impair the rights
and remedies of such holders until such Series 2025 Bonds, together with the interest thercon, with
interest on any unpaid installments of interest, and all costs and expenses in connection with any
action or proceeding by or on behalf of such holders of Series 2025 Bonds, are fully met and
discharged. All Series 2025 Ronds shall mature on or before J annary 1, 2040.

2.2 Puorpose and Disposition of Series 2025 Bonds,

The purpose for issuing the Series 2025 Bonds is to fund the Purchase Account in order to
provide funds for the purchase of the City Bond (which amounts are to provide funds to the City
for the Constriction Project pursuant to the Act) and to fund the Bond Issnance Expense Account
of the General Fund to pay Costs of Issuance. Upon the delivery of the Series 2025 Bonds and
receipt of the net proceeds therefor, the Bank shall deliver to the Trustee the net proceeds of the
Series 2025 Bonds in the amount of § _ Yor deposit (i) into the Bond Tssuance Expense

- Account of the General Fund, the sum of § to pay Costs of Issudnce; and (if) into
the Purchase Account, $ to be distributed to the City as provided in the City Bond
Purchase Agicement for the purchase of the Gity Bond.

2.3 General Description of the Series 2025 Bonds. The Series 2025 Bonds shall be
issuable as fully registered bonds in the auihorized denominations of $100,000 orany integral multiple
of $1,000 in excess thereof. The Series 2025 Bonds shall be numbered frora R-1 upwanrd, as applicable.
The Series 2025 Bonds may be issued initially as a single type-written fully registered bond in the
aggregate principal amount thereof.

10



Each Series 2025 Bond shall carry an original issue date of January _ , 2025 and shall
carry the date on which it is authenticated. If a Series 2025 Bond is authenticated on or prior to July
1, 2025, it shall bear interest from its date. Each Series 2025 Bond authenticated thereafter shall bear
interest from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid as of the date
of authentication of such Series 2025 Bond unless such Series 2025 Bond is authenticated after a
Record Date and on or before the next succeeding Interest Payment Date, in which event the Series
2025 Bond will bear interest from such next succeeding Interest Payment Date.

Interest on each Series 2025 Bonds shall be payable on January 1 and July [ of each year,
commencing July 1,2025, until such Series 2025 Bond is paid. Interest will be calculated using a
three hundred sixty (360) day year based on twelve (12) thirty (30) day months.

The Series 2025 Bonds shall bear interest at the rates per annum and shall be subject to
mandatory sinking fund redemption, in part, by lot, on January 1 of each of the years set forth below
at a price of one hundred percent (100%) of the prmmpal arnount so redeemed, plus accrued jnterest
to the redemption date, as set forth below:!

PRINCIPAL INTEREST
YEAR AMOUNT RATE
2026 110,000.00
2027 100,000.00
2028 105,000.00
2029 110,000.00
2030 115,000.00
2031 120,000.00
2032 125,000.00
2033 130,000.00
2034 135,000.00
2035 140,000.00
2036 150,000.00
2037 155,000.00
2038 160,000.00
2039 170,000.00
2040 175,000.00

24  Provisions for Issuance of Bonds. The Bonds shall be executed by Authorized
Officers of the Banlk for issuance under this Indenture and delivered to the Trustee and thereupon
shall be authenticated by the Trustee and be delivered by the Trustee as specified in a written order
of the Bank, but only upon the receipt by the Trustee oft '

(a) A copy, duly certified by an Authorized Officer, of the resolution or
resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors of the Bank authorizing the execution and delivery
of this Indenture and all other instruments contemplated thercby and the authorization, issuance,
sale and delivery of the Series 2025 Bonds;

1 Preliminary subject to change

11



(b) A copy, duly certified by the Municipal Clerk or an authorized officer of the
City, of the City Bond Resolution and any other resolution(s) of the Clty authorizing the execution
and delivery of all instruments contemplated thereby and appr avmo this Indenture and the
authorization, i issudnce, sale and delivery of the City Bond;

(c) Original executed counterparts of the Bond Documents;

@) Signed copies of all opinions of Counsel, including op:mons of Bond
Counsel, required by the Bond Documents or the Underwriter;

() A request and authorization to the Trustee by or on behalf of the Bank
and signed by an Authorized Officer to authenticate and deliver the Series 2025 Bonds to or as
directed by the Underwriter or Purchaser, as the case may be, and specifying the amounts to be
deposited in the accounts of the General Fund pursuant to Section 2.2 hereof; and

€3] Such further documents, moneys and securities as are required by the
provisions of this Section 2.4 or Atticle 7 helenf and the Underwriter.

25 Provisions for Issuance of Refunding Bonds.

- (a) All or any part of one or more $eries of Refunding Bonds may be issued
hereunder, and autheniicated and delivered upon original issuance, o refund all or any part of the
Qutstanding Bonds. Refunding Bonds shall be issued in a principal amount sufficient, together with
other monies available therefor, to accomplish such refunding and to make such deposits required by
the provisions of the Act this Section and by the Supplemental Indenture authorizing said Refunding
Bonds.

(b) Refunding Bords may be authenticated and delivered only upon receipt by
the Trustee (in addition to the receipt by the Trustee of the documents required by Section 2.4
hereof with respect to such Refunding Bonds) of:

6] Irrevocable instructions to the Trustee, satisfactory to if, to 'glve due notice
of redemptioti of all of the Series 2025 Bonds to be refunded on the redemption date specified
in such instructions;

(i) Irrevocable instructions to the Trustes, satisfactory o it, to give due notice

- provided for in Section 4.5 hereof to the owners of the Series 2025 Bonds being refunded
(which may be a conditional notice of rederption); and

(ii})  Either (A) monies in an amount sufficient to effect timely payment at the
Redemption Price or prineipal payment amount of the Series 2025 Bonds to b refunded or
paid, respectively, together with accrued interest on such Series 2025 Bonds to the
redemption or maturity date and all- necessary and appropriate feés and expenses of the
Trustee, which monies shall be held by the Triistee or an éscrow agent approved by the Bank
in a sgparate account irrevocably in trust for and assigned to the respective owners of the
Series 2025 Bonds to be refinded or paid, or (B) Governmental Obligations in such prinicipal
amounts, of such maturities, bearing such interest, and otherwise having such terms and

12



qualifications, as shall be necessary to comply with the provisions of Article 9 which
Governmental Obligations shall be held in trust and used only as provided in said Article.

2,6  Form of Bonds. The Bonds and the Trustee's certificate of authentication to be
endorsed on the Bonds are all to be in substantially the following form, with necessary and
appropriate variations, omissions and insertions as are permitted or required by this Tndenture, or
any Supplemental Indenture, as applicable:

i3



. [FORM OF SERIES 2025 BOND]

[UNLESS THIS BOND IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF
THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY, A NEW YORK CORPORATION ("DTC"), TO
THE TRUSTEE (AS DEFINED BELOW) OR ITS AGENT FOR REGISTRATION OF
TRANSFER, EXCHANGE, OR PAYMENT, AND ANY CERTIFICATE ISSUED IS
REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS 1S
REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC (AND ANY
PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO. OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS
REQUESTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC), ANY TRANSFER,
PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY
PERSON IS WRONGFUL IN AS MUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF,
CEDE & CO., HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.]

THIS BOND HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER. THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT"), AND MAY BE SOLD OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED ONLY TO AN INSTITUTIONAL “ACCREDITED INVESTOR,” AS
DEFINED IN RULE 501 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT, OR A “QUALIFIED
INSTITUTIONAL BUYER,” AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT,
OR ANY SUCCESSOR PROVISIONS THERETO, IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE
FEDERAL AND STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND OTHERWISE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
- THE PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE REFERRED TO BELOW.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE QF MISSISSIPPI
MISSISSIPPI DEVELOPMENT BANK
SPECIAL OBLIGATION BOND, SERIES 2025
(PASS CHRISTIAN, MISSISSIPPT GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND PROJECT)

NO. R~ $
_ o Date of
Irterest Rate Maturity Date  Origipal Issue Date  Authentication CUSIR
Yoo . January.1,20........ January .., 2025 o -~ 2025 .

Registered Owner: [CEDE & CO.]

Principal Amount: o DOLLARS

Mississippi -Development Bank, a body corporate and politic, exercising essential public
functions ("Bank"), oxgamze:d undet the laws of the State of Mississippi (the "State"), for value
received, hereby promises fo pay to the Registered Owner specified above, or tegistered assigns,
upon surrender hereof; the principal amount stated above in laswful money of the United States of
 America but solely from the sources réfeired to herein and not otherwise, on the Maturity Date
specified above, tothe extent not earlier redeemed as provided herein, and to pay interest. on sueh

14



principal amount outstanding from time to time in like money, but solely from said sources, from
the interest payment date to which interest has been paid as of the date of authentication of this
Series 2025 Bond (unless this Series 2025 Bond ‘is authenticated on or before July 1, 2025, then
from its original issue date, or unless this Series 2025 Bond is authenticated after July 1,2025 and
on or before the next succeeding interest payment date, then from such interest payment date or
unless payment of the interest on this Bond is in default, then from such date when interest has been
paid in full) at the Interest Rate per annum stated above, payable on each January 1 and July 1,
commencing July 1,2025, until the principal amount of this Series 2025 Bond shall have been paid
in full. The payment of principal of this Series 2025 Bond at final maturity, or upon earlier optional
redemption as provided herein, will be made upon presentation and surrender hereof at the principal
corporate trust officeof - , , Mississippi, as trustee (the "Trustee™), or at the principal
corporats trust office- of any successor trustee appointed under the Indenture hereinafter mentioned.
Payments of interest hereon, and mandatory sinking fund redemption payments, if any, will be made
to'the Registered Owner hereof whose name appears on the registration records kept by the Trustee at
the close of business on the fitteenth day of the calendar mionth next preceding the applicable payment
date by check mailed on the payment date by the Trustee to such Registered Owner at his address as
it appears on the registration records of the Bank kept by the Trustee o, at the wiitten election of the
Registered Owner of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principdl amount of Series 2025 Bonds
delivered to the Tristee at least one Business Day ptior to the Record Date (as defined in the Indenture)
for which such election will be effective, by wire transfer to the Registered Owner or by deposit into
the account of the Registered Owner if such account is maintained by the Trustee.

In any case where the due date of interest on, or the maturity date of principal of, or the
date fixed for redemption of this Series 2025 Bond shall not be a Business Day, then payment of
such amounts then due may be made on the next Business Day with the same foree and effect as
if made on the due date.

[Notwithstanding any other provision of this Series 2025 Bond or the Indentute to the
contrary, so long as this Series 2025 Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of
DTC, all payments with respect to the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on this Series
2025 Bond and all notices with respect to this Series 2025 Bond shall be made and given,
respectively, in the imanner provided in DTC's Blanket Létter of Representations. ]

The prineipal of this Series 2025 Bond and the other Series 2025 Bonds, and the interest
and premium, if aiy, payable héreon and thereon, are payable solely by the Bank from the
- Reveres (as defined herein) and other funids 6F 1hs Baitk pledged thigrefor iider the Thdéntive,
which Revenues and funds include the payments on the City Bond (as hereinafter defined)
purchased by the Bank. The Bank has no taxing power. This Series 2025 Bond -and the other
Series 2025 Bonds, both as to principal, preminm, if any, and inferest, constitute neither a debt,
liability or loan of the credit of the Stateé or any political subdivision thercof under the
constitution or statutes of the State nor & pledge of the faith and credit, the taxing power or
moral obligation of the State or any political subdivision thereof; provided, however, that the
City Bond securing this Series 2025 Bond is a general obligation of the City. The issuance of
the Series 2025 Boiids under ‘the provisions of the Act, as hereinafter defined, does not,
directly, indirectly or contingently, obligate the State or any political subdivision thereof other
than the City to levy any form of taxation for the payment thereof or to make any ‘appropriation

15



for their payment and such Series 2025 Bonds do not now and shall never constitute a debt
of the ‘State or ary political subdivision thereof within the meaning of the constitution or the
statutes of the State and do not now and shall never constitute a charge against the credit of the
State or any political subdivision thereof or a charge against the taxing power of the State or
any political subdivision thereof. Neither the State nor any agent, attorney, member or
employee of the State or of the Bank shall in any event be liable for the payment of the
principal of, premium if any, or interest on the Series 2025 Bonds or for the performance of
any pledge, mortgage, obligation or agreement of any kind whatsoever which may be
undertaken by the Bank, No breach by the Bank of any such pledge, mortgage obligation or
agreement may impose dny liability, pecuniary or otherwise, upon the State or any agent,
employee, attorney or member of the State or of the Bank, or any charge upon their general
credit or upon the taxing power of the State. In the Bank Act (hereinafter defined), the State
has pledged and agreed with the holders of any Series 2025 Bonds that the State will not limit
or alter the rights thereby vested in the Bank to fulfill the terms of any agreements made with
the Bondholders or in any way impair the rights and remedics of such holders until such Series
2025 Bonds, together with the interest and premium, if any, thereon, with interest on any
unpaid installments of interest, and all costs and expenses in connection with any action or
proceeding by or on behalf of such holders of Series 2025 Bonds, are fully met and discharged.

This Series 2025 Bond is one of an authorized issue of bonds of the Bank known as
Mississippi Development Bank Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2025 (Pass Christian,
Mississippi General Obligation Bond Project) ("Series 2025 Bonds") issued under and
~ gecured by an Indenture of Trust dated as of J anuary 1, 2025 ("Indenture"), duly executed and
delivered by the Bark to the Trustee. The Series 2025 Bonds are limited in aggregate principal
amount to Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000). The Series 2025 Bonds are issued pursuant to Sections
31-25-1 ef seq., Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended ("Bank Act"), and Sections 21-33-301 e
seq., Mississippi Code of 1972, as amended (the "City Bond Act") and, together with the Bank
Act, the "Act"), to provide funds to purchase the City Bond to provide funds for the Construction
Project (as hereinafter defined) and to pay costs of issuing the Series 2025 Bonds and the City
Bond. The "City" is Pass Christian, Mississippi and the "City Bond"" is the City of Pass Christian,
Mississippi General Obligation Bond, Series 2025 in the aggregate principal amount of $2,000,000,
The City Bond is a general obligation of the City secured and described in that certain Bond
Resolution, adopted by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the City on January 7, 2025 (the “City
Bond Resolution"). The proceeds received by the City from the sale of the City Bond 1o the Bank
will be used by the City for the purpose of financing certain capital projects and improvements which
shall consist of any of the following! erecting municipal buildings, auditoriums, community centers,
gymnasiums and athletic stadiums, preparing and equipping athletic fields, and purchasing buildings
or larid therefor, and for repairing, improving, aclor’nin_g and equipping the same and for erecting,
equipping and furnishing of buildings to be used as a municipal or civic arts cenfer; erecting or
purchasing waterworks, gas, electric and other public utility plants or distribution systems or
franchises, and repairing, impioving and extending the same; establishing sanitary, storm, drainage or
sewerage systems, and repairing, improving and extending the same; protecting the nunicipality, its
streets and sidewalks from overflow, caving banks and other like dangers; constructing, improving
and paving streets, sidewalks, driveways, parkways, walkways or public parking facilities, and
purchasing land therefor; purchasing land for parks, cemeteries and public playgrounds, and

16



improving, equipping and adorning the same, including the constructing, repairing and equipping of
swimming pools and other recreational facilities; constructing bridges and culverts; altering or
changing the channels of streams and water courses to control, deflect or guide the current thereof:
purchasing fire-fighting equipment and apparatus, and prowdmg housing for same, and purchasing
land therefor; purchasing or renting voting machines and any other election equipment needed in
elections held in the municipality; purchasing machinery and heavy equipment which will have an
expected useful Jife in excess of ten (10) years, but specifically not including any motor vehicles
weighing less than twelve thousand {12,000) pounds (the "Construction Project™).

The City Bond Resolution, a certified copy of which is on file in the principal corporate
trust office of the Trustee, provides that the City is obligated to make payments secured by the full
faith, credit and taxing power of the City in an aggregate amount sufficient, with any other funds
available therefor, for the payment in full of the principal of and interest on all Bonds issued and
Outstanding under the Indenture, to the date of payment thereof.

In the City Bond Resolution, the City covenants to levy a direct, continuing special tax
upon all of the taxable property within the geographical limits of the City, adequate and sufficient,
after allowance shall have been made for the expenses of collection and delinquencies in the payment
of taxes, to produce sums required for the payment of the principal of and the interest on the City
Bound according to the terms thersof; provided, however, that such tax levy for any year shall be
abated to the extent that the City on or prior to September 1 of that year has transferred money to
the bond fund established for the City Bond, ot has made other provisions for funds, to be applied
toward the payment of the principal of and interest on the City Bond due during the ensuing fiscel
year of the City, in accordance with the provisions of the City Bond Resolution. Said tax shall
be extended upon the tax rolls and collected in the same manner and at the same time as other taxes
of the City are collected, and the rate of tax which shall be so extended shall be sufficient in each
year fully fo produce the sums required as aforesaid, without limitation as to time, rate or amount.
The avails of said tax are irrevocably pledged in the City Bond Resolution for the payment of
the principal of and interest on the City Bond as the same shall respectively mature and come due.

The Series 2025 Bonds, together with any Refunding Bonds which may be issued under the
Indenture (collectively, "Bonds"), are all cqually and ratably secured by and entitled to the
protection of the Indeniure on a parity one with another. To secure payment of principal of and
premium, if any, and interest on all Bonds and the performance of all other coverants of the Bank
under the Indenture, the Bank, pursuant to the Indenture, has assigned and pledged to the Trustee,
and has granted to the Trustee a security interest in; the Trust Estate (as defined inthe Indenture),
including all tights, title and interest of the Bank in and to all moneys. and securities from time to
time received and held by the Trustee under the Indenture and all income from the deposit,
investment and reinvestment thereof except any moneys and securities held in the Rebate Fund
established under the Indenture (all such money and funds and accounts referred fo in the granting
clauses of the Indenture are defined in the Indenture and are herein referred 1o as the "Revenues').

Reference is hereby made to the Indenture for a description of the rights, duties and
obligations of the Bank, the Trustee and the owners of the Bonds, the terms and conditions
upon which the Series 2025 Bonds are issued and the termis and conditions upon which the Series
2025 Bonds will be paid at or prior to maturity, or will be deemed to be paid upon the making of
provision for payment therefor, to all of which terms and conditions this Series 2025 Borid is subject.

17



Copies of the Indenture are on file at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee.

This Series 2025 Bond is transferable by the Registered Owner hereof in person or by his
attorney duly authorized in writing at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee, but only in
the manner and subject to the limitations prescribed in the Indenture and upon surrender and
cancellation of this Series 2025 Bond. This Series 2025 Bond may be transferred without costio the
Registered Owner except for any tax or governmental charge required to be paid with respect to the
transfer. Upon such transfer a new Series 2025 Bond or Series 2025 Bonds of the same maturity
and of authorized denomination or denominations for the same aggregate principal amount
outstanding will be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor. The Series 2025 Bonds are issuable
as fully registered bonds in minimum denominations of $100,000 and any integral multiple of $1,000
in excess thereof.

The Bank and the Trustee may deem and treaf the Registered Owner hereof as the absolute
owner hereof for the purpose. of receiving payment of or on account of principal hereof and the
interest due hereon and for all other purposes and neither the Bank nor the Trustee shall be affected
by any notice to the contrary.

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. The Series 2025 Bonds are subject to mandatory
sinking fund redemption, in part, by lot, on January 1 of the years set forth below at a redemption
price of 100% of the principal amount so redeemed plus accrued interest to the redemption date in
dccordance with the following schedule

PRINCIPAL INTEREST

YEAR AMOUNT RATE
2026 $110,000,00

2027 100,000.00

2028 105,000.00

2029 110,000.00

2030 115,000.00

2031 120,000.00

2032 125,000.00

2033 130,000.00

2034 135,000.00

2035 140,000.00

2036 150,00000"

2037 155,000.00

2038 160,000.00

2039 170,000.00

2040 175,000,00

Optional Redemption. In accordance with the Indenture and the: City Bond Resolution,
the Serics 2025 Bonds dre subject to optional redemption prior to their stated date of final maturity
in whole or in part, inprincipal amounts and maturities as selected by the Bank on any date on or

2 Prelithinary, subject to change.

18



after Janvary 1,20___, at par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption thereof,

If less than all of the Series 2025 Bonds are to be redeemed, the principal amount and
maturity to be redeemed shall be selected by the Bank, and the Trustee, in its sole discretion,
shall select the Bonds to be redeemed by lot within a selected maturity, provided that Bonds shall
be redeetmed only in whole multiples of $1,000. In accordance with DTC’s standard practices and its
agreement with the Bank, DTC and the DTC Participants will make this selection so long as the
Series 2025 Bonds are in book-entry only form..

If any of the Bonds are called for redemption as aforcsaid, notice thereof identifying the
Bonds to be redeemed will be given by mailing a copy of the redemption notice (which may be a
conditional notice of redemption) by registered or certified mail not less than thirty (30) days nor
more than forty-five (45) days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the Registered Owner of
the Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the Bond Register., Failure to give such notice
by mailing, or any defect therein with respect to any Bond, shall not affect the validity of any
proceedings for the redemption of other Bonds. All Bonds, or portions thereof, so called for
redemption will cease to bear interest on the specified redemption date, shall no longer be secured
under the Indenture and shall not be deemed to be Quistanding under the provisions of the
Inderiture, provided funds for their.redemption are on deposit at the place of payment prior to the
redemption date.

The Registered Owner of this Series 2025 Bond shall have no right to enforce the provisions
of the Indenture or to institute an action to enforce the covenants therein, or to take any action
with respect to any event of default under the Indenture, or to institute, appear in or defend any
suit or other proceeding with respect thereto, except as provided in the Indenture. In certain events,
on the conditions, in the manner and with the effect set forth in the Indenture, the principal of all
the Series 2025 Bonds issued under the Indenture and then Outstanding may become or may be
declared due and payable before the stated maturity thereof, together withinterest accrued thereor.
Modifications or alterations of the Indenture, or of any supplements thereto, may be made to the
extent permitied by, and in accordance with, the Indenture,

The Bank hereby certifies, recites and declares that all acts, conditions and things required
by the constitution and statutes of the State, the Indenture, and resolutions of the Bank to exist,
happen -and be performed prior to the issuance of this Seties 2025 Bond do exist, have happened
and have been performed in due time, form and manner as required by the Act; that the issuance of
the Series 2025 Bonds, together with all other obligations of the Bank, does not exceed or violate
any constitutional or statutory limitation applicable to the Bank; and that the Revenues pledged to
the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2025 Bonds, as the same
become due, are designed to be sufficient in amount for that purpose,

This Series 2025 Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be
entitled to any security or benefit under the Indenture until the certificate of authentication hereon
shall have been signed by the Trustee.

Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the
Indenture.

19



20



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mississippi Development Bank has caused this Series
2025 Bond to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the manual or facsimile signature of its
Executive Director and a manual or facsimile seal of its official seal to be hereunto impressed or
imprinted hereon by any means and attested by the manual signatare of its Secretary.

MISSISSIPPI DEVELOPMENT BANK

By:

Executive Director
ATTEST:

By:

Secretary

(SEAL)

21



[FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION i

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

Thiis Bond is one of the Series 2025 Bands issued and delivered pursuant to the provisions
of the within mentioned Indenture.

as Trustee

Date of Authentication: .20

[FORM OF VALIDATION CERTIFICATE]
VALIDATION CERTIFICATE

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
COUNTY OF HINDS

The undersigned Secretary of the Mississippi Development Bank does hercby certify that
the within Series 2025 Bond has been validated and confirmed by Decree of the Chancery Court
of the First Judicial District of Hinds County, Mississippi, rendered onthe ___ day of , 2025,

Secretary
(SEAL)

22



[FORM OF ASSIGNMENT]

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto

(PLEASE INSERT SOCIAL SECURITY OR OTHER IDENTIFYING NUMBER OF
ASSIGNEE)

(PLEASE PRINT OR TYPEWRITE NAME AND ADDRESS OF ASSIGNEE)

the within Series 2025 Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and
appoints , Attorney, to transfer the within Series 2025 Bond on the records kept
forregistration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:
NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must
correspond with the name as it appears upon the
face of the within Series 2025 Bond in every
particular, without alteration or any change
whatsoever,

Signature Guaranteed:

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed
by a member of g mationally recognized
Medallion  Signature Guaranty Prograin
acceptable to the Trustee.

BY: '

[END OF SERIES 2025 BOND FORM]

23



2.7 [Book-Entry Only System. The Series 2025 Bonds shall be initially issued in the
form of a separate single fully registered Series 2025 Bond. Upon initial issuance, the ownership of
such Series 2025 Bond shall be registered in the Bond Register in the name of Cede & Co., asnominee
of DTC, and except as provided in Section 2.8 hereof; all of the outstanding Series 2025 Bonds shall
be registered in the Bond Register in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC. With respect to
Series 2025 Bonds registered in the Bond Register in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC,
the Bank and the Trustee shall have no responsibility or obligation to any participant for whom DTC
is a security depository nominee ("DTC Participants™) or to any person on behalf of whom such a
DTC Participant holds an intercst in the Series 2025 Bonds. Without limiting the immediately
preceding sentence, the Bank and the Trustee shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to
(a) the accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any
ownership interest in thé Series 2025 Bonds, (b) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other
person, other than a Bondholder, as shown in the Bond Register, of any notice with respect to the
Series 2025 Bonds, or (c) the payrment to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than a
Bondholder, as shown in the Bond Register, of any amount with respect to principal of, premium, if
any, or interest on, the Series 2025 Bonds. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Indenture to
the contrary, the Bank, the Trustee and each paying agent, if any, shall be entitled to treat and consider
the person in whose name each Series 2025 Bond is registered in the Bond Register as the absolute
owner of such Series 2025 Bond for the purpose of payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest
with respect to such Series 2025 Bond, for the purpose of giving notices and other matters with respect
to such Series 2025 Bond, for the purpose of registering transfers with respect to such Series 2025
Bond, and for all other purposes whatsoever, The Trustee and each paying agent, if any, shall pay all
principal of, premiun, if any, and interest on the Series 2025 Bonds only to or upon the order of the
respective Bondholders, as shown in the Bond Register as provided in this Indenture, or their
respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid and effective to
fully satisfy and discharge the Bauk's obligations with respect to payment of principal of, premium, if
any, and interest on the Series 2025 Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No person other
than a Bondholder, as shown in the Bond Register, shall receive a Series 2025 Bond certificate
evidencing the obligation of the Bank to make payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest
pursuant to this Indenture. Upon delivéry by DTC to the Trustee of written notice to the effect that
DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the provisions
in this Indenture with respect to intérest checks or drafts being mailed to the Registered Owner at the
close of business on the Record Date, the words "Cede & Co." in this Indenture shall réfer fo such new
nominees of DTC; and upon receipt of such a notice the Trustee shall promptly deliver a copy of the
same to each paying agent, if any.

2.8 Successor Securities Depository; Transfers OQuiside Book-Entry Onaly
System. If the Bank determines that DTC is incapable of discharging its responsibilities described
herein and DTC's Blanket Letter of Representations or that it is in the best interest of the Beneficial
Owners of the Series 2025 Bonds that they be able to obtain certificated Series 2025 Bonds, the Bank
shall (a} appoint a successor secutities depository, qualified to act as such under Section 17(a) of the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, notify DTC and DTC Participants of the
appointment of such successor sccurities depository and transfer one or more separate Series 2025
Bond certificates to such successor securities depository or (b) notify DTC and DTC Participants of
the availability through DTC of Series 2025 Bond certi ficates and transfer one or more separate Series

24



2025 Bond certificates to DTC Participants having Series 2025 Bonds credited to their DTC accounts.
In such event, the Series 2025 Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the Bond
Register in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, buf miay be registered in the name of the
successor securities depository, or its nominee, or in whatever name or names Bondholders
transferring or exchanging Series 2025 Bonds shall designate, in accordance with the provisions of
this Indenture.

29  Payments. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Indenture to the conltrary, so
long as any of the Series 2025 Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as noininee of DIC, all
payments with respect to the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Series 2025 Bonds and
all notices with respect to 'such Series 2025 Bonds shall be made and given, respectively, in the
manner provided in DTC's Blanket Lettei of Representations. The Trustee shall request in each notice
sent to Cede & Co. pursuant to the terms of this Indenture that Cede & Co. forward or cause to be
forwarded such notice to the DTC Participants.]

ARTICLE 3

GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF BONDS

3.1  Medium, Form and Place of Payment. The Bonds shall be payable, with respect
to interest, principal and Redemption Price, in any coin or currency of the United States of America
which at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. Interest
shall be payable by check mailed on the Inferest Payment Date to the Registered Owners as of the
Record Date. Mandatory sinking fund redemption payments shall be payable by check mailed on the
due date thereof to the Registered Owners as of the Record Date. The Bark may provide for the
payment of interest and mandatory sinking fund redemption payments on Bonds to holders of
$1,000,000 or more in principal amount of Bonds by wire transfer or by ‘such other method as is
acceptable to the Trustee and the Bondholder upon written election of such Bondholder at least one
Business Day ptior to the applicable Record Date. The payment of principal at final maturity, or upon
eatlier optional redemption, will be made at the Principal Office of the Trastse upon presentation and
surrender of the Bonds to be paid. '

3.2 Legends. The Bonds may contain or have endorsed thereon such provisions,
specifications and descriptive words 1ot inconsistent with ihe provisions of this Indenture as may be
necessary or desirable to comply with custom, as determined by the Bank prior to the delivery thereof,

33 Excecution. The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the Bank with the manual of

facsimile signature of its Exécutive Director, Secretary, President of Vice President and shall have
impressed or imprinted thereon, by facsimile or otherwise, the official seal of the Bank, which
seal shall be attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Executive Director, Secretary or
Assistant Secretary of the. ‘Bank. Tn case any officer of the Bank whose signature or whose
facsimile signature shall appear on the Bonds shall cease 1o be such officer before the delivery
of such Bonds, such signature or facsimile signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient
for all putposes, the same as if such officer had remained in office until delivery. Any Bond may
be executed and attestod on behalf of the Bank by such officer as at the time of the execution of
such Bonds shall be duly authorized or hold the proper office of the Bank although at the date
borme. by the Bonds or at the date of delivery of the Bonds such officer may not have heen so

25



authorized or have held such office.

34 Authentication. No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or entifled to
any security or benefit under this Indenture unless and until a certificate of authentication on such
Bond substantially in the following form shall have been duly executed by the Trustee, and such
executed certificate of the Trustee upon any such Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such
Bond has been authenticated and delivered under this Indenture:

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This Bond is on¢ of the Series 2025 Bonds issued and delivered pursuant to the provisions
of the within mentioned Indenture.

THE PEOPLES BANK,
as Trustee

By:

Authorized Signatory

The Trustee's certificate of authentication on any Bond shall be deemed to have been
executed by it if signed by an authorized representative or signatory of the Trustee, but it shall not
be necessary that the same representative or signatory sign the certificate of authentication on all of °
the Bonds. The signature of the authorized representative or signatory of the Trustee shall be manual.

3.5 Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bounds. If any Bond is mutilated, lost,
stolen or destroyed, the Bank shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate a new Bond or
Bonds of the same maturity’ and denomination, as that mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed Bond,;
provided that in the case of any mutilated Bond, such Bond shall fitst be sutrendered fo the
Trustee, and in the case of any lost, stolen or destroyed Bond, there shall be first furnished to the
Trustes evidence of such loss, theft or destruction satisfactory to the Trustee, together with
indemnity satisfactory to it. If any such Bond shall have matured or been called for redemption,
instead of issuing and authenticating a duplicate Bond, the Trustee miay pay the same without -
surrender thereof, provided, however, that in the case of a lost, stolen or destroyed Bond, thers shall
be first furnished to the Trustee evidence of such loss, theft or destruction satisfactory to the
Trustee together with indenmity satisfactory to it. Theé Trustee may charge the owner of such Bond
its reasonable -fees and expenses in connection with replacing any Bond mutilated, lost, stolen or
destroyed, Any Bond issued pursuant to this Section 3.5 shall be deemed part of the original series
of the Bonds in respect of which it was issued and a contractual obligation of the Bank replacing
the obligation evidenced by such mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed Bond,

3.6 Registration, Transfer and Exchange of Bonds; Persons Treated as Owners.
The Bank shall cause records for the registration and for the transfer of the Bonds to be kept by the
Trustee at its Principal Office, and the Trustee is hereby constituted and appointed the bond registrar
of the Bank. At reasonable times and under reasonable regulations established by the Trustee, sdid
records may be inspected by the Bank or by Beneficial Owners (or a designated representative
thereof) of five percent (5%) or more in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then QOutstanding,

26



Upon surrender for transfer of any Bond at the Principal Office of the Trustee, duly
endorsed by, or accompanied by a written instrument or instruments of transfer in form satisfactory
to the Trustee and duly executed by the Registered Owner or his attorney duly authorized in
writing, the Bank shell execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver in the name of the
transferee or transferees a new Bond or Bonds of the same maturity for a like aggregate principal
amount. The Bonds may be transferred or exchanged without cost to the Bondholders except for
any tax or governmental charge required to be paid with respect to the transfer or exchange. The
execution by the Bank of any Bond of any denomination shall constitute full and due authorization
of such denomination and the Trustee shall thereby be authorized to authenticate and deliver such
Bond.

The Trustee shall not be required (a) to register, transfer or exchange any Bond duting a
period of fifteen (15) days next preceding the mailing of a notice of redemption of any Bonds, or
(b) to register, transfer or exchange any Bonds selected, called or being called for redemption in
whole or in part after mailing notice of such call has been made.

The person in whose name a registored Bond shall be registered shall be deemed and
regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and payment of principal and premium,
if'any, of such Bond, and interest thereon, shall be made only to or upon the order of the Registered
Owner thereof or his legal representa.tlve but such registration may be changed as hereinabove
provided. All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon
such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.

All Bonds delivered vpon any transfer or exchange shall be valid obligations of the Bank,
evidencing the same debt as the Bonds surrendered, shall be secured by this Indenture and shall be
entitled to all of the security and benefits hereof to the same extent as the Bond sutrendered.

3.7 Destruction of Bonds. Whenever any Outstanding Bond shall be delivered to the
Trustee for cancellation pursuant to this Indenture or for replacement pursuant to Section 3.5 hercof,
*or upon payment in full of the principal or Redemption Price of and interest due on such Bond, such
Bond shall be canceled and destroyed by the Trustee and a counterpart of a certificate of destruction
evidencing such destruction shall be furnished by the Trustee to the Bank.

3.8 Nonpresentment of Bonds, If any Bond shall not be presented for payment when
the principal thereof comes due at final maturity, or at the date fixed for the earier optional
redemption thereof, if funds sufficient to pay such Bond shall have been made available to the
Trustee for the benefit of the Registcred Owner thereof, all liability of the Bank to the Registered
Owner thereof for the payment of such Bond shall forthwith cease, terminate and be completely
discharged, and thereupon it shall be the duty of the Trustee to hold such funds for four @
years, for the benefit of the Registered Owner of such Boid, without liability for interest thereon
to such Registered Owner, who shall thereafter be restricted exclusively to such funds for any
claim of whatever nature on his part under this Indenture or on, or with respect to, said Bond.

Any money so deposited with and held by the Trustes not so applied to the payment of

Bonds within four (4) years after the date on which the same shall become due shall be repaid by the
Trustee to the Bank and thereafter the Bondholders shall be entitled to look only to the Bank for

27



payment, and then only to the extent of the amount so repaid, and the Bank shall not be liable for
any interest thereon to the Bondholders and shall not be regarded as a trustee of such money.

3.9  Other Obligations Payable from Revenues. The Bank shall grant no liens or
encumbrances on or security interests in the Trust Estate (other than those created by this Indenture)
and, except for the Bonds, shall issue no bonds or other evidences of indebtedness payable from
the Trust Estate,

3.10 Temporary Bonds, Until the definitive Bonds are ready for delivery, the Bank
may exccute, in the same manner as is provided in Section 3,3 hereof, and, upon the request of the
Bank, the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, one or more temporary Bonds, which shall be
fully registered. Such temporary Bonds shall be subject to the same provisions, limitations and
conditions as the definitive Bonds and shall be substantially of the tenor of the definitive Bonds
in lieu of which such temporary Bond or Bonds are issued, in the denomination of $100,000 or any
integral multiple of $1,000 in excess thereof as authorized by the Bank, and with such omissions,
insertions and variations as may be appropriate {o temporary Bonds. The Bank at its own expense
shall prepare and execute and, upon the surrender of such temporary Bonds shall deliver in exchange
therefor definitive Bonds, of the same aggregate principal amount and maturity as the temporary
Bonds surrendered. Until so exchanged, the temporary Bonds shall in all respects be entitled to
the same benefits and security as definitive Bonds issued pursuant to this Indenture,

If the Bank shall authorize the issuance of temporary Bonds in more than one
denomination, the owner of any temporary Bond or Bonds may, at his option, surrender the same to
the Trustee in exchange for another temporary Bond or Bonds of like aggregate principal amount
and maturity of any other authorized denomination or denominations, and thereupon the Bank shall
execute and the Trustee, in exchange for the temporary Bond or Bonds so surendered and upon
payment of the taxes and charges provided for in Section 3.6 hereof, shall authenticate and deliver
a temporary Bond or Bonds of like aggregate principal amount and ‘maturity in such other
authorized denomination or denominations as shall be requested by such owner. All temporary
Bonds sairendered in exchange either for another temporary Bond or Bonds or for a definitive
Bond or Bonds shall be forthwith canceled by the Trustee.

3.11  Limitations on Obligations of Bank. The Bonds, together with interést thereon,
shall be limited obligations of the Bank payable solely from the Revenues and shall be avalid
claim of the respective owners thereof only against the Funds and Accounts, other than the Rebate
Fund and any Accounts created thereunder, established hereunder and the City Bond acquired by
the Trustee, all of which are hereby assigned and pledged hereunder for the equal anid ratable
payment of the Bonds and shall be used for no other purpose than the payment of the Bonds, except
as may be otherwise expressly authorized in this Indenture. The Bonds do not constitute a debt
or liability or moral obligation of the State or of any political subdivision fhereof under the
constitution of the State or a pledge of the faith and credit or taxing power of the State of any
political subdivision thereof, but shall be payable solely from the Revenues. and funds pledged
therefor in accordance with this Indenture including, without limitation, the avails of the falt faith
- and eredit of the City derived or to be derived from payments made in respect of the City Bond
pursuant to the City Bond Resolution. The issuance of the Bonds under the provisions of the Act
does not directly, indirectly or contingently, obligate the State or any political subdivision thereof
other than the City to levy any form of taxation for the payment thereof of to make any approptidtion

28



for their payment and such Bonds and the inferest payable thereon do not now and shall never
constitute a debt of the State or any political subdivision thereof within the meaning of the
constitution of the State or the statutes of the State and do not now and shall never constitute a
charge against the eredit or taxing power of the State or any poh'tical subdivision thereof; provided,
however, that the City Bond securing the Series 2025 Bonds is a general obligation of the City.
Neither the State nor any agent, attorney, member or employee of the State or of the Bank shall in
any event be Hable for the payment of the principal of, and premium, if any, or inferest on the
Bonds or damages, if any, for the nonperformance of any pledge, mortgage, obligation or
agreement of any kind whatsoever which may be undertaken by the Bank. No breach by the Bank
of any such pledge, mortgage, obligation or agreement may impose any Hability, pecuniary or
otherwise, upon the State or any of the State's ot the Bank's agents, members, attorneys, and
‘employees or any charge upon the general credit of the State or a charge against the taxing power
of the State or any political subdivision thereof. In the Act, the State has pledged and agreed with
the holders of any Bonds that the State will not limit or alter the rights hereby vested in the Bank to
fulfill the terms of any agreements made with the said Bondholders or in any way inipair the rights
and remedies of such holders until such Bonds, together with the interest thereon, with interest on
any unpaid installments of interest, and all costs and expenses in connection with any action or
proceeding by or on behalf of such holders of Bonds, are fully met and discharged.

3.12  Immunity of Officers and Directors. No recourse shall be had for the payment of
the Bonds or for any claim based thereon or upon any obligation, covenant or agreement in thig
Indenture contained against any past, present or future officer, member, director, agent or
employee of the Bark or any officer, member, director, trustee, agent or emplayee of any successor
entities thereto, as such, either directly or through the Bank or any successor entities, under any
rule of law or equity, statute or constitution or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty or
otherwise, and all such liability of any such officers, members, directors, trustees, agents or
employees as such is hereby expressly waived and released as a condition of and conmdelatlon
for the execution of this Indenture and issuance of such Bonds,

ARTICLE 4
REDEMPTION OF BONDS PRIOR TO MATURITY

41  Redempiion and Redemption Prices and Terms for Series 2025 Bonds. The
Series 2025 Bonds are subject to redemption as provided herein.

(&) Optional Redemption. The Series 2025 Bonds are subject to redemption prior
to their stated date of maturity, in whole or in part, in principal amounts and maturities as selected by
the Bank on any date on or after January 1,20, at par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption
thereof. 1If the City directs the Baok so to redeem all or a portion of the Series 2025 Bonds pursuant
to Section 5 of the City Bond Resolution, the Bank agrees to follow such direction.

{b) Mandatory Sinking Fund Redsmption. The Series 2025 Bonds are subject to

mandatory smkmg fund redemption, in part, by lot, on January 1 of the years set forth below at a
redemption price of 100% of the principal amount so redeemed plus accrued interest to the redemption

29



date in accordance with the following schedule:?

PRINCIPAL INTEREST

YEAR AMOUNT RATE
2026 $110,000.00

2027 100,000.00

2028 : 105,000.00

2029 110,000.00

2030 115,000.00

2031 120,000.00

2032 125,000.00

2033 130,000.00

2034 135,000.00

2035 140,000.00

2036 150,000.00

2037 155,000.00

2038 160,000.00

2039 170,000.00

2040 175,000.00

4,2 Redemption at the Election or Direction of the Bank. In the event of the receipt
of a direction from the City in accordance with Section 5(e) of the City Bond Resolution to redeem all
or any portion of the Series 2025 Bonds, the Bank shall give written notice to the Trustee of its
direction so0 to redeem, of the redemption date, of the principal amounts of the Series 2025 Bonds of
each maturity o be redeemed (which maturities and principal amounts thereof to be redeemed shall
be determined by the Bank at the direction of the City, subject to any limitations with respect
thereto contained in the Act or this Indenture), and of the monies to be applied to the payment
of the Redemption Price. Suchnotice shall be given not less than thirty (30) days nor more than
forty-five (45) days prior to the redemption date or such shorter period as shall be acceptable to
the Trustee and may be conditioned upon receipt of sufficient funds to redeem the Series 2025
Bonds called for redemption on the redemption date. The Bank shall pay or cause to be paid to the
‘Trustee an amount in cash which, in addition to other monies, if any, available therefor and held by
the Trustee, will be sufficient fo redeem, on the redemption date at the Redemption Price thereof,
together with accrued interest thereon to the redemption date, all of the Serles 2025 Bonds fo be
redeemed.

4.3 Selection of Series 2025 Bonds to be Redeemed. If less than all of the Series
2025 Bonds are to be redeemed, the Series 2025 Bonds shall be redeemed only in whole multiples
of $1,000. For purposes of redemption, each $1,000 of principal shall be considered as a Series 2025
Bond. Ifless than all of the Series 2025 Bonds shall be called for redemption, the principal amount
and maturity of the Series 2025 Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by the Bank at the direction
of the City and the Trustee shall select the particular Series 2025 Bonds to be redeemed by lot within
a maturity in such manner as the Trustee may determine. In accordance with DTC*s standard practices
and its agreement with the Bank, DTC and the DTC Participants will make this selection so long as

3 Preliminary, subject to change.

30



the Series 2025 Bonds aré in book-entry only form.

4.4 Redemption Payments. The Trustee is hereby authorized and directed to apply
funds deposited with the Trustee by or on behalf of the Bank in an amount sufficient to pay the
Redemption Price of the Series 2025 Bonds or portions thereof called, together with accrued interest
thereon to the redemption dats. If proper notice of redemption by mailing has been given as provided
in Section 4.5 hereof and sufficient funds for redemption shall be on deposit with the Trustee as
aforesaid, interest on the Series 2025 Bonds or portions thereof thus called shall no longer acorue
after the date fixed for redemption. No payment shall be made by the Trustee upon any Series
2025 Bond or portion thereof called for redemption pursuant to Section 4.2 hereof until such Series
2025 Bond or portion thereof shall have been delivered for payment or cancellation or the Trustee
shall have received the items required by Section 3.5 hereof with respect to any mutilated,, lost,
stolen or destroyed Series 2025 Bond.

4.5 Notice of Redemption. Notice of the call for any redemption, identifying the
Series 2025 Bonds to be redeemed (whlch may be a conditional notice of redemption), shall be
given by the Trustee by mailing a copy of the redemption notice by registered or certified mail at
least thirty (30) days but not more than forty-five (45) days prior to the date fixed for redemption to
the Registered Owner of each Series 2025 Bond to be redeemed at the address shown on the Bond
Register. Failure to give such notice by mailing to any Bondholder or any defect in such notice,
shall not affect the validity of any proceeding for the redemption of any other Series 2025 Bonds,

4.6 Cancellation. All Series 2025 Bonds which have been redeemed in full shall not
be reissued but shall be canceled and destroyed by the Trustee in accordance with Section 3.7
hereof.

ARTICLE 5
GENERAL COVENANTS

51  Payment of Principal and Interest. The Bank covenants and agrees that it will
prompily pay the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on every Bond issued under this
Indenture at the place, on the dates and in the manner provided herein and in said Bonds according’
to the true intent and meaning thereof, provided that the principal, Redemption Price and interest
are payable by the Bank solely from Revenues and any other funds or assets of the Banl hereinafier
pledged to the Trustee as security by the Bank to the extent of that pledge.

8.2 Performance of Covenants by Bank. The Bank covenants and agrees that it will
faithfully perform at all times any and all covenants, undertakings, stipulations and provisions
contained in this Indenture and in every Bond executed, authenticated and delivered hereunder and
in all of its proceedings pertaining thereto. The Bank covenants and agrees that it is duly authorized
under the constitution and laws of the State, including particularly the Act, to issue the Bonds
authorized hereby and to execute this Indenture and to pledge the Revenues and all other property
hereby pledged in the manner and to the extent herein set forth; that all action on its part for'the
issuance of the Bonds and the execution and delivery of this Indenture has been duly and effectively

taken, and that the Bonds in the hands of the owners thereof are and will be valid and enforceable
Himited obligations of the Bank according to the terms thereof and hereof,

3



5.3  Instruments of Further Assurance. The Bank covenants and agrees that the Trustee
may defend its rights to the payment of the Revenues for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds
against the claims and demands of all persons whomsoever. The Bank covenants and agrees that
it will do, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be done, executed, acknowledged and
delivered, such indentures supplemental hereto and such further acts, instrumerits and transfers as
the Trustee may reasonably require for the better assuring, transferring, pledging, assigning and
confirming unto the Trustee all and singular the rights assigned hereby and the amounts and other
property pledged hereby to the payment of theprincipal of and premium, if any, and interest on the
Bonds.

54 [RESERVED].
55  Covenants Concerning Program.

(a) In order to provide for the payment of the principal of and premivm, if any, and
interest on the Bonds and Program Expenses, the Bank ghall from time to time, with all practical
dispaich and in a sound and economical manner consistent in all respects with the Act, the provisions
of this Indenture and sound banking practices and principles, to the extent necessary to provide for
the payment of'the Bonds, (i) do all such acts and things ag shall be necéssary to receive and collect
Revenues (including enforcement of the prompt collection of all arrears on the City Bond), and (ii)
diligently enforce, and take all steps, actions and proceedings reasonably necessary in the judgment
of the Bank to protect its rights with respect to or to maintain insurance: on the City Bond (if any) and
to enforce all terms, covenants and conditions of the City Bond including the collection, custody
and prompt application of all payments and deposits required by the terms of the City Bond for the
purposes for which they were mada, '

(b}  Whenever necessary in order to provide for the payment of debt service on the Bonds,
the Bank shall commence appropriate remedies with respect to the City Bond if'it is in default.

5.6 Possession and Inspection of City Bond. The Trustee covenants and agrees to
retain or cause ils agent to retain possession of the City Bond and a copy of the transcript or
decuments related thereto and release them only in accordance with the' provisions of this Indenture,
The Bank and the Trustee covenant and agree that all records and documents in their possession
relating to the City Bond shall at all times be open to inspection by such accountants or other
agencies orpersons as the Bank or the Trustee may from time to time designate.

a 57 | Accounts and Répdfts. The Bank covenants and agrees 1o keep proper records and

accounts (Separate from all othér records and accouiits) in which complete and correet entries shall
be made of its transactions relating to the Program, the City Bond and the Funds and Accouns
established by this Indenture. Such records, and all other records and papers of the Bank, -and
such Funds and -Accounts shall at all reasonable times be subject to the inspection of the Trustee
and the Beneficial Owners of an aggregate of not less than five percent {5%) in principal amoumt
of the Bonds then Qutstanding or their representatives duly authorized in writing,

The Trustee covenants and agrees, if requested, to provide to the Bank prior fo the twenticth

day of the month following the end of each six-month petiod, commencing with the period ending
July 1, 2025, & statement of the amount on deposit in each Fund and Account as of the first day of

32



that month and of the total deposits to and withdrawals from each Fund and Account during the
preceding six-month period.

The reports, statements and other documents required to be furnished to or by the Trustee
pursuant to any provision of this Indenture shall be provided to the Beneficial Owners of an
aggregate of not less than five percent (5%) in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding
who file or have filed a written request therefor with the Trustee with any such costs of such
documents to be paid by the Bondholder,

5.8  Bank Covenants with Respect to City Bond.

()  The Bank covenants and agrees that 1t will not permit or agree to any
material change in the City Bond. :

(b)  The Bank covenants and agrecs that it will enforce or authorize the
enforcement of all remedies available to owners or holders of the City Bond, provided, however, that
decisions as to the enforcement of remedies shall be within the sole discretion of the Trustee as set
forth in Article 10 hereof.

(c) The Bank covenants and agrees that it will not sell o dispose of the City
Bond. '

59  [RESERVED]

5.10 . Monitoring Investments, The Bank covenants and agrees to regularly review the -
investments held by the Trustee in the Funds and Accounts for the purpose of assuring that the
Revenues derived from such invesiments are sufficient fo provide, with other anticipated
Revenues, the debt service on Outstanding Bonds.

511 [RESERVED]

5.12 [RESERVED]

513 Covenants Concerning Preservation of Tax Fxemption. The Bank herchy
covenants and agrees to take all qualifying actions and 1o not fail to take any qualifying actions

which are necessary in order fo protect and preserve the exclusion from gross income for federal
Income tax purposes of the interest on the Series 2025 Bonds.

ARTICLE 6
REVENUES AND FUNDS
6.1 Source of Payment of Bonds. The Bonds and all payments by the Bank
hereunder are limited obligations of the Bank payable solely out of the Trust Estate as authorized

by the constitution and statutes of the State, including particularly the Act and this Indenture,
as provided herein.

33



6.2 Creation of Funds. There are hereby created by the Bank and ordered established
the following funds to be held by the Trustee: (a) the General Fund; and (b) the Rebate Fund.
There is hereby created and established in the General Fund a "General Account," "Bond Issuance
Expense Account," "Redemption Account,” and "Purchase Account." Upon the written request of
the Bank, the Trustee shall establish and maintain hereunder such additional Funds, Accounts or
subaccounts as the Bank may specify from time to time to the extent that in the judgment of the
Trustee the establishment of such Fund or Account is not to the material prejudice of the Trustee
or the Bondholders.

6.3  Deposit of Net Proceeds of Bonds,

(&) The Trustee shall deposit the proceeds from the sale of the Series 2025
Bonds in the manner provided in Section 2.2 hercof,

(b)  The Trustee shall deposit the proceeds of any Refunding Bonds in the
manner provided in the Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance thereof,

_ 6.4  Deposit of Revenues and Other Receipts. Upon receipt of any Revenues or other

receipts {except the proceeds of the Bonds and moneys received upon sale or redemption prior to
maturity of the City Bond), the Trustee shall deposit such amounts into the General Account of
the General Fund or such other applicable Fund or Account,

6.5  Operation of General Account. The Trustee shall deposit in the General Account
of the General Fund all amounts required to be deposited therein pursuant to the provisions of this
Article 6 and Section 22, The Trustee shall invest funds in the General Account in accordance
with Article 8 hereof and shall make the following payments from the General Account on the
specified dates and, if there are not sufficient funds to make all the payments required, with the
following order of priority:

(a) On or before three (3) Business Days next preceding each Interest Payment
Date of any series of Bonds, to the Paying Agent such amount (inchuding Investment Securities held
by Trustee maturing or callable on or before the applicable Interest Payment Date) as shall be
necessary to pay the principal and inteérest coming due on the Outstanding Bonds of such series on
such Interest Payment Date, including any delinguent payments that have not previously been
safisfied, end the Paying Agent in turn shall apply such amount to pay when due to the Bondholders
entitled thereto the principal and interest then due on the Outstanding Bonds of such series;

(b) At such times s shall be necessary, to pay Program Expenses;

(e} Upon the direction of the City, with notice to the Bank, the amounts, if any,
directed to be transferred to the Rebate Fund as provided in Section 6.11 hereof; and

(d)  After making such payments in paragraphs (a) through (c) above, the
Trustee shall make a deteimination of the amoints reasonably expected to be received in the
- form of City Bond Payments in the succeeding twelve (12) months and shall transfer all monies in
the General Account which, together with such expected receipts for the succeeding 12 months, are
in excess of the amounts needed to pay principal and interest on the Series 2025 Bonds within

34



the immediately succeeding twelve month period, to the City at the request of the City with the
prior written appiroval of the Bank. :

6.6  Operation of the Redemption Account. The Trustee shall deposit in the
Redemption Account all moneys received upon the sale or redemption prior to maturity of the
City Bond and all other moneys required to be deposited therein pursuant to the provisions of
Article 4 and Article 6 hereof; shall invest such funds pursuant to Article 8 hereof and shall disburse
the funds held in the Redemption Account as follows: moneys in the Redemption Account shall
be used to redeem Bonds called for redemption, Such redemption shall be made pursuant o a
redemption under the provisions of Article 4 hereof. The Trustee shall pay the Redemption Price
of the Bonds called for redemption, together with accrued interest thereon to the redemption date,
from the Redemption Account. Any surplus funds in the Redemption Account after the date of
redemption of the Bonds called for redemption shall be returned to the City.

6.7 Operation of the Purchase Account. The Trustee shall deposit in the Purchase
Account all monsys required to be deposited therein pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.2
and Atticle 6 hereof, shall invest such funds pursuant o Article 8 hereof, and shall disburse the
funds held in the Purchase Account to purchase the City Bond in accordance with the procedures
established by thé Bank as set forth in Article 7 hereof upon the submission of requisitions of
the Bank signed by an Authorized Officer stating that all requirements with respect to such
financing set forth in this Indenture have been or will be complied with. Upon purchase of the
City Bond, the Trustee will transfer the purchase price to the 2025 Construction Fund of the City
established under the City Bond Resolution, which fund will be used by the City to finance the
Construction  Project. Any amounts remaining in the Purchase Account three years after the
purchase of the City Bond shall be transferred to the Redemption Account for the redemption of ,
the Series 2025 Bonds.

68  [RESERVED]
69 [RESERVED]

610  Operation of Bond Issuance Expense Account. The Trustee shall deposit in the
Bond Issuance Expense Account the moneys required to be deposited therein pursuant to Section 2.2
of this Indenture, shall invest such funds pursuant to Article 8 hereof and shall disburse the funds held
in the Bond Issuance Expense Account as follows:

(@) Upon receipt of acceptable invoices and the written authorization of the
Mayor, the Clerk and/or the Mayor Pro Tempore of the City and the Executive Director of the Bank,
to pay the Cogts of Issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds or to reimburse the Bank for amounts
previously advanced for such costs; and

{(b) On the date which is sixty (60) days after the date of issuance of the Series
2025 Bonds, any funds remaining in the Bond Issuance Expense Account shall be transferred to the
General Account of the General Fund.

35



6.11  Operation of the Rebate Fund.

(a)  The Trustee is authorized to establish and maintain, so long as any Series
2025 Bonds are outstanding and are subject to a requirement that arbitrage profits be rebated to the
United States of America, a separate fund to be known as the "Rebate Fund." The Trustee shall
make information regarding the Series 2025 Bonds and investments hereunder available to the Bank
and shall make deposits and disbursements from the Rebate Fund in accordance with written
instructions from the City, with notice to the Bank, shall invest the Rebate Fund as directed by the
City, with notice to the Bank, and shall deposit income from such investments immediately upon
receipt thereof in the Rebate Fund.

(b) - Ifa deposit to the Rebate Fund is required, the Trustee shall, upon receipt of
direction from the City, with notice to the Bank, accept such payment for the benefit of the Bank and
make transfers of moneys from the General Account or otherwise to the Rebate Fund to comply with
such direction. If amounts in excess of that required to be rebated to the United States of America
accumulate in the Rebate Fund, the Trustee shall, upon direction from the City, with notice to the
Bank, transfer such amount to the General Account. Records of the determinations required by this
Section anct the Tax Certificate and the investment instructions must be retained by the Trustee until
six (6) years after the Series 2025 Bonds are no longer Outstanding.

(©) Not later than sixty (60) days after Janvary __, 2030 and every five (5) years
thereafter, the Trustee shall, upon written request of the City, with notice to the Bank, pay from the
Rebate Fund to the United States of Arherica one hundred percent (100%) of the amount required to
be paid to the United States of America as of such payment date to the extent of funds available in the
Rebate Fund as of such payment date, Not later than sixty (60) days after the final retirement of the
Series 2025 Bonds, the Trustce shall, upon written request of the City, with notice to the Bank, pay to
the United States of Amerjca from the Rebate Fund (to the extent of funds available therein) one
hundred percent (100%) of the amount owing to the United States of Americato comply with Section
148(£)(2) of the Code with respect to the Series 2025 Bonds. Each payment required to be paid to the
United States of America pursuant to this Section shall be filed with the appropriate Internal Revenue
Service Center. Fach payment shall be accompanied by a copy of the Form 8038-G originally filed
with respect to the Series 2025 Bonds and a statement of the City or the Bank summarizing the
determination of the ameunt to be paid to the United States of America.

(d) = With respect to the Rebate Fund, anything to the contrary in this Indenture
-notmthstandmg, the Bank may direct the Trustee to proceed other than as set forth above by delivering
to the Trustee written instructions accompanied by an Opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that
compliance with such instructions will not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for federal
income tax purposes of the interest on the Series 2025 Bonds.

612  Moneys to be Held in Trust. All moneys required to be deposited with or paid to the
Trustee for the account of any Fund or Account established under any provision of this Indenture shall
- be held by the Trustee in trust and applied in accordance with the provisions of this Indenture, except
for moneys held pursuant to the Rebate Fund and any Accounts creatéd thereunder and except to the
extent otherwise provide in this Indenture with respect to moneys deposited with or paid to the Trustée
for the redemption of Bonds, notice of the redemption of which has been duly given. Such moneys

36



shall, while beld by the Trustee, constitute part of the Trust Estate and be subject to the security interest
created hereby and shall not be subject to any lien or attachment by any creditor of the Bank,

6.13 Amounts Remaining in Funds or Accounts. Any amounts remaining in any Fund
or Account after full payment of the Bonds and the fees, charges (including any required rebate to
the United States of America) and expenses of the Trustee and all other amounts due and owing
hereunder shall be distributed to the City, except for any moneys owing to the Bank which shall be
paid to such party and except as provided in Section 3.8 hereof.

614  Certain Verifications. The Bank and/or the Trustee from time to time may cause
a firm of independent certified public accountants of national standing or other nationally recognized
experts to supply the Bank and the Trustee with such information as the Bank or the Trustee may
request in order to determine in a manner reasonably satisfactory to the Bank and the Trustee all
matters relating to (a) the sufficiency of projected cash flow receipts and disbursements with respect
to the Funds and Accounts to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds and Program Expenses;
(b) the actuarial yields on the Outstanding Series 2025 Bonds as the same may relate to any data or
conclusions necessary to verify that the Series 2025 Bonds are not arbitrage bonds within the meaning
of Section 148 of the Code; (¢) the yields on any obligations acquired and held by the Bank
and/or the Trustee; and (d) the rebate calculation required by Section 6.11 hereof. The Bank and/or
the Trustee from time to time may alse obtain an Opinion of Bond Counsel concerning post-issuance
compliance with any federal legislation applicable to the Bonds. The fees of such independent
certified public accountants and Bond Counsel shall constitute reimbursable Program HExpenses.

ARTICLE 7
PURCHASE OF CITY BOND

7.1 Terins and Conditions of Purchase. The City Bond purchased by the Bank shall
be purchased on the terms and conditions of, and upon submission of, the documents required
by this Article 7.

7.2 Purchase Price, The Trustee shall pay the purchase price of the City Bond upon
receipt by the Trustee of:

o (2) a written requisition of the Bank signed by an Authorized Officer stating
to whom payment is to be made and the amount to be paid,

(b) a certificate signed by an officer of the Bank attached to or included in the
requisition and certifying that the City, pursuant to the City Bond Purchase Agreement, has sold or
will sell the City Bond to the Bank and is obligated to make City Bond Payments and to pay all
fees and charges required to be paid to the Bank under the City Bond Resolution, and that to the
knowledge of such officer, the City is not in default under the payment terms or other material
terms or provisions of any other obligations of the City;

(©) a certified transcripf of proceedings authorizing the issuance, execution and
delivery of the City Bond, which transcript shall contain the certifications required by the Act

37



and such other certifications and representations which are reasonable and appropriate as
determined by the Bank or Trustee;

(d) an Opinion of Bond Counsel in form satisfactory to the Bank stating that
the City Bond constitutes a valid and binding obligation enforceable in accordance with its terms,
subject to such enforcement limitations customarily contained in such opinions;

(€) the City Bond \registered as to both principal and interest to the Bank and
delivered in accordance with the Act; .

6] an opinion of counsel for the City in form satisfactory to the Bank stating
that such City is a Local Governmental Unit within the meaning of the Bank Act;

{g) a signed City Bond Purchase Agreement from the City; and

(h) an executed Tax Certificate of the City and of the Bank.

Upon receipt of such requisition, transcript, Opinion of Bond Counsel, City Bond and
sigried documents, the Trustee shall deposit such amount into the Purchase Account for distribution
as provided in Section 2.2 and as directed in such requisition. '

7.3 Retention and Inspection of Documents. All requisitions, cerfificates, transeripts,
Opinions of Bond Counsel and the City Bond received by the Trustee, as required in this Article as
conditions of payment, may be relied upon by and shall be retained in the possession of the Trustee,
subject at all times during normal business hours to the inspection of the Bank and, after written
request received by the Trustee at least five (5) Business Days prior to the date of inspection, by
any Beneficial Owrer of at least five percent (5%) in principal amount of Outstanding Bonds.

74  Report. The Bank may require a report to be made by an officer or employee of
the Trustee on behalf of the Trustee within sixty (60) days after the delivery of the Bonds covering
all receipts and all disbursements made pursuant to the provisions of this Article 7 in respect of the
net proceeds of the Bonds deposited in the Purchase Account. Said report shall be supplemented -at
least once every sixty (60) days by the Trustee until all of the net proceeds of the Bonds deposited
in the Purchase Acconnt shall have been expended. Each such report shall be mailed by the Trustee
to the Bank.

CARTICLES

INVESTMENT OF MONEYS

8.1 General Provisions.

(a) Any moneys held as part of any Fund or Account created under or pursuant
to Article 6 hereof and the Rebate Fund shall be invested or reinvested by the Trustee as continuously
as reasonably possible in such Investment Securities as may be directed in writing by the City. All
such investments shall at all times be a part of the Fund or Account in which the moneys used fo
acquire such investments had been deposited and, except as provided in Article 6, all income and

38



profits on such investments, other than from moneys on deposit in the Rebate Fund or any Account
created thereunder, shall be deposited as received in the General Account. The Trustee may make any
and all such investments through its investment department or through the investment department of
any financial institution which is an affiliate of the Trustee and may trade with itself or any of its
affiliates in doing so. Moneys in separate Funds and Accounts may not be commingled for the purpose
of investment or deposit. The Trustee and the Bank agree that all investments, and all instructions of
the Bank or the City to the Trustee with fespect thereto, shall be made in accordance with prudent
investment standards reasonably expected to produce the greatest investment yields while seeking to
preserve principal without causing any of the Bonds, the interest on which is intended to be excludable
from gross income for federal income tax purposes, to be arbitrage bonds as defined in Section 148 of
the Code. Any investment losses shall be charged to the Fund or Account in which moneys used to
purchase such investment had been deposited, For so long as the Trustee is in compliance with the
provisions of this Section 8.1, the Trustee shall not be liable for any investment losses, Moneys in any
Fund or Account shall be invested in Investment Securities with a maturity date or a redemption date
which shall coincide as nearly as practicable with thmes at which moneys in such Funds or Accounts
will be required for the purposes thereof. The Trustee shall sell and reduce to cash a sufficient amoumt
of such investraents in the respective Fund or Account whenever the cash balance therein is insufficient
to pay the amounts confemplated to be paid therefrom at the time those amounts are to be paid.

(b) The Bank (i) certifies to the owners of the Bonds from time to time Outstanding
that moneys on deposit in any Fund or Account in connection with the Bonds of any series, whether
or not such moneys were derived from the proceeds of the sale of such series of Bonds or from any
other sources, are not intended to be used in a manner which will cause the interest on the such series
of Bonds to lose the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and (ii) covenants
with the owners of each series of Bonds from time to time Outstanding that, so long as any of such
series of Bonds remain’ Outstanding, moneys on deposit in any Fund or Account established in
connection with such series of Bonds, whether or.not such moneys were derived from the proceeds of
the sale of such series of Bonds or from any other source, will not be used in any manner which will
cause the interest on such series of Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax
purposes. This Section 8.1(b) will not apply to any series of Bonds the interest on which is not intended
io be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.

_ 8.2 Arbitrage Restrictions; Bonds to Remain Tax Exempt., The Bank covenants and
agrees that it will not take any action or fail to take any action with respect to the investment of the
proceeds of any series of Bonds, or with respect to the investment or application of any payments
under the City Bond or any other agreement or instrument entered into in connection therewith or with
the issuance of any series of Bonds, including but not limited to the obligation, if any, to rebate certain
funds o the United States of America, which would result in constituting such series of Bonds
arbmage bonds within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code. The Bauk further agnees that it will
not act in any othér manner which would adversely affect the exclusion from gross income tax for
federal income tax purposes of the interest on the Bonds. This Section will not apply to any series of
Bonds the interest on which is not intended io be excludable from gross income for federal income
{ax purposes,

83 Valuation of Investments. For the purpose of determining the amount in any
Fund or Account, all Investment Securities credited to such Fund or Account shall be valued at the
lesser of (a) the average of the bid and asked prices most 1ecently published prior to the date of
determination for thoseé Investment Securities, the bid dnd asked prices of which are published on a
regular basis in The Wall Street Journal, or, if not there, in The New York Times; or (b} the average

39



bid price as of the date of determination by any two nationally recognized government securities
dealers selected by the Trustee for those Investment Securities the bid and asked prices of which are
not published on a regular basis as set forth in subsection (a) above; or (c) par value (plus, prior to
the first payment of interest following purchase, the amount of any accrued interest paid as part
of the purchase price) for Investment Securities which are certificates of deposit and bankers
acceptances; .ot (d) for all other Investment Securities the lesser of cost or market value (exclusive
of accrued interest paid as part of the purchase price after the first payment of interest following
purchase); provided, however, that any repurchase agreements shall be valued, respectively, at
the unpaid repurchase price or principal balance collectible pursuant thereto. '

ARTICLE 9
DISCHARGE OF INDENTURE

Except as provided in this Article 9, if payment or provision for payment is made, to the
Trustee, of the principal of and interest due and to become due on the Bonds at the times and in the
manner stipulated therein, and there is paid or caused to be paid to the Trustee all sums of money
due and to become due according to the provisions hereof, and all other amounts due hereunder
have been paid in full, then these presents and the Trust Estate and rights hereby granted shall
cease, terminate and be void, whereupon the Trustee shall cancel and discharge the lien of this
Indenture, and execute and deliver to the Bank such instruments in writing as shall be requisite to -
cancel and discharge the lien hereof, and release, assign and deliver unto the Bank any and all
estate, right, title and interest in and to any and all rights assigned or pledged to the Trustee hercby
or otherwise subject to the lien of this Indenture, exceépt moneys or securities held by the Trustee for
the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds.

Any Bond shall be deemed to be paid within the meaning of this Indenture when (a)
payment of the principal of and premium, if any, on such Bond and interest thercon to the due date
thereof (whether such due date be by reason of maturity or upon redemption as provided in this
Indenture or otherwise), either (i) shall have been made or caused to have been made in accordance
with the terms thereof, or (ii) shall have been provided for by imrevocably depositing with the
Trustee or other financial institution (which must meet the requirements of Section 11,7 hereof)
which provides services as escrow agent for the Bank (for purposes of this Article, an "Escrow
Agent"), in trust and exclusively for such payment, (A) moneys sufficient to make such payment
or {B) Governmental Obligations maturitg as fo principal and interest in such amounts and at
such times, without consideration of any reinvestment thereof, as will insure the availability of
sufficient moneys to make'such payment, or (C) a ¢ombination of such moneys and Governmental
Obligations, and (b) all necessary and proper fees and expenses of the Trustee pertaining to the
Bonds, including the amount, if any, required to be rebated to the United States of America in
accordance with the Tax Certificate and Section 6.11 hereof, with respect to which such deposit is
~made shall have been paid or deposited with the Trustee,

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of Bonds which by their terms may be redeemed
prior to their stated maturity, no deposit under the immediately preceding paragraph shall be
deemed a payment of such Bonds as aforesaid until the Bank shall have given the Trustee, in -
form satisfactory to the Trustee, irrevocable instructions:

40



(a) stating the date when the principal of each such Bond i to be paid, whether
at maturity or on a redemption date (which shall be any redemption date permitted by this
Indenture);

(b) to call for redemption pursuant to this Indenture any Bonds to be redeemed
prior to maturity pursuant to (a) hereof; and

(c) to mail, as soon as practicable, in the manner prescribed by Article 4
hereof, a notice to the owners of such Bonds that the deposit required by the preceding paragraph
has been made with the Trustee and that said Bonds are deemed to have been paid in accordance
with this Article and stating the maturity or redemption date upon which moneys are to be available
for the payment of the principal of or Redemption Price, if applicable, on said Bonds as specified
in subparagraph (a) of this paragraph; provided, however, such notice can be given in advance of
such deposit if such funds represent sufficient funds in the form of cash for the payment of principal
of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to be paid prior to their due date by reason of maturity
or upon redemption within ninety (90) days of the delivery date of the Bonds.

Any moneys so deposited with the Trustee or the Escrow Agent as provided in this Article
may at the direction of the Bank also be invested and reinvested in Governmental Obligations,
maturing in the amounts and times as hereinbefore set forth, and all income from all Governmental
Obligations in the hands of the Trustee pursuant to this Article which is not required for the
payment of the Bonds and interest thereon with respect to which such moneys shall have been so’
deposited, shall be deposited in the General Account, as and when and collected for use and
application as are other moneys deposited in the General Account,

Notwithstanding any provision of any other Article of this Indenture which may be contrary
to the provisions of this Article, all moneys or Governmental Obligations set aside and held in trust
pursuant to the provisions of this Article for the payment of Bonds (including interest theteon but
excluding any amownts set aside for rebate to the United States of America in accordance with the
Tax Certificate and Section 6.11 herzof) shall be applied to and used solely for the payment of the
particular Bonds (including interest thereon) with respect to which such moneys or obligations have
been so set aside intrust,

Upon the deposit with the Trustee or Escrow Agent, in trust, at or before maturity, of
money or Governmental Obligations in the necessary amount to pay or redeem all Ouistanding
Bonds as aforesaid (whethér upon or prior to their maturity or the redemption date of such Bonds),
provided that if such Bonds are o be redeemed prior to the matwrity thereof, notice of such
tedemption shall have been given as hereinabove provided, or provisions satisfactory to the Trustee
shall have been made for the giving of such notice, and compliance with the other payment
requirements hereof, this Indenture may be discharged in accordance with the provisions hereof
but the limited lability of the Bank in respect of such Bonds shall continue provided that the
owners thereof shall thereafter be entitled to payment only out of the moneys or Governmental
Obligations deposited with the Trustee or Escrow Agent 4s aforesaid.

41



ARTICLE 10

DEFAULT PROVISIONS AND REMEDIES OF TRUSTEE AND BONDHOLDERS

10.1  Defaults; Events of Default, If any of the following events occurs, it is hereby
defined as and declared to be and to constitute an "Event of Default™

(2) Default in the due and punctual payment of any interest on any Bond; or

(b) Default in the due and punctual payment of the punmpa] or redemption
premium, if any, of any Bond whether at the stated maturity thereof or on any date fixed for
redemption; or

(c) Failure of the Bank to remit to the Trustee within the time limits prescribed
herein any moneys which are required by this Indenture to be so remitted; or

(d) Default in the performance or observance of any other of the covenants,
agreements or conditions on the part of the Bank contained in this Indenture or in the Bonds and
failure to remedy the same within the time provided in, and after notice thereof pursuant to,
Section 10.10 hereof;, or

(e) Any warranty, representation or other statement by or on hehalf of the
Bank contained in this Indenture pr in any instrument furnished in compliance with or in reference
to this Indenture is false or misleading, when made, in any material respect, and failure to remedy
the same within the time provided in, and after notice theréof pursuant to, Section 10.10; ot

) A petition is filed against the Bank under any bankruptcy, reorganization,
arrangement, msolvency, readjustment: of debt, dissolution or liquidation law of any Jurlsdictm_n
whether now or hereafler in effect and is not dismissed within sixty (60) days after such filing; or

() The Bank files a petition in voluntary bankruptey or seeking relief under any
provisiohs of any bankruplcy, reorganization, artangement, insolvency, adjustment of debt, dissolution
or liquidation law of any jurisdiction whether now or hereafter in &ffect, or consents to the filing of
any pefition against it under such law; or

{h) The Bank is generally not paying its debts as such debts become due, or
becomes insolvent or bankrupt, or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or a liquidator or
trustee of the Bank or any of its property is appointed by court order or takes possession of such
property and such order remains it effect or such possession continues for more than 60 days; or

1 Default in the due and punctual payment of any interest on any City Bond; or
) Default in the due and punctual payment of the principal or redemption

premium, if any, of any City Bond whether at the stated maturity thereof or on any date fixed for
redemption; or

42



(k) The Bank for any reason shall' be rendered incapable of fulfilling its
obligations under this Indenture; or

D There 1is an event of defaﬁlt under the City Bond Resolution.

10.2  Remedies: Rights of Bondholders. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default , the
Trustee shall notify the owners of all Bonds then Outstanding of such Event of Default by registered
or certified mail, and will have the following rights and remedies:

(a) The Trustee miay pursue any available remedy at law or in equity or by statute
to enforce the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds then Outstanding, including
enforcement of any rights of the Bank or the Trustee under the City Bond.

(b) The Trustee may by action or suit in equity require the Bank to account as if
it were the trustes of an express trust for the holders of the Bonds and may take such action with
respect to the City Bond as the Trustee deems necéssary or appropriate and in the best interest of the
Bondholders, subject to the terms of the City Bond.

(e) Upon the filing of a suit or other commencement of judicial proceedings to
enforce any rights of the Trustee and of the Bondholders under this Indenture, the Trustee will be
entitled, as a matter of right, to the appointment of a receiver or receivers of the Trust Estate and of
the Revenues, issues, earnings, income, products and profits thereof, pending such proceedings, with
such powers as the court making such appointment shall confer.

_ (d) The Trustee may declare the principal of and accriied interest on all Bonds to
be due and payable immediately in accordance with this Indenture and the Act by notice to the Bank
and the City and as otherwise required by the Act,

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, (a) if requested so to do by the holders of
twenty-five percent (25%) or more in aggregate principal amount of all Bonds then Ou"cstandmg
and if indemnified as provided in Section. 11.1(k) hereof, or (b) if indemnified as provided in
Section 11.1(k) hereof, the Trustee shall be obligated to exercise such one or more of the rights,
remedies and powers conferred by this Section as the Trustee, being advised by Counsel, shall
deem most expedient in the intcrests of the Bondholders.

No right or remedy by-the terms of this Indenture -conferred upon or reserved to
the Trustee (or to the Bondholders) is intended to be exclusive of any other right or remedy, but each
and every such right or remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to any other right or
remedy given to Trustee or o the Bondholders hereunder or now or hereafter existing af law or in
equity or by statute. The assertion or employment of any right ‘or remedy shall not prevent the
concurrent or subsequent assertion or employment of any other right or remedy,

No delay or omission to exetcise any right of remedy accruing upon any Event of
Default shall impair any such right or remedy or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such
‘Event of Default or accuiescence therein, and every such right or remedy may be exercised from
time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient,

43



No waiver of any Event of Default hereunder, whether by the Trustee or by the
Bondholders, shall extend to or shall affect any subsequent Event of Default or shall impair any
rights or remedics consequent thereon.

103 Rights of Bondholders to Direct Proceedings. Anything in this Indenture to the
contrary notwithstanding, subject to Section 13.1 herein, the Beneficial Owners of a majority in
aggregate principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding shall have the right, at any time during the
continuance of an Bvent of Default, by an instrument or instruments in writing executed and
delivered to the Trustee, to direct the time, method and place of conduéting all proceedings to be
taken in connection with the enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Indenture, or for the
appointment of a receiver or any other proceedings hereunder; provided that such direction shall not
be otherwise than in accordance with the provisions of law, including the Act, and of this
Indentuie,

104 Appointment of Receivers. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, and
upon the filing of a suit or other commencement of judicial proceedings to enforce any rights of the
Trustee and of the Bondholders under this Indenture, the Trustee shall be entitled, as a matter of
right, to the appointment of a receiver or receivers of the Trust Estate and of the Revenues, issues,
earnings, income, products and profits thereof, pending such proceedings with such powers as the
court making such appointment shall confer,

10.5  Application of Moneys. All moneys received by the Trustee pursuant to any
right or remedy given or action taken under the provisions of this Auticle (including moneys
received by virtue of action taken under provisions of the City Bond) shall, after payment of the
costs and expenses of the proceedings resulting in the collection of such moneys and of the
expenses, Habilities and advances incurred or made by the Trustee and any other moneys owed to the
Trustee hereunder, be deposited in the General Account and all moneys in such Accounts shall
be applied as follows: ‘

(a) Unless the principal of all the Bonds shall have become due and payable,
all such moneys shall be applied:

FIRST - To the payment io the persons entitied thereto of all installments of
interest then due on the Bonds, including interest on any past due principal of
any Bond at the rate borne by such Bond, in the order of the maturity of the
installments of such interest and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient
to pay in [ull any particular installment, then to such payment ratably,
according to the amounts due on such installments, io the persons entitled
thereto, without any discrimination or privilege;

SECOND - To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of the unpaid
principal of any of the Bonds which shall have become due either at maturity
or pursuant to a call for redemption (other than Bonds called for redemption
for the payment of which other moneys are held pursuant to the provisions of-
this Indenture), in the order of their due dates, and, if the amount available
shall not be sufficient to pay in full the principal of Bonds due on any particular
date, together with such interest, then to such payment ratably, according to the

44



amount of principal due on such date, to the persons entitled thereto without
any discrimination or privilege;

THIRD - To be held for the payment to the persons entitled thereto as the
same shall become due of the principal of and interest on the Bonds which
may then become due either at maturity or upon call for redemption prior to
‘maturity and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full the
principal of and interest on Bonds due on any particular dafs, such payment
shall be made ratably according to the amount of principal and interest due on
such date to the persons entitled thereto ‘without any discrimination or
privilege,

) ‘ (0)  Ifthe principal of all of the Bonds shall have become due or shall have been

declared due and payable, all such moneys shall be applied to the payment of the principal and
mterest then due and unpaid upon the Bonds, without pieference or priority of principal over
interest or of interest over principal, or of any installment of interest over any other installinent of
interest, or of any Bond over any other Bond, ratably, according to the amounts due respectively
for pricipal and interest, to the persons entitled thereto without any discrimination or privilege.

. Whenevermoneys are to be applied pursuant to the provisions of this Section, such moneys
shall be applied at such times, and from time to time, as the Trustee shall determine, having due
regard for the amount of such moneys available for application and the likelihood of additional
mongys becoming available for such application in the fiture, Whenever the Trustee shall apply
such funds, it shall fix the date (which shall be an Interest Payment Date unless the Trustee shall
deem another date more suitable} upon which such application is to be made and upon such date
interest on the amounts of principal to be paid on such dates shall cease o accrue. The Trustee shall
give such notice as it may deem appropriate of the deposit with it of any such moneys and of the
fixing. of any such date and shall not be required to make payment of principal to the owner
of any Bond until such Bond shall be presented to the Trustee for appropriate endorsement
or for cancellation if fully paid.

Whenever all principal of and interest on all Bonds have been paid unider the provisions of
this Section and all expenses and charges of the Trustee have been paid and all other smounts due
hersunder have been paid in full, any balance remaining in the General Account shall be paid as
provided in Article 6 hereof

10.6 Remedies Vest_ed in the Trustee. All tights of action (including the right to file o

-~ proof of claims) under this Indenture oritider aiy of the Bonds may be enforced by the Trustes
without the possession of any of the Bonds or the production thereof in any trial or other
proceeding related theteto and any such suit or proceeding ingtitted by the Trustee shall he
brought in its name as Trustee without the necessity of joining as plaintiffs or defendants any
owners of the Bonds, and any recovery of judgment shall be for the equal and ratable benefit of the
owners of all the Dutstanding Bonds,

10.7  Rights and Remedies of Bondholders. No owner of any Bond shafl have any
right to institufe aty suit, action or proceeding at law or in equity for the enforcement of this
Indenture or for the execufion of ary trust hercof or for the appointment of -a receiver or any
other remedy hereunder, unless. (3) a Default has occutred, (b) such Defanlt shall have become an
Event of Default and theé Beneficial Owners of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in

45



aggregate principal amount of Boads then Qutstanding shall have made written request to the
Trustee and shall have offered it reasonable opportunity either to proceed to exercise fhe remedies
hereinbefore granted or fo institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own name, (c) such
Beneficial Owners of Bonds have offered to the Trustee indetnity as provided in Section 11.1(k)
hereof, and (d) the Trustee has refused, or for sixty (60) days after receipt of such request and
offer of indemnification has failed, to exercise the remedies hercirbefore granted or to institute
such action, suit or proceeding in its own name; and such request and offer of indemnity are
hereby declared in every case at the option of Trustes to be conditions precedent to the execution of
the powers and trusts of this Indenture, and to any action or cause of action for the enforcement of
this Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver or for any other remedy hereunder, it being
understood and intended that no one or more owners of the Bonds shall have any right in any ranner
.whatsoever to affect, disturb or prejudice the lien of this Indenture by its, his, her or their action
or to enforce any right hereunder except in the manner herein provided, and that all proceedings at
law or in equity shall be instituted, had and maintained in the manner herein provided and for the
equal and ratable benefit of the owners of all Bonds then Outstanding. However, nothing contained
in this Indenture shall affect or impair the right of any Bondholder to enforce fhe payment of the
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on any Bond at and after the maturity thereof, or the
limited obligation of the Bank to pay the principal of, prerium, if any, and interest on each of the
Bonds issued hereunder to the respective owners thereof at the time and place, from the source and
in'the manner expressed in the Bonds.

10.8  Termination of Proceedings. If the Trustee or any owner of any Bonds shall have
proceeded to enforce any right under this Indenture by the appointment of a receiver or otherwise,
and such proceedings shall have been discontinued or abandoned for any reason, or shall have been
determined adversely, then and in every such case the Barl, the Trustee and the Bondholders shall
be restored to their former positions and rights hereumder, respectively, and with regard to the
property herein subject to this Indenture, and all rights, remedies and powers of the Trustee and the
owners of Bonds shall continue as if no such proceedings had been taken. :

10,9 Waivers of Events of Default. The Trustee may at its discretion waive any
Event of Default hereunder and its consequences, and shall do so upon the written request of the
Beneficial Owners of (a) more than sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%) in aggregate
 principal amount of all the Bonds then Outstanding in respect of which an Event of Default in the
payment of principal or interest exists, or (b) more than fifty percent (50%) in aggregate principal
. amount of all Bonds then Outstanding in the case of any other Bvent of Default; provided,
however, that there shall not be waived (x) any Event of Default in the payment of the principal of
any Outstanding Bond at the date of maturity specified therein or (y) any Event of Default in the
payment when due of the interest on any Ouistanding Bond unless prior to such waiver all of the
interest or all payments of principal when due, asthe case may be, with interest on overdue principal
at the rate borne by such Bond, and all expenses of the Trustee in connection with such Event of
Defanlt shall have been paid or provided for, or () any Event of Defult for nonpayment of Program
Expenses; and in case of any such waiver ‘or rescission, or in case any proceeding taken by the
Trustee on account of ary such Event of Default shall have been discontinued or abandoned or
determined adversely, then and in every such case the Bank, the Trustee and the Bondholders shall
be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder, respectively, but no such waiver or
recession. shall extend to any subsequent or other Event of Default, or impair any rights consequent
thergon. '

46



10.10 Notice of Defaults under Section 10.1(d) or (¢); Opportunity of the Bank to
Cure Such Defaults. Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, no Default under Section
. 10.1(d) or (&) hereof shall constitute an Event of Default until actual notice of such Default by
registered or certified mail shall be given fo the Bank by the Trustee and the Bank shall have had
sixty (60) days after receipt of such nofice to correct the Default or cause the Default to be
corrected, and shall not have corrected the Default or caused the Defanlt to be corrected within the
applicable period; provided, however, if the Default be such that it is correctable but cannot be
corrected within the applicable period, it shall not constitute an Event of Default if cortective action
is instituted by the Bank within the applicable period and diligently pursued until the Default is
corrected. If a Default is cured under this Section 10.10, then it will not constitute an Event of
Defauk.

With regard to any alleged Defanlt concerning which notice is given to the Bank under the
provisions of this Section, the Bank hereby grants to the Trustee full authority for the account of the
Bank to perform any covenant or obligation the failure of performance which is alleged in said notice
to constitite an Event of Default, in the name and stead of the Bank with full power to do any and
all things and acts to the same extent that the Bank could do and perform any such things and acts
and with power of substitution.

ARTICLE 11
TRUSTEE

11.1 Acceptance of the Trusts. The Trustee hercby accepts the trusts and duties
imposed upon it by this Indenture, and agrees to perform said trusts and duties with the same
degree of care and skill in their exercise as a prudent corporate trustee would exercise or use
under the circumstances in the conduct of his own affairs, but only upon and subject to the
following express terms and conditions:

(@) The Trustee, prior to the occutrence of an Bvent of Default and after the
curing of all Events of Default which may have occurred, undertakes to perform such duties
and only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Indenture. If an Event of Default hag
ocourred (which has not been cured or waived) the Trustee shall cxercise the rights and powers
vested in it by this Indenture in accordance with the standard specified above.

(b) The Trustee may execute any of the trusts or powers hereof and perform
any of its duties by or through attofneys, agents, téceivers or employees buit shall not be
answerable for the conduct of the same if appointed in accordance with the standard specified
above, and shall be entitled to advice of Counsel concerning all matters of trusts hereof and
the duties hereunder, and may in all cases pay such reasonable compensation fo afl such
attorneys, agents, receivers and employees as may reasonably be employed in connection with
the trusts hereof, The Trustee may act upon the opinion or advice of any attorney or firm of
attorneys (who may be the attorney or firm of attorneys for the Bank or the Trustee), if
selected in accordance with the standard set forth above. The Trustee shall not be responsible
for any loss or damage resulting from any action or non-action in good faith in reliance upon
such opinion or advice.

47



(c) The Trustee shall not be responsible for any recital herein or in the Bonds,
other than the Certificate of Authentication required by Section 3.4 hereof, or for the validity of
the execution by the Bank of this Indenture or of any supplements hereto or instruments
of further agsurance, or for the sufficiency of the security for the Bonds issued hereunder or
intended to be secured hereby.

(D) The Trustee shall not be accountable for the use of any Bonds
authenticated or delivered hereunder. The Trustee may become the owner of Bonds secured
hereby with the same rights that it would kave if it were not the Trustee. Bonds owned by the
Trustee shall be deemed Outstanding unless canceled pursuant to the provisions hereof,

(e) The Trustee shall be protected in acting upon any notiee, request, consent,
certificate, order, affidavit, letter, telegram or other paper or document reasonably believed to
be genuine and corrgct and to have been signed or sent by the proper person or persons.
The Trustee shall not withhold unreasonably ‘its consent, approval or action to any reasonable
request of the Bank. Any action taken by the Trustee pursuant to this Indenture upon the request
of the Bank or consent of any person who at the time of making such request or giving such
consent is the owner of any Bond, shall be conclusive and binding upon all future owners of the
same Bond and upon Bonds issued in exchange therefor or in place thereof.

(H As to the existence or nonexistence of any fact or as to the sufficiency
or validity of any instrument, paper or proceeding, the Trustee shall be entitled in good faith to
rely upon a certificate signed by an Authorized Officer as sufficient evidence of the facts
therein contained and prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default of which the Trustee has
become aware shall also be at liberty to accept a similar certificate to the effect that any
particular dealing, transaction or action is necessary or expedient but may in its discretion secure
such further evidence deemed necessary or advisable, but the Trustee shall in no case bé bound
to secure the same. The Trustee may accept a certificate of an Authorized Officer of the Bank under
its seal to the effect that a resolution in the form therein set forth has been adopted by the Bank as
conclusive evidence that such resolution has been duly adopted and is in full force and effect.

_ () The permissive right of the Trustee to do things enumerated in this Indenture
shall not be construed as a duty and it shall not be answerable for other than its gross negligence
or willful default,

() At any and all reasonable times the Trustee and its duly authorized agents,
attorneys, experts, engineers, accountants and representatives shall have the right to inspect any
and all of the books, papers and records of the Bank pertaining to the Revenues and receipts
pledged 10 the payment of the Bonds, and to take such memoranda from and in regard thereto as
may be desired,

(i) The Trustee shall not be required to give any bond or surely in respect of
the execution of the said trusts and powers or otherwise in respect of the premises,

(i) Notwithstanding anything elsewhere ‘in this Indenture conlained, the
Trustee shall have the right, but shall not be required, to demand, in respect of the authentication of
any Bonds, the withdrawal of any cash, or any action whatsoever within the purview of this

48



Indenture, any showings, certificates, opinions, appraisals or other information, or corporate action
or evidence thereof, in addition to that by the terms hercof required as a condition of such action,
deemed desirable by the Trustee for the purpose of establishing the right of the Bank to the
authentication of any Bonds, the withdrawal of any cash or the taking of any other action by the
Trustee.

(k)  Before taking any action referred to in Section 10.2, 10.3 or 10,7 hereof, the
Trustee may require that a satisfactory indemnity bond be furnished for the reimbursement of all
expenses 10 which it may be put and to protect it against all liability, except liability which is
adjudicated ‘to have resulted from its gross negligerice or willful default, by reason of any action
8o taken.

(H All moneys received by the Trustee shall, until used, applied or invested as
herein provided, be held in trust for the purposes for which they were received but need not be
segregated from other funds except to the extent required by law and this Indenture. The Trustee
shall not be under any liability for interest on any moneys received hereunder except such as may be
agreed upon, )

_ (m)  The Trustee for all purposes of this Indenture shall be deemed to be aware of
any Event of Default in the payment of principal of or interest on any of the Bonds and any event
of default in the payment of principal of and interest on the City Bond.

o (n)  The Trustee shall have no obligation to file financing statements or
continuation statements.

(o) The Trustee's immunities and protections from liability and its right to
indemnification in connection with the performance of its duties under this Indenture shall extend
to the Trustee's officers, directors, agents, attorneys and employees. Such immunities and protections
and rights to indemnification, together with the Trustee's right to compensation, shall survive the
Trustee's resignation or removal, the discharge of this Tndenture and final payment of the Bonds.

11.2  Fees, Charges and Expenses of the Trustee. The Trustee shall be enfifled fo
prompt payment and reimbursement upon demand for reasonable fees for its services rendered
hersunder and all advances, counsel foees and other expenses reasonably and necessarily made or
incurred by the Trustee in connection with such services. The Trustee shall be entitled to payment
and reimbursement for the reasonable fees and charges of the Trustee as paying agent and Tegistrar
for the Bonds but only as herein provided, Upon any Event of Default, but only upon an Event of
Defanlt, the Trustee shall have a first lien with right of payment prior to Payment on account
of principal of or interest on any Bond upon the Trust Estate for the foregoing fees, charges and
expenses incurred by it, respectively,

113 Intervention by the Trustee. In any judicial procceding to which the Bank is a
party and which in the opinion of the Trustee and its Counsel has a substantial bearing on the
interests of the owners of the Bonds, the Trustee may intervene on behalf of the Boadholders, and
shall do so if requested in writing by the Beneficial Owneis of at least twenty-five percent (25%)
of the aggregate principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding upon receiving indemnification
satisfactory to the Trustee, -

49



114 Successor Trustee. Any corporation or association into which the Trustee may be
converted or merged, or with which it may be consolidated, or to which it may sell or transfer its
trust business and assets as a whole or substantially as a whole, or any corporation or association
resuliing from any such conversion, sale, merger, consolidation or transfer to which it is a party
("Reorganization"), ipso facto shall be and become successor Trustee hereunder, iflegally qualified
to servé as such, and vested with all of the title to the Trust Estate and all the trusts, powers,
discretions, immunities, privileges and all other matters as was its predecessor, without the
execution or filing of any instrument or any further act, deed or conveyance on the part of any of
the parties hereto, anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding; provided that within thirty (30)
days of the effective date of such Reorganization, the Bank may object to such corporation or
association becoming successor Trustee by filing wiitten notice of such objection with the successor
Trustee and by mailing such notice to each Bondholder whereupon a successor or temporary Trustee
shall be appomted in accordance with Section 11.7hereof.

11.5 Resignation by the Trustee, The Trustes and any successor Trustee may at any
time resign ‘from the trusts hereby by giving thirty (30) days' written notice by registered or
certified mail to the Bank and the owner of each Bond as shown by the list of Bondholders
required by this Indenture to be kept at the office of the Trustee, and such resignation shall only
take efféct upon the appointment of a successor Trustee in accordance with Section 11.7 and
acceptance of such appointment by the successor Trustee.

11.6  Removal of the Trustee. The Trustee may be removed at any time with or without
cause by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing delivered to the Trustee and to the Bank
and signed by the Beneficial Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of all Bonds then
Outstanding or their attorneys-in-fact duly authorized. Notice of the removal of the Trustee shall be
given in the same manner as provided in Section 11.5 hereof with respect to the resignation of
the Trustee. So long as no Event of Default or an event which, with the passage of time would become
an Event of Default, shall have occurred and be confinuing, the Trustes may be removed at any time
for cause by tresolution or other official written action taken by the Bank with such written action to
be filed with the Trustee.

11.7 Appomtment of Successor Trustee by the Bondholders; Temporary Trustee. If
the Trustee shall resign .or be removed, or be dissolved, or shall be in course of dissolution or
liquidation, or otherwise become incapable of acting hereunder, or if it shall be taken under the
control of any public officer or officers, or of a receiver appointed by a court, a successor may be
appointed by the owners of a majority in agg regate principal amount of all Bonds then Outstanding
by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing signed by such owners, or by their attorneys-
in-fact duly authorized, a copy of which shall be delivered petsonally or sent by registered mail
to the Bank. Nevertheless in case of such vacancy, the Bank by resolution may appoint a temporary
Trustee to fill such vacancy, Within ninety (90} days of such appoiniment, the Bondholders may
appoint a suceessor Trustee; any such successor Trustee so appointed by the Bank shall become the
successor Trustee if no appointment is made by the Bondholders within such period, but in the event
an appointment is made by the Bondholders, the temporary Trustee shall immediately and without
further act be superseded by any Trustee so appointed by such Bondholders. Notice of the
appointment of a successor Trustee shall be given in the same manner as provided by Section 11.5
hereof with respect to the resignation of a Trustee, Every such Trustee appointed pursuant to the
provisions of this Section shall be a trust company or bank in good standing in and incorporated

50



under the laws of the State, duly authorized to exercise trust powers and subject to examination by
federal or State authority, having a reported capital and surplus of not less than $75, 000,000, if there
be such an institution willing, qualified and able to accept the trust upon reasonable of customary
ferms.

11.8  Concerning Any Successor Trustee. Every successor Trustee appointed hereunder
shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to its or his predecessor and also to the Bank an instrument
in writing accepting such appointment hereunder, and thereupon such successor, without any further

‘act, deed or conveyance, shall become fully vested with all the estates, properties, rights, powers,
trusts, duti¢s and obligations of its predecessors; but such predecessor shall, nevertheless, on the
written request of the Banlk, after the payment of all fees, charges and expenses which may be due
and owing to such predecessor pursuant to the provisions of Section 11.2 hereof, execute and deliver
an instrument transferring to such successor Trustee all the estates, properties, rights, powers and
trusts of such predecessor hereunder; and shall deliver all securities, moneys and other property or
documents held by it as Trustee hereunder to its or his successor hereunder. Should any instrument
in writing from the Bank be required by ‘any successor Trustee for mére fully and certainly vesting
in such successor the estate, rights, powers and duties hereby vested or inténded to be vested in the
predecessor any and all such instrumients in writing shall, on request, be exectted, acknowledged
and delivered by the Bank, The resighation of any Trustee and the ‘nstrument or instruments
removing any Trustee and appointing a suceessor hereunder, together with all other instruments.
provided for in this Article, shall be filed or recorded by the successor Trustee in each recording
office where this Indenture shall have been filed or recorded, if any.

11.9  Indemnification. The Bank, will, to the fullest extent permitted by law, protect,
indemnify and save the Trustee and its respective officers, board members, attorneys, agents, and
employees, harmless from and agdinst all libilities, losses, damages, costs, expenses (including
attorneys' fees and expenses of the Trusted), taxes, causes of action, suits, claims, demands and -
judgments of any nature arising from:

(&) violation of any agreement, provision or condition of this Indenturs, the
City Bond, the Bonds or the City Bond Resclution except-a violation by the Trustee;

{b) any statement or information relating to the expenditure of the proceeds of
the Bonds contained in the Tax Certificate or similar document furnished by the City to the Bank
which, at the time magde, is misleading, untrue or incorrect in afy material respect; and

“(¢) any untrue stafement or alleged unirue statement of a material fact
contained in any offering material relating to the sale or remarketing of the Bonds (as from time to
time amended or supplemented) or arising out of or based upon the omission or alleged omission
to state therein a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the
statements’ therein not miisleading, or failure to properly register or othetwise qualify the sale of
the Bonds or failure to comply with any licensing or other law or regulation which would affect
the manner wheieby orto 'whom the Bonds could be sold.

Promptly after receipt by the Trustee of notice of the commencement of any action with

regpect to which indemnity may be sought against the Bank under this Section, the Trustee will
notify the Bank in writing of the commencement thereof; and, subject to the provisions hereinafter

51



stated, the Bank shall assume the defense of such action (including the employment of Counsel or
such other person as the case may be, and the payment of expenses). Insofar as such action shall
relate to any alleged liability with respect to which indemnity may be sought against the Bank, the
Trustee shall have the right to employ separate Counsel in any such action and to participate in the
defense thereof, but the fees and expenses of such Counsel shall not be at the expense of the Bank
undess the employment of such Counsel has been specifically authorized by the Bank, which approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld, The Bank shall not be liable to indemnify any person for any
settlement of any such action effected without its consent.

The provisions of this Section 11.9 shall survive the payment and discharge of the City
Bond and the Bonds.

11.10  Successor Trustee as Trustee of Funds, Paying Agent and Registrar. In the event
of a change in the office of Trustee, the predecessor Trustee which has resigned or been removed
shall cease to be Trustee of the funds provided hereunder and registrar and paying agent for principal
of, premium, if any, and inmierest on the Bonds, and the successor Trustee shall become such
Trustee, registrar and paying agent.

ARTICLE 12

SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES

12.1  Supplemental Indentures not Requiring Consent of Bondholders, The Bank and
the Trustee may, without the consent of, or notice to, any of the Bondholders, enter into an indenture
or indentures supplemental to this Indenture for any one or more of the following purposes:

(=) To cure any ambignity or formal defect or omission in this Indenture;

(b} To grant to or confer upon the Trustee for the benefit of the Bondholders
any additional benefits, rights, remedies, powers or authorities that may Iawfully be granted to or
conferred upon the Bondholders or the Trustee, or to make any change which, in the opinion of
Bond Counsel, does not materially and adversely affect the interest of the owners of Outstanding
Bonds and does not require unanimous consent of the Bondholders pursuant to Section 12.2;

(¢} To subject 1o this Indenture additional Revenues, properties or collateral;

(d) To modify, amend or supplement this Indenture or any indenture
supplemental hereto in such mauner as to permit the qualification hereof and thereof under the
Trust Indenture Act of 1939 or any similar:federal statute hereafter in effect or to permit the
qualification of the Bonds for sale under the securities laws of the United States of America or of any
of the states of the United States of America, and, if so determined, to add to this Indenture or any
indenture supplemental hereto such other terms, conditions and provisions as may be permitted
by said Trust Indenture Act of 1939 or similar federal statute;

(&) To evidence the appointment of a separate o co-trustee or the succession of
anew Trustee hereunder or the succession of a new registrar and/or paying agent; and



) In connection with issuance of Refunding Bonds.

12.2 Supplemental Indentures Requiring Consent of Bondholders. Exclusive of
Supplemental Indentures provided for by Section 12.1 and subject to the terms and provisions
confained in this Section, and not otherwise, the owners of not less than a majority in aggregaie
principal amount of the Bonds then Qutstanding ‘which are affected (exclusive of Bonds held by
the Bank) shall have the right, from time to time, anything contained in this Indenture to the
contrary notwithstanding, to consent to and approve the execution by the Bank and the Trustee of
such other indenture or indentures supplemental hereto as shall be deemed necessary and desirable
by the Trustee for the purpose of modifying, altering, amending, adding to or rescinding, in any
particular, any of the terms or provisions contained in this Tndenture or in any Supplemental
Indenture; provided, however, that nothing in this Section contained shall permit, or be construed
as permitting, without the consent of the owners of all then Outstanding Bonds, (a) an extension of
the maturity of the principal of or the interest or redemption date on any Bond issued hereunder,
or (b) a reduction in the principal amount of any Bond or change in the rate of interest or redemption
premium, or (c) a privilege or priority of any Bond or Bonds aver any other Bond or Bouds, or (d)
a reduction in the aggregate principal amount ‘of the Bonds required for consent to such Supplemental
Indenture, or (€} the creation of any lien securing any Bonds other than a lien ratably securing all
of the Bonds at any time Qutstanding hereunder, or (f) any modification of the trusts, powers,
tights, obligations, duties, remedies, immurities and privileges of the Trustee without the written
consent of the Trustes,

If at any time the Bank shall request the Trustee to enter into any such Supplemental
Indenture for any of the purposes set forth in this Section, the Trustee shall, upon being satisfactorily
indemnified with respect to expenses, cause notice of the proposed execution of such Supplemental
Indenture to be mailed by registered or certified mail to each owner of a Bond at the address
shown on the registration records maintained by the Trustee. Such notice shall briefly set forth the
nature of the proposed Supplemental Indenture and shall state that copies thereof are on file at the
Principal Office of the Trustee for inspection by all Bondholders. If, within sixty (60) days, or such
longer period as shall be prescribed by the Bank, following the mailing of such notice, the owners
of not less than fifty-one percent (51%) in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding at
the time of the execution of any such Supplemental Indenture {exclusive of Bonds héld by the
Bank) shall have consented to and approved the execution of such Supplemental Indenture ‘as
provided in Section 13.1 hereof, o owner of any Bond shall have any right to object to any of the
terms and provisions contained therein, or the operation thereof, or in any manner to question the
propriety of the execution thereof, or to enjoin or restrain the Trustee or the Bank from executing
the same or from taking any action pursuant to the provisions thereof. Upon the execution of any
such Supplemental Indenture as in this Section permitted and provided, this Indenture shall be and
be deemed to be modified and amended in accordance therewifh.

ARTICLE 13
MISCELLANEOUS
13.1  Consents, Ete., of Bondholders,  Any consent, request, direction, approval,
objection or other instrument required by this Indenture to be signed and executed by the

Bondholders may be in any number or concurrent writings of similar tenor and may be signed or
executed by such Bondholders in person or by én agent appointed in writing. Proof of the

33



execution of any such consent, request, direction, approval, objection or other instrument or of the
writing appointing any such agent and of the ownership of Bonds, if made in the following marmer,
shall be sufficient for any of the purposes of this Indenture, #nd shall be conclusive in favor of the
Trustee with regard to any action taken by it or them under such request or other instrument,
namely

(a) The fact and date of the execution by any person of any such writing may
be proved (i) by the certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction who by law has power to take
acknowledgments within such jurisdiction that the person signing such writing acknowledged

- before him the execution thersof, or (ii) by an affidavit of any witness fo such execution.

(b)  The fact of ownership of Bonds and the amount or amounts, numbers and
other identification of Bonds, and the date of holding the same shall be proved by the Bond
Register of the Bank maintained by the Trustee pursuant to Section 3.6 hereof,

132 Limitation of Rights. With the exception of rights herein expressly conferred,
nothing expressed ot mentioned in or to be implied from this Indenture or the Bonds is intended or
shall be construed to give to any person or company other than the parties hereto, and the owners
of the Bonds, any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under or in respect to this Indenture
or any covenants, conditions and provisions herein contained; this Indenture and all of the covenants,
conditions and provisions hereof being intended to be and being for the sole and exclusive benefit
of the parties hereto and the owners of the Bonds as herein provided.

13.3  Severability. If any provision of this Indenture shall be held or deemed to be or
shall, in fact, be illegal, inoperative or unenforceable, the same shall not affect any other provision
or provisions herein contained or render the same invalid, inoperative or unenforceable to any extent
whatever.

13.4  Notices. Any notice, request, complaint, demand, communication or other paper
shall be sufficiently given when delivered or mailed by registered or certified mail, postage
prepaid, addressed to the appropriate Notice Address. A duplicate copy of each notice required to
be given hereunder by the Trustee or the Bankto the City or the Bandholder(s) shall also be given
to the other, The Bank or the Trustee may, by notice given hereunder, designate any further or
different addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates or other communications shall be sent,

13.5  Trustee as Paying Agent and Registrar. The Trustee is hercby demgnated and
agrees fo act aspaying agent and registrar for and in respect to the Bonds.

13.6  Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays. In any case where the due
date of interest on, or the maturity date of principal of; or the date fixed for redemption of any
Bonds shall not be a Business Day, then payment of such amounis then due may be made on the
niext Business Day with the same force and effect as if made on the due date.

13.7  Counterparts. This Indenture may be simultancously executed in several
counterparts, cach of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the
same instrument.

54



13.8  Receipt of Money or Revenues by Trustee. The Trustee is an authorized agent of
the Bank for purposes of receiving money and Revenues on behalf of the Bank in accordance with

provisions of this Indenture.

Itis not the intent of this Section 13.8, or any other Section of this Indenture, to create a power
- ofattorney relationship between the Bank and the Trustee,

13.9  Applicable Provisions of Law. This Indenture shall be governed by and construed in
accordance. with the laws of the State.

[The remainder of this page left intentionally blank.]

55



IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the Bank has caused this Indenture to be executed on its
behalf by its Executive Director and the seal of the Bank to be hereunto affixed and duly attested by
its Secretary, and the Trustee, to evidence its acceptance of the trusts created hereunder, has caused
this Indenture to be executed in its name by its duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year
first above written.

MISSISSIPPI DEVELOPMENT BANK

By:

Kxecutive Director

(SEAL)

ATTEST:

Secretary

Signature page to the Indenture of Trust, by and between the Mississippi Development
Bank and The Peoples Bank, as Trustee, dated as of January 1, 2025,



THE PEOPLES BANK,
as Trustee

Yice President
and Corporate Trust Officer

Signature page to the Indenture of Trust, by and between, the Mississippi Development
Bank and The Peoples Bank, as Trustee, dated as of January 1, 2025,

S-2



EN WITNESS WHEREOT, the City of Pass Christian, Mississippi has caused this Indenture
to be duly acknowledged all as of the day and year first above writter.

CITY OF PASS CHRISTIAN

By:

RENAUD JAMES RAFFERTY, MAYOR

Signature page to the Indeuture of Trust, by and between, the Mississippi Development
Bank and The Peoples Bank, as Trustee, dated as of January 1, 2025.

S-3



A-¢

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE EMAILED)

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative []
Requesting Department 1X]
Consent ]
Executive Session []
Other [ ]
FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:
Capital Improvement Fund []
BP Fund []
001-__ - []
Other []
AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S) Yes| | No| ]

Consider approving quote in the amount of $11,450.00 from Mark Blackmer to remove the
derelict vessel in the Harbor and amend budget line item 117-750-600 accordingly as requested
by Alderman Torgeson

accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
ratifying, correcting, etc.)

APROVED [ | ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED | |



PROPOSAL

Marl Blackmer
21206 Daugherty Rd

Long Beach, MS 39560
Proposal Submitted To: DATE:11/01/2024
City of Pass Christian . Pass Christian Harbor

JOB DESCRIPTION: Remaval of sunken shrimp boat “Southern Belle”
Remove from slip 320 _

Toe around the boat launch, remove ridges raghre,

Will try to load eonto trailer if unsuccessful will demo and haul off entire boat

WE PROPOSE, to furnish lahor and materials in complete accordance with the above specifications
Proposed Cost: 11,450,00

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL: The above prices and specifications are satisfactory and
are hereby accepted.

Date

Signature

Go to www AtYourBusiness.com for more free business forms



AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE EMAILED)

DATE OF MEETING: January 7, 2024

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative
Requesting Department
Consent

Executive Session
Other

]
X]
]
]
|

i e—

FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:

Capital ITmprovement Fund L
BP Fund [
ool- - ]
Other [

AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S)  Yes|[ | No| ]
Consider appointing Bill Hutchinson, Sandra Lobrano, and Mary Bourdin as City Election Commissioners
with their terms to expire June 30, 2025, as recommended by Mayor Rafferty.

accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
ratifying, correcting, etc.)

APROVED [ | ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED [ |



AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE EMAILED)

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative [ ]
Requesting Department [X |
Consent []
Executive Session []
Other []
FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:
Capital Improvement Fund I
BP Fund []
oor-_ - []
Other []
AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S) Yes[] No| ]

Consider changing the City’s online bidding provider from Central Bidding to PH Bidding.

accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
ratifying, correcting, etc.)

APROVED | ] ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED | ]



ELECTRONICBID
MANAGEMENT




Track every plan holder
and every document. Confirm

who has received, viewed, or

downloaded the documents.

Access all electronic submissions
bid opening instantly.

~ WELCOME T GURPLANRODM

) frotaad ity oo to ol ARt ST
Po———y

Register bor your froe planmoomn zeeoonl

Sy MeTutis~ e air )

2CT-OAEWE &xle: uf 1983 Biteh Witch JTR20 dorkeg blochine ) rafler, S0 ELLEETER ]
A CTEGE CLBLE ADF13422 10000mm
Tepeilo, &g {FnFR-E] = B
2622-337WL 200t Inte mistipns] 25HGA !ﬂsmmv.w.mr VR FHTGCADTHIHADEH 23 B 8heta disa in Auloyn
190322 {0:00am
Tupsto, M!lr -RFP-E] o . o
Vet betangsain

i tanzoud s 0L CIUWL Souices of Supply — V2 Mot Supply Bl . . 180005 4fie b 3 Jay”
ELYA T 1G5 10:d0am.

Create and manage ever — -

y - ’ 20220531 Pre-Shasiad Soun Gaacrete Poles- 12 [Aenti Stppry B T SR Y

Bt e mhapzs Jetbasm

project, RFP, reverse auction, &) SR . e

2022-040WL Watar Unzerials B-tlonth Supnlybid ’ 174 s dua In 3 uave

- * . - ko |
and construction bid all with ——

Tunzlo, WS {F-HI-E1 -

O n e S i m p l e W e b S it e . . : sz omvis. LD Lunindres- 8- nonth Supph Ak m::":::xr::::

iy B RE
Fupslo, M8 IT-HA-E)

20222-082AQ PACI ThEndU- 13 Mot Sl W ¥ds el Mg
BopvainEnn TOP20p22 10 Ggam
Tuptio. M8 (-RFP-EL o x

2224044V Bectrc vine Yigt-ol-Woy Ling Shisting XN dug In 20 dae
fet o el 0422 10:0%8m ©
Topila, M8 {T-RFR-E} e

22083 Hank & Helan Boarasy Skade Park Apnevations & inprevemznls % bidhep Chet2a
ey oz Z=0en .
Tupsha, M [F-HA-2)




WHAT IS A
| REVERSE AUCTION"

prices and more savings.

An advanced procurement method
designed with the buyer in mind.
By using a reverse auction, multiple
vendors have a chance to competitively 0
bid in real time, resulting in reduced

10
il
]
L - Bldder i1
Y Bicidler 2
& 60 - Blider
o == Bidler 3
~g- Bidder fi4

i

«= == Historlc Price

400 Ph

REVERSE AUCTIONS

WITH PH BIDDING

the headache of the
ment process by

ning your bidding process
PH Bidding.

ing will write the

tions source the vendors,
‘the reverse auction.

& open competition with
pe(_:;ﬁcatlons to ensure
‘he:lowest and best price,
ng:the taxpayer thousands.
i'tlo"’the City/County/
'Mumt:lpahty, and thus no

i

Three (3) General imaging Ultrasound Systems

6:00PH T.00PM .00

TIME

SGOPM

Bitt Specification Lump Sum bid for (3) Unlts A iy -

Bid Start Date / Time Mar 22, 2022 10:00 AM US/Central 7 .

Bid End Data / Time Mar 22, 2022 10:42 AM US/Ceniral ( Fﬂ ! '

Bid Duration C0:42 {hh:mmj B g ’
BID SUMMARY wg,g{;ggﬁﬁ
GOMEANY E BID AMOUNT- . . """ ] IPELNERY TIME ~

MR SOUTH| MEDICAL lMAGiNG

|5 108,000.00 USD. - . o nts |35 Days

Silvar Lining X-Ray

% 104,100.00 USD 21 Days

¥ MEDICAL INSTRUMENT. GO, -

*1$:128,600.00 USD. ;. 7o T MG Days

Natlonal Ultrasound

5 140,000.00 USD 24 Days

LEGEND

[Low BidAmaunt -

2nd Place Bid Amount

Jrd Place Bid-Ameunt - e S

|4th Place Bid Amount

Orlginal Quoted Prica

$134,540

Reverse Auction Low Bid :

104,000

Savings Using Reverse Auctlon

330,940

Percentage of Savings

23%




~BI00ING

LN

IN ASSOCIATION WITH:

PLAN HOUSE

HEAR IT FROM
OURCUSTOMERS!

“The amount of time and effort that is saved by using
PH Bidding can't be overstated.”

"We, the City of Biloxi, could not be happier with our

decision to use Plan House as our Electronic bidding solution!

It has been nothing but a positive experience for us as well

as our relationship with local plan houses and contractors.”
-City of Biloxi

With offices in Tupelo, Hattiesburg, and Gulfport, PH Bidding is the premier
Electronic Bidding and Reverse Auction provider for dozens of school districts,
municipalities, community colleges and counties throughout the State of Mississippi.
Since 2007, PH Bidding has partnered with public and private entities assisting
with electronic bidding and document management and distribution.

Now providing a wide array of Reverse Auction services, PH Bidding is the only

source you need for all your construction bidding and public procurement neeads,

605 WEST MAIN STREET | TUPELO, MS 38804

662-407-0193 | WWW.PHBIDDING.COM




AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE EMAILED)

‘f
P

DATE OF MEETING: January 7, 2025

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrarive

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative
Requesting Department
Consent

Executive Session
Other

| s § e W ey By |
IS S  N— MI—I
| S

FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:

Capital Improvement Fund
BP Fund

oo1- -

Other

re—rre—
e e e

AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S) Yes [ ] No | ]
Consider motion to accept recommendation of awarding the Bid for the Pier P-2 Electrical
Upgrades to Krol Electric, of Gulfport, MS who provided the lowest and best bid in the amount
of $188,389.00 as recommended by Covington Civil and Environmental Engineers.

accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
ratifying, correcting, etc.)

APROVED [ | ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED [ ]



U

R e

CIVIL AND ENVIRONMENTAL

December 18, 2024

City of Pass Christian

200 West Scenic Drive

Pass Christian, MS 39571

Attn: Mayor and Board of Alderpersons
Re: Recommendation of Award

City of Pass Christian
Pier P-2 Electrical Upgrades

Dear Mayor and Board of Alderpersons:

Bids were received from three (3) contractors on December 17, 2024. The bids received ranged from
$188,389.00 to $243,733.00. The contractor who provided the apparent lowest and best bid was Krol
Electric of Gulfport, MS.

Based on the availability of funds and with the concurrence of the City Attorney, we recommend the
Board of Alderpersons award the contract for this work to Krol Electric of Gulfport, MS in the amount of
$188,389.00. A copy of the bid tabulation is included with this correspondence.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

COYINGT VIL & ENVIRONMENTAL, LL.C

Wit} bl

30b Escher, P.E.

Fax: (228) 396-0487 2300 |4t Street Phone: (228) 396-0486
Gulfport, Mississippi 39501



City of Pass Christian - West Small Graft Harbor

Pier P-2 Electrical Upgrades

CONTRACTORS SUBMITTING A BID Krol Electric MillerCo, Inc. Blanchard Construction
Certificate of Responsibility No.: 07984-MC 12517-MC 24935-MC
Bid Bond o v v
Addendum No. 1 Acknowiedgement: v v 7

Base Bid .

Hem No. Bescription of Unit Price tems Oty Units Unit Price Ext. Total Unit Price Ext Total Unit Price Ext. Total
1-A MOBILIZATION 1 LS $ 10,000.00 il $ 10,000.00 7,000.00 7;000.00 $ 2234400 1] § 22,344.00
2-A  {DEMOLITION 1 LS $ 998000 $ 998000 17,860.00 17,860.00 | § 15,792.00 || 3 4 5,792.00
3-A  |PIER P-2 ELECTRICAL UPGRADES 1 L8 $162,800.00 |1 $162,809.00 | 188,165.70 || 188,165.70 $201,097.00 || $201.097.00
4-A RESTORATION 1 LS $ 5.600.00i| S 560000 20.500.00 20,500.00 ;1§ 4500.00[|% 4,500.00

Total - Base Bid $188,389.00 $233,525.70 $243,733.00
| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS 1S A TRUE
AND CORRECT TABULATION OF BIDS FEPEFE g,
#8551 A o,
. . . ) & %ww@&%ﬂﬂﬁ&&ﬂ#%@“ﬂﬂﬂ
Ut _ $S8° TR
Y F P77 N =
(4 S ¥ g
Hob Escher, P.E. § Y ENGINEER 13
Cert. No. 14782 § 1 LI
L ) 7 &
T py, 14782 g
KA AR
=5 m.oananhunﬂmuqu,/u oy
s, OF MiSS s




AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE: EMAILED)

‘_"'__“".'...... ' :

DATE OF MEETING: January 7, 2025

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative []
Requesting Department X1
Consent []
Executive Session 11
Other []
FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:
Capital Improvement Fund [

BP Fund ]
0ol- - []
Other []
AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S) Yes|[ | No [ ]

Consider authorizing opening the 2025 Bond Series Construction bank account at Hancock
Whitney and authorize the Mayor Jimmy Rafferty, City Clerk, Marian Governor, Mayor Pro

Tem, Kenny Torgeson and deputy City Clerk, Olivia Lewis as authorized signers.

accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
ratifying, correcting, etc.)

APROVED | | ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED [ ]



117

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE EMAILED)

DATE OF MEETING: January 7, 2025

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative []
Requesting Department [X]
Consent ' [ ]
Executive Session []
Other ]
FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:
Capital Improvement Fund [
BP Fund M
oot~ - (]
Other []
AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S) Yes| ] No [ ]

Consider request of the contractor, LJ Construction, for the North Street Gravity Sewer Im provements
Phase li and Ill to use one of two City-owned properties (See tax maps attached) as a temporary lay
down yard for storage of construction materials to be used during the construction of the project. The
Contractor will be allowed to clear an area not to exceed 1 to 1/12 acres near the adjacent public road
and be required to restore the property to its vegetative condition within thirty days after final
acceptance of the work. The contractor will be required to indemnify and hold harmless the City during
the use of the property and add the City as an additional insured on its liability insurance policy.

accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
ratifying, correcting, etc.) ' '

APROVED | | ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED | |



HARRISON COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI

DISCLAIMER: THIS MAP IS FOR PROPERTY TAX ASSESSM
RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE REGISTER OF DEEDS
TAL FLURRY,TAX ASSESSOR.

MAP DATE: January 3, 2025

ENT PURPOSES ONLY. IT WAS CONSTRUCTED FROM PROPERTY INFORMATION
AND IS NOT CONCLUSIVE AS TO LOCATION OF PROPERTY OR LEGAL CWNERSHIP.




S202 ‘e Asenuer :31va dvw

"HOSS3SSY XVL'AHHNIA VL

‘dIHSH3INMO V931 HO ALHId0OHd 40 NOILYD01 0L SY IAISNTONOD LON SI ANy Sg33d 40 43151934 JHL 40 301440 IHL NI Q3QH0I3Y
NOILYWHOLNI AL¥3d0Nd WONL QILINYLSNOD S¥M LI 'ATNO SIS0JdHNd LNIWSSISSY Xyl ALY3d0dd YO SI dVI SIHL “H3aWIvIosIa

IddISSISSIN ‘ALNNOD NOSINNVH




(AP0, Dese |

AGENDA REQUEST FORM
, (MUST BE EMAILED)
“.I“_‘—;—____. 3

DATE OF MEETING: January 7, 2025

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative []

Requesting Department [X]

Consent []

Executive Session []

Other []

FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:

Capital Improvement Fund [

BP Fund ]

o0l - []

Other []

AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S) Yes|[ | No| |

Consider directing Code Enforcement Office to require RV Park Managers to provide documentation
required by City’s ordinance or conditions imposed for permits for compliance purposes as requested by
Alderman Pickich.

accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
- ratilying, correcting, etc.)

APROVED | | ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED [ ]



Oy Toeue |

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE EMAILED)

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative
Requesting Department
Consent

Executive Session
Other

= P — e
| S ) I ) E— NI—I
—_

FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:

Capital Improvement Fund
BP Fund

001 -

Other

AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S) Yes[]  No[ ]

Consider re-appointing Ellen Berry Adams to the Historic Preservation Commission for a three-

year term with effect from January 1, 2025, Ellen’s term expired on December 31, 2024.

accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding, -
ratifying, correcting, etc.)

APROVED []  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED | ]



AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE EMAILED)

DATE OF MEETING: January 7, 2025

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative [
Requesting Department [X]
Consent [

[

[

Executive Session
Other

| S WS S— )><I—...l

FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:

Capital Improvement Fund
BP Fund

WO

Other

AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S) Yes|[ | No| ]
Consider appointing Chris Daniel to replace Lou Rizzardi on the Tree Board with effect from

January1,2025.

accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
ratifying, correcting, etc.)

APROVED | | ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED [ |



E\] o, {; -
g

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE EMAILED) '

A==

DATE OF MEETING: January 7, 2025

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative []

Requesting Department [X]

Consent [ ]

Executive Session [ 1]

Other []

AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S) Yes| | No| ]

Consider approving the request from The Pass Christian Pirate Excellence Foundation (PEF) for A

Night of New Horizons Fundraiser featuring Chapel Hart to be held Saturday March 15, 2025. All net

proceeds are directed to student scholarships and teacher grants within the Pass Christian School

district. Use of the following resources from the City of Pass Christian in support of the Excellence

Foundation as requested by Susan Putnam. This hringing favorahble notice to the resources and

opportunities of the City.

- Use of the Harbor Greenspace and adfacent parking lot

- Preparation of the grounds to include treatment for ants as well as grass cutting as appropriate.

- Use of city trash receptacles, (cans and recycle bins).

- Use of the city stage

- Use of City generators (need two)

-Use of the portable panel box

“Two tower lights at $104.00 each per the City's rate United Rental

- Use of tables and chairs from the Randolph center to be dropped off at Harbor by
Beautification/Public works

- City barricades/cones as needed

- Police, Fire, Beautification, Public Works-support including overtime-if necessary = -
Fee waived for use of The Randolph Center in case of inclement weather

-And any further resources as deemed ‘necessary and required’ by the Mayor and Board of Alderman

accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
ratifying, correcting, etc.) '

APROVED [ | ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED | |



AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE EMAILED)

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative |
Requesting Department [X ]
Consent [

[

[

Executive Session
Other

e — ><I__I

FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:

Capital Improvement Fund
BP Fund
00L=_ =

|
|
|
Other |

e e——

AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S) Yes[]  NoJ |
Consider approving Olivia Lewis attending the Ms. Municipal Clerks Program Spring seminar in
Hattiesburg, Ms. on February 26 through February 28, 2025, with a registration fee of $300.00, per diem
in the amount of $84.00 and lodging in the amount of $235.40.

accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
ratifying, correcting, etc.)

APROVED [ | ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED | |



CA- )

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE EMAILED)

DATE OF MEETING: January 7,2025

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative []
Requesting Department [X]
Consent M
Executive Session [ ]
Other [ ]
FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:
Capital Improvement Fund []
BP Fund []
ool-_ - [
Other [
AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S)  Yes| | No[ ]

Consider paying Invoice#3106 from Kirkpals Painting, LLC, in the amount of $2,325.00 for

painting 26 columns at the Randolph Center.

accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
ratifying, correcting, etc.)

T APROVED [ ] ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED | |



Kirkpals Painting LLC Invoice 1KIIR KP Al', s...

6 Barbara Ct
Long Beach, MS 39560 PAINTING, LLC

kirkpalsllc@gmail.com

BILL TO
] Mayor J Rafférty '

City of Pass Christian

200 West Scenic Drive
Pass Christian, MS 39571

INVOICE # . DAIE . TOTAL DUE e  TERMS ENCLOSED

3106 _lengeo24  s282500  Dueonreceipt

DATE ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

The Randolph Building
Painting Painting of 26 columns in the courtyard area. 2,325.00

To scrape and prep all of the columns. Then to caulk any
seams and edges and spackle where necessary.

To spot prime any areas of bare wood to seal ready for finish
coat.

To apply one solid finish coat of semi gloss finish from top to
bottom on all of the 26 columns to match existing color. To
include labor and materials.

We appreciate your business and look forward to helping you BALANCE DUE $2 325.00
y y .
again soon.

.




i AGENDA REQUEST FORM

J (MUST BE EMAILED)

DATE OF MEETING: January 7, 2025

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative
Requesting Department
Consent

Executive Session

Other

e
(R

FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:

Capital Improvement Fund
BP Fund
001- -
Other

AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S)  Yes|[ | No[ |
Consider adopting Mississippi Cyber Unit: Memorandum of Understanding for the purpose of Cyber
Protection from the MS office of Homeland Security. This MOU is part of a cyber assessment that was
conducted for the current MS Office of Homeland Security Grant for LPR’s, as requested by Chief Daren
Freeman.

accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
ratifying, correcting, etc.)

APROVED | | ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED | |



Mississippi Cyber Unit:
Memorandum of Understanding

This Memorandum of Understanding, (hereafter ("Agreement”), between the

, {hereafter “Partner Agericy"), with offices located
at and the Migsissippi Cyber Unit,
(hereafter “MCU"), a division of the Mississippi Office of Homeland Security, with offices located
at 1 Mema Drive, Pearl, MS 39208, an office of the Mississippi Department of Public Safety
(hereafter "MDPS"), outlines a cooperative agreement by which MCU wiil provide an external
attack surface management system, (hereafter “ASM"), consisting of all components which will
or may be provided by MCU to Partner Agency. The ASM is web-based and only monitors
infrastructure accessible to the Internet. The ASM does not require any hardware or software
installation by the Partner Agency. ‘

WHEREAS, MCU, in cenjunction with its contractors, has undertaken the deployment of an
ABM, which provides external vuinerability and risk management incites - and

WHEREAS, MCU has made provisions to provide implementation of, and training for, ASM; and
WHEREAS, Partner Agency desires to utilize the ASM being offered;

NOW, THEREFORE, In consideration of the mutual understandings, promises, consideration,
and agreements set forth below, the parties hereto agree as foliows:

Period of Performande _
This Agreement shall provide for an initial term of one year from the date of the last signature

affixed hereto, (hereafter (“Initial Term”).

The Parties agree that this Agreement may be extended for four additional one-year periods,
uporn execution of a writteh amendrment to the Agreement prior to the expiration of the
Agreement.

Termination N
Either party may terminate this Agreément for convenience by writien ninety-day notice.

Either party may terminate this Agreement for cause immiediately by written notice.

Comunercial Terms

Puring the Initial Term or Subsequent Terms, the charge to Partner Agency for use of the ASM
system will be zero dollars ($0.00). Should funding sources or system cost change, MCU
reserves the right to negotiate a fee with Partner Agericy that will cover the cost, or a portion of
the cost, of operating, supporting, and upgrading the ASM. ‘

MCU Responsibilities

MCU agrees to: ‘ _

1. Monitor ASM and notify Partner Agency within five (5) business days of any issues classified
as Critical and within fourteen (14) business days for any issues classified as High. The
MCU will notify the Partner Agency of other issues as they are able;

2. Provide systemterms and conditions for Partner Agency reference and use;

3. Maintain proper licensing of all applications, software and utilities used fo deliver the ASM
application suite;

Partner Agency Initials and Date: Page 1 of B



8.

Mississippi Cyber Unit:
Memorandum of Understanding

Provide programming, implementation, training, support and ASM helpdesk services for the
standard products included within the ASM application suite:

Account management for ASM (8am-5pm Monday-Friday);

Software support (Bam-5pm Monday-Friday) for the ASM application suite ~no hardware
support will be provided {e.g., workstation, printer, card reader, GPS, network equipment,
etc.; these issues/questions will need to be addressed to hardware provider or Partner
Agency technology services);

Training on ASM Application Suite for Partner Agency personnel (online training or face-to-
face on dates and at sites determined by MCU. Local agencies will be responsible for any
travel costs incurred for training; and

Work with ASM vendor to address any problems with the ASM system.

Partner Agency Responsibilities
Partner Agency agrees to:

1.

10.

11,
12.

Notify MCU immediately if a breach of IT.security has or may have occurred, Examples
would include stolen-laptop, system misuse, hacked or compromised system{s), networks,
compromised user/admin accounts, etc.;

Properly dotument remediation effarts on issues discovered by the ASM within the ASM
system including accurate notes; _

Abide by the Mississippi Department of Information Technology Services Enterprise Security
Policy, including the prohibition on implementing any form of split-tunnefing network protocol
whilé accessing the state network, data or systems, if applicable. If not bound to the
Enterprise Security Policy, abide by applicable industry and government standards;
Conduct regular cybersecurity assessments; , 7
Maintain proper licensing of all Partner Agency software, utilities or applications utilized in
association with this agreement;

Utilize a current version of Micrasoft Windows™ operating system with latest updates
installed in a suitable time period (no more than & days for emergency updates and within
30 days for routine updates);

Utilize anti-virus software at all times with a current licerise, which includes periodic updates
that are automatically installed;

Allow MCU or their contractors to use personally identifiable information (PH) and non-

personally identifiable information (non-Pli) from all generated tickets or forms within the
ASM application suite for research and statistical purposes:

Allow MCU or their confractors to share personally identifiable information (PH) and nen-
personally identifiable information {non-PH) from all generated tickets or forms within the
ASM application suite on an individual basis (not bulk data), with other law enforcement
agencies, Including out-of-state law enforgement agencles, as approved by MCU,
Provide Pértner Agehcy usernames to the MCU and notify the MCU immediately when
personhel changes or dismissals occur (e.g., name, organization, of phone number

‘appearing on tickets);

Lisallow all ugers sharing access, lagins, or passwords in any form:

Partner Agency agrees that, except as noted herein, they will not otherwige copy, translate,
modify, adapt, decompile, disassemble, or reverse engineer any of the software provided
without the prior wrttten consent of MCU. Al title and proprietary rights, whether tangible or

Iintangible, including but not limited to copyright, trademark, -and trade secref rights, in and to

the software are retained by MCU, licensor or the third-party software manufacturer, as
applicable. Partner Agency agrees to reproduce and include all applicable copyright,

Partner Agency Initials and Date: Page 2 of 5



Mississippi Cyber Unit:

Memorandum of Understanding

trademark, and other proprietary rights notices on any copies made of software and
documentation provided pursuant to this Agreement;

13. Partner Agency agree to utilize the ASM application suite for their own internal purposes
and not disseminate the software or documentation provided pursuant to this Agreement to
any third party;

14. Partner Agency agree to abide by all applicable state and federal privacy and security laws,
regulations or policies.

LIABILITY

The parties acknowledge and agree that MCU, as a sub-division of MDPS, a public agency of
the State of Mississippi, is protected from liability pursuant to the Mississippi Tort Claims Act.
Personnel from each party will be presumed to be acting within the course and scope of their
employment in performing duties hereunder. Each party shall be considered to be independent
of the other, and neither shall be responsible for the acts or omissions of the other party.

Agreement Modification or Renegotiation

This Agreement may be modified only by written agreement signed by the parties hereto. Any
attempt at oral modification shall be void and of no effect. The parties agree to renegotiate this
Agreement if federal and/or state revisions of any applicable laws or regulations make changes

in this Agreement necessary.

Notices

Any natice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and
personally delivered or sent by electronic means, provided that the original of such notice is sent
by certified United States mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or overnight courier,
with signed receipt, to the party to whom the notice should be given at their business address

listed herein.

The MCU address for notice is:
Director, Mississippi Cyber Unit
Mississippi Office of Homeland Security
1 Mema Drive
Pearl, MS 39208

or successor.

The Partner Agency address for notice is:

QOr SuUccessor.

Notice shall be deemed given when actually received or when refused. The parties agree to
promptly notify each other in writing of any change of address.

(=]
[¢3]
(98]
=]
s
o

Partner Agency Initials and Date: Pa



Mississippi Cyber Unit:

Memorandum of Understanding

Warranties
MCU provides no warranties to Partner Agency on the acceptability or usefulness of the

products or services offered through this Agreement.

Waiver
Failure of either party hereto to insist upon strict compliance with any of the terms, covenants,

and conditions hereof shall not be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of any similar right or
power hereunder at any subsequent time or of any other provision hereof, nor shall it be
construed to be a modification of the terms of this Agreement.

Governing Law
This Agreement shall be construed and governed in accordance with the laws of the State

of Mississippi.

Severability
If any term or provision of this Agreement is prohibited by the laws of the State of Mississippi or
declared invalid or void by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement

shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

Sovereign Immunity
By entering into this Agreement with Partner Agency, MCU does not in any way waive its
sovereign immunities or other defenses as provided by law.

Captions
The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and in no way define, limit,
or describe the scope or intent of any provision or section of this Agreement.

Other Provisions
The Parties agree no other or special provisions are included or contemplated under

this Agreement.

Partner Agency Initials and Date: Page 4 of 5



Mississippi Cyber Unit:

Memorandum of Understanding

Entire Agreement _

This Memorandum of Understanding constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with réspect
to the subject matter contained herein and supersedes and replaces any and all prior
negotiations, understandings and agreements, written or oral, between the parties relating
thereto.

For the faithful performance of the terms of this Agreement, the parties hereto have caused this
Agreement to be executed by their undersigned authorized representatives.

Mississiopi Office of Homeland Security

By: By:
Authorized Signature ' Authorized Signaturée
Printed Name:. : Pr’i’nted Name:
Title: Executive Director Title:
Date: Date:

Mississippi Department of Public Safety
By:

Authorized Signature

Pririted Name;

Title: Commissioner,
Mississipol Department of Public. Safety

Date:

| Partner Agency-Initials and Date: Page 5of &



AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE EMAILED)

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: Administrative

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative []
Requesting Department [X]
Consent [ ]
Executive Session [ ]
Other []
FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:
Capital Improvement Fund [ ]
BP Fund []
001-_ - []
Other []
AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S)  Yes| | No| ]

Consider accepting the deposit in the amount of $7,513.02 from the Treasury Department into
the forfeiture account (110-200-560) and the budget will be amended accordingly, as requested
by Chief Daren Freeman.

accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making, rescinding,
ratifying, correcting, etc.)

APROVED | | ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED | |



00°GS JUNOWRY 193U0 1833Y [BI0L

0705 LNOWY JUSWAREIAAT 1855y [RI0L
sjasyQ/siuswieg Buueys

parciddy UGS SMNIBLG S
CCOEralLiBn =g Utisiaad sinlislodg

sAlBNSIUWEY adf] simysUod
UoISI23(] |UNNUBLO0

00610 LGS 3BnjEp lessy

fausungiysen sdfi] 1essy
LEDEIBGITE mieqQ aunzZes
FZ-N 0N sinZieg Aously Duissanolg
LLOZ-LZ-NM on esed fousby Buissaenold
LLGZ-LEZ-N oM 8580 A2Uaby Bunssnbsy

uoleULIOJU] JassY/ase])

\\?_u,g,ﬁf _o..f,___o@ pa- o1 piad 1un
[ COELS LS Esu%&ﬁmﬁcmiunnﬁ 4

N ?_um ‘0E/11 8leq ucnses

uswssIngsigausul

5505 €L ‘BIBUS pap
IDIBDQIL/UseED edf] sueusg pan
w3l fausby Dup

£E0T/62IA0 81BQg LosIvag DuL

EE0ZTITIE0 =1eQ pajdk

uoisioa( Buys

B8NS BunoA swep] s 830 s.Aoushy Buser

EED me mEnme.am 3L

qc PERKIOAL T

spasdoidiyse] sdil iser

[PEUSY UHORMINE 44 pewu
ECOZIOEED =ieg U

1sanbay Bun

USLIND SN 00°6L0° 253 “uondy

PesINGsIg smes |

uswieds s2ljod UBISLUD S38d | 00VOFZOSIN

| OO\ A7 "1



City of Pass Christian
AGENDA REQUEST FORM

(MUST BE EMAILED)

DATE OF MEETING: 17 ; 2029

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

REQUEST LOCATIONON AGENDA:

Administrative Il
- Requesting Department
Consent |
Executive Session ]
Other O
FUNDS TO BE PAID OUT OF:
Capital Improvement Fund ]
BP Fund []
00 - ]
Other []
AGENDA REQUEST: ATTACHMENT(S)  Yes No[ |

Consider motion to accept the resignation for Caden Lizana effective December 31,2024
and pay him any comp-time and vacation time pay per City Policy that he may have
accrued while employed

,as requested by Kirk Ladner PW-1

(approving, accepting, hearing from, discussing, appointing, declaring, awarding, making,
rescinding, ratifying, correcting, etc.)

APROVED D ADDITIONAL INFORMATION NEEDED




12-17-2024
To the Public Works Diractor,
Dear Mr. Kirk,

Please except this letter of resignation. | have enjoyed working for the city of
Pass Christian and the people at the Public Works Department my last day will
be December 31,2024, | have taken a position at another company for more

money.

Thanks,
Caden Lizana




Vendor #
00723

00491

01909

01909

00803

02111

02111

00010

Vendor Name
Payable Number

ABSOLUTE PRINT SOLUTIONS

200607

ADVANCE AUTO PARTS
1413434475977

AGJ SYSTEMS AND NETWORKS IN

119243
119309
M5P-119160

AGJ SYSTEMS AND NETWORKS IN

119243W
119309W
MSP-119160W
AIRGAS, Inc.
9156694068
9156770481

ALLIANCE PEST CONTROL LLC

122124

ALLIANCE PEST CONTROL LLC

122118
122120
122121
122122
122123
122125
122126
122127
122128
122129
122130

ALL-PHASE ELECTRIC SUPPLY

2871-1082184

City of Pass Christian, MS

Docket/Claim #
Payable Descri

DKT25114
Redistricting Letters/Postage

DKT25115
FY24/25
DKT25116
Email Hosting
BDR
MSP-Complete Care
DKT25117
Email Hosting
BDR
MSP-Complete Care
DKT25118
FY24/25
FY24/25
DKT25119
Pest Control{Water)
DKT25120
Pest Control(FD#2)
Pest Control(FD)
Pest Control(Beau)
Pest Control(PD)
Pest Control{Rec)
Pest Control{CH)
Pest Control(Senior)
Pest Control(Code)
Pest Control{Court)
Pest Control(PW)
Pest Control(Harbar)
DKT25121
20 AMP Breaker

Payable Type

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice
Invoice
Invoice

Invoice
Invoice
Invoice

Invoice
Invoice

Invoice

Invoice
Invoice
Invaice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice

Invoice

Payable Date

12/13/2024

12/09/2024

01/01/2025
01/01/2025
01/01/2025

01/01/2025
01/01/2025
01/01/2025

12/19/2024
12/23/2024

12/18/2024

12/18/2024
12/18/2024
12/18/2024
12/18/2024
12/18/2024
12/18/2024
12/18/2024
12/18/2024
12/18/2024
12/18/2024
12/18/2024

12/19/2024

Item Description

Postage
Redistricting Letters

FY24/25

Email Hosting
BDR
MSP-Complete Care

Email Hosting
BDR
MSP-Complete Care

FY24/25
FY24/25

Pest Control(Water)

Pest Control(FD#2)
Pest Control(FD)
Pest Control(Beau)
Pest Control(PD)
Pest Control(Rec)
Pest Control(CH)
Pest Control(Senior)
Pest Control{Code)
Pest Control{Court)
Pest Control(PW)
Pest Control(Harbor)

20 AMP Breaker

Docket of Claims Register

Account Number

001-105-600
001-105-600

001-301-560

001-107-600
001-107-600
001-107-600

400-700-600
400-107-600
400-107-600

001-301-560
001-301-560

400-700-600

001-300-603
001-300-603
001-300-603
001-300-603
001-300-603
001-300-603
001-300-603
001-300-603
001-300-603
001-300-603
001-300-603

001-300-560

APPKT07256 - BOA 1/7/25
By Docket/Claim Number

Payment Amount

Distribution Amount

1,785.78
877.88
907.90

1,860.00

1,860.00

6,900.00
700.00
320.00

5,880.00

1,725.00

175.00
80.00
1,470.00
616.88
470.42
146.46
30.00
30.00
340.00
30.00
35.00
30.00
35.00
30.00
30.00
30.00
30.00
30.00
30.00
30.00
62.61
62.61

1/2/2025 4:30:38 PM

Page 1 of 10



Docket of Claims Register
Vendor Name
Vendor # Payable Number
02214 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES
112-1261123-7915462

112-65629340218653

112-6562934-0218653
112-6767432-7578641
112-7593291-4521829
112-9650282-3469824

00017 AT&T
INV0013204

Docket/Claim #
Payable Description
DKT25122

12 Oz Foam Cups

SCOUT HARNESS LARGE, BLACK
Solar deck lights Stair lights 4 pack
Dogipot Bags

BIG EASY/SLIM JIM

Amazon Misc order

DKT25123
Phone

Payable Type

Invoice

Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice

Invoice

Payable Date

12/06/2024

12/04/2024
12/04/2024
12/17/2024
12/10/2024
12/20/2024

12/05/2024

Item Description

12 Oz Foam Cups

Scotch packing tape

Simple green cleaner

Spray Bottles

SCOUT HARNESS LARGE, BLACK

Solar deck lights Stair lights 4 pack
Dogipot Bags

BIG EASY/SLIM JIM

0G Red Wire 50

2 Pack 5 Gallon Pump Dispenser
Bulletpoint RubiGrid Metal Dash Mour
EasyPAG Desk Tape Dispenser for Tape
NEXPOW G17 S40 Car Jump Starter PD
Wireless HDMI Transmitter & 2 Receiv:

Phone

Account Number

001-301-505
001-301-505
001-301-505
001-301-505
001-200-505
001-300-560
001-502-510
001-200-505
001-220-560
001-220-510
001-220-560
001-220-500
001-220-560
001-220-505

001-107-605

APPKTO07256 - BOA 1/7/25

Payment Amount
Distribution Amount

1,199.20
50.00
13.89
21.24
28.99
26.99

104.97
181.98
199.96
69.95
19.98
153.49
9.79
137.98
179.99

1,513.86
1,513.86

1/2/2025 4:30:38 PM

Page 2 of 10



Docket of Claims Register

Vendor #
01647

02099

02426

00038

Vendor Name

Payable Number
AUTOZONE PARTS, INC

02099251475
02099254737
02099258935
02099261775
02099267103
02099268603
02099263604
02099268733
02099265898
02099268899
02089268915
02099268919
02099268920
02099269186
02099271095
02099271145
02089271146
02099271146C
02099271453
2099011350
2099709434
2099725314
2099725671
2099799364
2059837307
2099916739
AQ-2089725176

Docket/Claim ¥

Payable Description

DKT25124

FY24/25 BEAU
FY24/25 PW
FY24/25 PW
FY24/25 PW
FY24/25 BEAU
FY24/25 pW
FY24/25 PW
FY24/25 pW/
FY24/25 PW
FY24/25 PW
Credit
FY24/25 PwW
FY24/25 PW
FY24/25 BEAU
FY24/25 PW
FY24/25 PW
FY24/25 PW
Credit
FY24/25 PW
Credit{FD)
Credit{FD)
Credit{FD}
Credit{Beau)
Credti{FD}
Credit{Harbor}
Credit{Beau}
Qverpay

BAREFIFLD WORKPLACE SOLUTIC PKT25125

1195142-1

BOXCAST INC
92CA6172-0070

CABLE ONE
INVG013205

INV0013221

Office Supplies

DKT25126

Streaming{BOA)

DKT25127

Internet

399 E Secend 5t

Payable Type

Invoice
Invaice
Invaice
Invoice
Invoice
Irivoice
Invoice
Invoice
Inveice
Invoice
Credit Memo
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invaice
Invoice
Credit Memo
Invoice
Invoice
Credit Mema
Credit Memo
Credit Memo
Credit Memo
Credit Memo
Credit Mamao
Credit Memo

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Payable Date

10/30/2024
11/95/2024
11/14/2024
11/20/2024
12/02/2024
12/05/2024
12/05/2024
12/05/2024
12/06/2024
12/06/2024
01/07/2025
12/06/2024
12/06/2024
12/06/2024
12/11/2024
12/11/2024
12/11/2024
01/07/2025
12/12/2024
01/07/2025
01/067/2025
01/07/2025
01/07/2025
01/07/2025
Gi/07/2025
01/07/2025
01/07/2025

12/13/2024

01/01/2025

12/14/2024

12/23/2024

Item Description

FY24/25
FY24/25
Fyz4/25
FY24/25
FY24/25
FY24/25
FY24/25
Fy24/25
Fy24/25
Fy24/25
Credit
FY24/25
FY24/25
FY24/25
F¥24/25
FY24/25
FY24/25
Credit
FY24/25
Credit{FD)
Credit(FD)
Credit(FD}
Credit{Beau)
Credti{FD)
Credit{Harbor)
Cradit{Beau)
Overpay

Banker Baxes{UNV75130)
Blue Flags{MMIMGS0BE2)
Green Flags(MMME80GN2}
Packing Tape(BSN32356)
Red Flags(MMMG2QRD2)
Yellow Flags{MMMGBB0SH2)

Streaming{BOA}

315 Clark Ave
401 Espy Ave
707 W North 5t
399 E Second St

Account Number

001-502-560
001-301-560
001-301-560
001-301-560
001-502-550
001-301-550
001-301-560
001-301-560
001-301-560
001-301-560
£01-301-560
001-301-560
001-301-560
001-502-560
001-301-560
001-301-560
001-301-550
001-301-560
001-301-56C
001-200-560
001-2680-560
001-200-560
001-502-580
001-200-560
480-751-560°
001-502-560
001-200-560

400-700-505
400-700-500
400-700-500
4200-700-505
400-700-500
400-700-560

001-107-600

001-107-628
001-107-628
001-107-628
001-107-628

APPKTO7256 - BOA 1/7/25
Payment Amount
Distributioh Amount

18,81
.59
66.99
114.59
36.57
492
13.59
41.97
34.48
43.99
55.99
-55.99
15,39
52.59
95.04
11.99
101.99
281.62
-281.62
23.98
32.00
-130.19
-130.19
-41.99
+155.85
-145.35
-71.99
-7.42

80.40
63.68
3.20
3.40
2.63
3.40
3.89

142.00
149.00

453.66
110.83
110.e1
120.81
110.51

1272025 4:30:38 PM

Page 3 of 10



Docket of Claims Register
Vendor Name

Vendor # Payable Number

00038 CABLE ONE
INV0013206

01035 CARD SERVICES
22-00201

01035 CARD SERVICES

112-5783834-5974651

INV0013202

Docket/Claim #
Payable Description
DKT25128
Internet
DKT25129
Office Supplies

DKT25130
Control Modules fuel injection

Supplies(Walmart)

Payable Type

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Payable Date

12/11/2024

12/20/2024

12/17/2024

12/23/2024

Item Description

Internet

Banker Boxes
Batteries
Highlighers
Legal Pads
Paper Clips
Receipt Rolls
Staples

Engine Control(5012011R91)

Fuel Injection Control Module(430721;

Supplies(Walmart)

Account Number

400-700-625

400-700-500
400-700-500
400-700-500
400-700-500
400-700-500
400-700-500
400-700-500

001-301-560
001-301-560
001-105-505

APPKTO7256 - BOA 1/7/25
Payment Amount

Distribution Amount
174.94

174.94
219.02

86.96

16.98

8.96

6.98

18.96

71.94

8.24

2,033.87

849.72
1,004.91
179.24

Page 4 of 10



Docket of Claims Register

Vendor #
01035

Vendor Name

Payable Number

CARD SERVICES
10159087454C

22-00212
22-00215

22-00227
22-00232
22-00259
22-00317
22-00325

22-00515
22-00573

22-00715

22-00750

22-00810
22-00826

22-00981

22-01158
727360421

INVIO13191
INV(0013192

Docket/Claim #

Payable Description

DKT25131

General Supplies
Toner

Office m_._un__..mm

Cord Protector

Amazon

Janitorial Supplies{Short Pay)
Dry Erase{Short Pay)
General Supplies

Scafe{Short Pay)
General Supplies

General Supplies

Mower

Docking Station
Generator

Pressure Washer

Shipping
Lanyards/Narne Tags

Dominos
Mitchell

Payable Type

Invoice
Invoice

Invoice

Inveice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice

Invoice
Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice
Invoice

invoice

Invoice
Invoice

Invoice
Invoice

Payable Date
12/23/2024
12/20/2024

12/20/2024

12/20/2024
12/20/2024
12/20/2024
12/20/2024
12/20/2024

12/20/2024
12/20/2024

12/20/2024

12/20/2024

12/20/2024
12/20/2024

12/20/2024

12/20/2024
12/23/2024

12/20/2024
12/20/2024

Item Description

Creamer

Mauds Decaf Pods
Toner

Appt Boak

Dry Erase Marker
Moniter

Cord Protector
Amazon

Office Supplies{Short Pay)
Dry Erase(Short Pay)
Cords
De-Humidifiers
Hoses

Scale{Short Pay)
Digiatal Circuit Breaker
Generator

Nails

Tool Kit

Air Spray

Batteries

Battery Core Fee
Desk Top Speakers
ES-TX14 Battery
Refrigerant

Spray Kit

Wire Trak

Gas Trimmer
Mower

Spool Line
Docking Station
Generator

Sump Pump

Hose

Krud Kutter
Pressure Washer
Washer Foam
Shipping

Lanyards

Magic Spring Assortments
Name Tag Stickers
Daomines

Mitchell

Account Number

001-105-505
00%-105-505
001-200-500
001-110-500
001-110-500
001-110-500
001-200-500
001-200-505
001-301-510
001-200-500
001-220-505
001-220-505
001-220-505
001-200-505
480-751-505
480-751-505
480-751-560
480-751-505
480-751-505
480-751-505
480-751-505
480-751-505
480-751-505
480-751-505
480-751-505
480-751-505
480-751-505
480-751-505
480-751-505
001-220-505
480-751-919
480-751-919
480-751-505
480-751-510
480-751-505
480-751-505
001-301-505
001-200-505
001-200-505
001-200-505
001-105-505
001-220-505

APPKTQ7256 - BOA 1/7/25
’ Payment Amount
Distribution Amount

5,907.28

12.88
21.98
164.82
19.14
10.51
249.96
27.14
37.96
53.94
14.64
35.34
507.0C
41.84
20.85
45.58
529.00
81.98
76.98
19.96
15.37
12.00
20.94
93.76
8.88
35.94
32,94
239.00
299.00
9.58
24298
599.00
341.75
74.98
17.98
585.00
34.98
26.97
77.99
19.98
13.98
52.69
218.00

1f2/2025 4:30:38 PM

Page 5 of 10



Docket of Claims Register

Vendor #

01998

01958

00046

00873

02325

00824

01534

{1534

01606

01966

00081

01260

01808

Vendor Name
Payable Number

INV0012193
INV0013194
INV0013195
INV(3013199
INVQU13200
INVO013201
CELLULAR SOUTH, INC
INV0013208
CELLULAR SCUTH, INC
INV013207

CENTERPOQINT ENTERY/ENTEX
INV0013218

CHARLES STALLINGS
INV0Q13209

COASTAL CLEAR WATER
2597

COASTALTIRE & AUTO

82517
82678

COBURN SLIPPLY COMPANY, INC

666210957
666211026
666211093
666211129

COBURN SUPPLY COMPANY, INC

666210661

CONSOLIDATED PIPE & SUPPLY C

MS0376595

CORE AND MAIN LP
W117284

DPS CRIME LAB
204154247

FBI-LEEDA INC
300097999

FRANILIN JASON OVERSTREET
3616

Docket/Claim #
Payable Description
Walmart
NFPA
Mitchell
Supplies{Walmart)
Smartdraw Software
Go Daddy

DKT25132
Cellular{Water}

DKT25133
Cellular{City/Harbor})

DKT25134

808 E Second St
DKT25135

Consulting Services
DKT25136

Water(PD}
DKT25137

FY23/24 pw

TIRE REPAIR UNIT 191
DKT25138

WPSCO-SEWER REPAIR-1219 E BEACH
WPSCO-WATER LINE REPAIR-406 CLAR
WPSCO-SEWER REPAIR-1219 E BEACH
WPSCO-SEWER REPAIR-117 SHADOWL

DKT25139
FY24/25
DKT25140

FIRE HYDRANTS - BOA BUDGET APPRO

DKT25141

'ELECTRONIV METERS - ANTENNAS

DKT25142
Analytical Fees
DKT25143

2025 MEMBERSHIP DUES DAREN FREE

DKT25144

Payable Type
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invaice
Inveice

Invoica

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice
Invoice

Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice

Invgice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

1257 North St GravitySewer PH 1l & Il Invoice

Payable Date
12/20/2024
12/20/2024
12/20/2024
12/23/2024
12/23/2024
12/23/2024

12/22/2024

12/22/2024

12/19/2024

12/20/2024

12/12/2024

12/11/2024
12/17/2024

12/03/2024
12/09/2024
12/12/2024
12/16/2024

11/19/2024

12/13/2024

12/09/2024

12/05/2024

11/04/2024

12/19/2024

item Description

Walmart

NFPA

Mitchell
Supplies{Walmart)
Smartdraw Software
Supplies(Walmart)

Cellular{water)

City
Harbor

808 E Second St

Ceonsulting Services

Water({PD)

FY23/24
TIRE REPAIR UNIT 191

WPSCO-SEWER REPAIR-1219 £ BEACH
WPSCQO-WATER LINE REPAIR-406 CLAR
WPSCO-SEWER REPAIR-1219 E REACH
WPSCO-SEWER REPAIR-117 SHADOWL

FY24/25

FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY
FIRE HYDRANTS

520M $/POINT ELECTRONIC READER

IPERL 3/4" WATER METER

Analytical Fees

2025 MEMBERSHIP DUES DAREN FREE

1257 North 5t GravitySewer PH 1l & Il

Account Number
01-105-505
001-220-800
001-220-505
001-105-505%
001-220-600
C01-167-600

400-700-605

001-107-605
480-751-605

001-220-627

001-110-600

001-200-600

001-301-571
001-200-571

400-702-560
400-704-550
400-702-56C
400-702-560

001-301-560

400-704-911
400-704-911

400-703-911
400-703-911

001-200-600

001-200-810

152-701-602

APPKTO7256 - BOA 1/7/25
Payment Amount
Distribution Amount
18.49
98.99
218.00
86.12
357.00
81.49
138.654
139.64
2,807.75

2,676.11
131.64

159.30

159.30
300.00

300.00
19.58

19.58
34.82

18,00

16.82
168.82

6.62

.77

11831

36.12
249.00

245.00
74,776.00

22,370.00

52,400.00
18,172.74

10,181.70

7,991.04
120.00

120,00
50.00

50.00
2,210.00

2,210.00

14272025 4:30:38 PM

Page 6 of 10



Docket of Claims Register

Vendor Name

NP67606398W
NP67630275W

NP67606398

NP&7630275

NP&7657758

9353480255

02471 GRANNY'S ALLIANCE HOLDINGS,| DKT25149
24165-01
00126 HARRISON COUNTY UTILITY AUTI DKT25150
INV0013211

INV0013212

Vendor # Payable Number

00056 FUELMAN

00096 FUELMAN

02147 FUTURE DESIGN GROUP
2185

00490 GRAINGER

00140 HUMANE SOCIETY OF SO MS

INV0013223

Docket/Claim #
Payable Description

Website Security Maint.

Cleaning Supplies

Restroom Trailer{Christmas in the Pass

Wastewater,Disposal,Water

Disposal,Landfill. Dumpster

Monthly Animal Control{Jan 2025)

Payable Type

Invoice
Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Payable Date

12/15/2024
12/22/2024

12/15/2024

12/22/2024

12/29/2024

01/01/2025

12/20/2024

12/12/2024

01/01/2025

12/16/2024

01/01/2025

Item Description

Fuel{Utl)
Fuel{Utl)

Beau
FD
Harbor
PD
PW
Rec
Beau
Exe

FD
Harbor
PD
Plan
PW
Rec
Beau
FD
Harbor
PD

Website Security Maint.

DIVERSEY Bathroom Cleaner: Crew, 42
DIVERSEY Virex 11Y654
Stride, 3, Fits RTD Dispenser Series, 5 L

Restroom Trailer(Christmas in the Pass

Solid Waste,Disposal
Wastewater,Debt Service,Capital Proje
Water

Disposal,Landfill.Dumpster

Monthly Animal Control{Jan 2025)

Account Number

400-700-525
400-700-525

001-502-525
001-220-525
480-751-525
001-200-525
001-301-525
001-506-525
001-502-525
001-102-525
001-220-525
480-751-525
001-200-525
001-110-525
001-301-525
001-506-525
001-502-525
001-220-525
480-751-525
001-200-525

001-107-600

001-220-510
001-220-510
001-220-510

001-108-600

400-705-600
400-706-600
400-706-600
400-705-600

001-105-646

APPKT07256 - BOA 1/7/25

Payment Amount
Distribution Amount

101.43

37.05
64.38
6,707.12

175.22
364.79
141.62
1,292.36
967.43
118.69
208.37
20.06
253.29
140.80
1,213.69
65.37
532.82
71.09
101.73
139.83
114,33
785.63

250.00
250.00
368.76
83.23
156.55
128.98
1,235.00
1,235.00
109,827.39
61,900.00
36,531.00
1,604.00
9,792.39
794.26
794.26

025 4:30:38 PM

Page 7 of 10



Docket of Claims Register
Vendor Name
Payable Number
[MPERIAL BAG & PAPER CO LLC
36279205
36279206

Vendor #
02098

36306419
36306420

JERRELL HARRIS
INVO013224

IVIEDICAL ANALYSIS, LLC
17423

MS POWER CO
INV0G13234

02105

0a200

00215

MS POWER CO
INV0013213

00215

INV0013220
MS UTILITY SUPPLY
0841763

0c218

0842194
MS UTILTY SUPPLY
0843729
NASSAW LAMP

18634
18691

00218

00474

Docket/Claim #

Payable Description Payable Type

DKT25152

Paper Towels Invoice

Toilet Tissue/Multi-Folds invoice

Paper Towels Invoice

Paper Towels{Randolph} Invoice
DKT25153

Randolph Cleaning Fee Invoice
DKT25154

After Hours Collection Invoice
DKT25155

Purnp Station Invoice
DKT25156

Electric Invoice

Street Lighting Invoice
DKT25157

WPSCO-STOCK-WATER & SEWER Invoice

WPSCO-5TOCK Invoice

DKT25158
PLUMBING SUPPLIES FOR HAREOR PIE Invaice
DXT2515¢

70 W bulbs ‘ Invoice
F32TB/TLS941/ALTC FLUORESENT BULL Invoice

Payable Date

12/16/2024
12/16/2024

12/18/2024
12/18/2024

12/02/2024
12/18/2024

12/10/2024

12/10/2024

12/16/2024

12/16/2024

12/16/2024
12/13/2024

12/16/2024
12/18/2024

Item Description Account Number

Paper Towels{HB1990A) 001-301-505
Multi-Folds(VBMF91K) 0Q1-502-510
Tailet Tissue(TM16165) 001-502-510
Paper Towels{HB1950A) 001-300-510
Paper Towels{HB1990A} 001-300-510
Randalph Cleaning Fee 001-294-603
After Hours Collection 001-220-500
LiftStation A00-701-625
Pump Station 400-701-625
Beau 001-502-625%
CH 001-294-625
FD 001-220-625
Harbor 480-751-625
PD 001-200-625
PW 001-301-625
Rec 001-506-625
Senijor 001-294-625
St Lights 001-301-631
Street Lighting 001-301-631

Series 3121 4 x 12 in, Stainless Steel Re 400-702-550
Serigs 3121 4 x 12 in. Stainless Steel Re 400-704-560
Industrial Choice™ Precision Line® M1t 400-704-560

PLUMBING SUPPLIES FOR HARBOR PIE 480-751-560

70W bulbs 001-300-505
F32TB/T1941/ALTO FLUORESENT BULI 001-300-560

APPKTD7256 - BOA 1/7/25
Payment Amount

Distribution Amount
222.09

7317

2114

79.00

24.39

24.39

300.00
300.00
70.00
70.00
13,030.25
5,884.34
7,145.91
31,738.95

993.82
1,848.32
1.034.56
7,295.98

51.38

541.32

548.51

671.71
1,666.54

17,087.45

533.52
235.26
235.26

63.00

198.85

198.85
1,092.00

206.00
186.0C

1/2/2025 4:30:38 PM

Page 8 of 10



Docket of Claims Register

Vendor #
00239

00862

00270

Vendor Name

Payable Number

Dacket/Claim #
Payable Description

O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES, | DKT25160

1281132760
1281132923
1281157725
1281159127
1281184496
1281185642
1281190544
1281210311
1281215514
1281216212
1281219202
1281222030
1281225185
1281227770
1281-244957

1281-245679

1281-246585
1281-247227
1281-248793

1281-249041
1281-249657

1281-249871
1281-245924
1281-245937
1281-248998
1281-250473
1281487723

PORTABLE SERVICES, INC.

160615
160650
160667
160935

Credit
Cradit
Cradit
Credit
Credit
Credit
Credit
Credit
Credit
Credit
Credit
Credit
Credit
Credit
INV 1281-244957 CAPSULE

INV 1281-245679 WIPER BLADE

Credit
MISC SUPPLIES ESTIMATE
INV 1281-248793 OILE FILTER

12/3/2024 Brake Pads and Ratator
INV 1281-248657

FY24/25 PW
Qil Filter
FY24/25 PW
FY24/25 pW
FY24/25 PW
Credit

DKT25161
Church Ave Park
Church Ave
115 S Market Ave
104 Henderson Ave

PUCKETT MACHINERY/PUCKETT | DKT25162

1085294-0001

Light Towers{Christmas in the Pass)

Payable Type

Credit Mermo
Credit Memo
Credit Memo
Credit Memo
Credit Memo
Credit Memo
Credit Memo
Credit Memo
Credit Memo
Credit Memo
Credit Memo

‘Credit Memo

Credit Memo
Credit Memo
Irvoice

Invoice

Credit Memo
Invoice
Invoice

Imvoice
Invoice

Inveice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoize
Credit Memo

invoice
Invoice
Invoice
Invoice

Invoice

Payable Date

01/07/2025
01/07/2025
01/07/2025
01/07/2025
01/07/2025
01/07/2025
01/07/2025
01/07/2025
01/67/2025
01/07/2025
01/07/2025
01/07/2025
01/07/2025
01/07/2025
11/01/2024

11/06/2024

01/07/2025
11/15/2024
12/02/2024

12/04/2024
12/09/2024

12/11/2024
12/11/2024
12/12/2024
12/12/2024
12/16/2024
01/07/2025

12/16/2024
12/17/2024
13/17/2024
12/26/2024

12/10/2024

Item Description

Credit

Credit

Credit

Credit

Credit

Credit

Credit

Credit

Credit

Credit

Credit

Crecdit

Credit

Cradit

INV 1281-244957 CAPSULE UNIT 166
INV 1281-244857 CAPSULE UNIT 166
INV 1281-245679 WIPER BLADE

INV 1281-245679 WIPER m_.bom
Credit

MISC SUPPLIES

INV 1281-248793 OIL FILTER

INV 1281-248793 OIL FILTER
12/3/2024 Brake Pads and Rotator
INV 1281-248657 UNIT #182 ANTIFREE
INV 1281-248657 UNIT #182 THERMO!
INV 1281-248657 UNIT #182 WATER P!
FY24/25

Ol Filier

FY24/25

FY24/25

Fy24/25

Credit

Church Ave Park
Church Ave

115 S Market Ave
104 Henderscn Ave

Light Towers{Christmas in the Pass)

Account Number

001-301-560
001-301-560
001-301-560
001-301-560
001-301-560
001-301-560
001-301-5560
001-301-560
001-301-560
001-301-560
001-301-56Q
001-301-580
001-301-560
001-301-560
001-200-550
001-208-560
001-200-560
001-200-560
001-301-560
480-751-560
001-200-560
001-200-560
001-506-571
061-200-560
001-200-56C
001-200-560
001-301-560
001-220-560
001-301-560
001-301-560
001-301-560
001-301-550

001-502-639
001-502-639
480-751-639
001-502-639

001-108-600

APPKTO7256 - BOA 1/7/25
Payment Amount
Distribution Amount
10.77
-337.54
-5.18
-20.00
-40,00
-16.00
35.47
-3.83
-22.00
-22.00
-31.00
-84.00
-22.00
-44.00
-22.00
7.89
7.99
23.78
22.78
-29.99
56.97
27.97
17.64
169.98
35.58
10.89
91.76
282,15
4.41
4.68
22.35
9.46
-57.00
560.00
70.00
140.00
140.00
210.00
1,413.05
1,413.05

1/2/2025 4:35:38 PM

Page 9 of 10



Docket of Claims Register

Vendor #
02363

01177

00308

00308

00312

00542

00521

01784

00356

02294

02126

Vendor Name
Payable Number
PVS DX INC

217002311-24
217002312-24

QUADIENT FINANCE USA, INC.
INV0013215

SOUTH MS BUSINESS MACHINE
1224w

SOUTH MS BUSINESS MACHINE
0125
1224
473198

SOUTHERN PRINTING
24 4597
24 4744

SOUTHLAND HEATING & AIR CON

INV0013216
INV0013217

STATE FIRE ACADEMY
32881

THE SOUTHERN CONNECTION PC

502

WASTEWATER PLANT SERVICE
17201

WILLIAM H FRAZIER JR
000420

WILLIAMS DISTRIBUTING
22835

Docket/Claim #

Payable Description

DKT25163

WPSCO-CHLORINE- MARKET ST WELL
WPSCO-CHLORINE- BAYVIEW WELL

DKT25164

Postage

DKT25165

Printer Rental

DKT25166

Printer Rental
Printer Rental
Printer Rental

DKT25167

11/20/24 Uniform Shirts
Basketball Supplies

DKT25168

A/C unit repair for the Library

A/C repair on the split unit in the LAD 1
DKT25169

Operations(Gavin Carter)

DKT25170
BLAUER PERFORMANCE POLO LARGE F

DKT25171
Monthly Operation( Water Wells, Towe

DKT25172

Trash Truck Brain Board repair

DKT25173

TRUCK WASHING SUPPLIES

Payable Type

Invoice
Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice
Invoice
Invoice

Invoice
Invoice

Invoice
Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Payable Date

12/16/2024
12/16/2024

12/23/2024

12/01/2024

01/01/2025
12/01/2024
12/26/2024

11/21/2024
12/05/2024

12/17/2024
12/17/2024

10/25/2024

12/05/2024

12/31/2024

12/30/2024

12/13/2024

Item Description

CHLORINE
CHLORINE

Postage

Printer Rental

City
City
Printer Rental

11/20/24 Uniform Shirts
Basketball Supplies

A/C unit repair for the Library
A/C repair on the split unit in the LAD

Operations{Gavin Carter)

BLAUER PERFORMANCE POLO EXTRA L
BLAUER PERFORMANCE POLO LARGE (
BLAUER PERFORMANCE POLO LARGE F

Waste
Water

Trash Truck Brain Board repair

3D SPEED WAX
CHAMOIS

CITRUS CLEANER

EZ SUDS

WAX APPLICATOR

XP COOL BLUE DRESSING

~ Total Claims: 60

APPKT07256 - BOA 1/7/25

Payment Amount

Account Number Distribution Amount
3,608.64

400-704-560 1,698.18

400-704-560 1,910.46
60.95

001-105-606 60.95
149.40

400-700-600 145.40
2,111.88

001-107-600 765.00

001-107-600 765.00

001-107-639 581.88
294.50

001-506-535 84.50

001-506-552 210.00
1,148.03

001-300-560 648.03

001-300-600 500.00
360.00

116-220-610 360.00
145.97

001-200-535 49.99

001-200-535 49.99

001-200-535 49,99
36,181.58

400-702-603 14,472.63

400-704-603 21,708.95
3,260.00

001-301-635 3,260.00
333.97

001-220-505 119.97

001-220-505 34.00

001-220-505 16.00

001-220-505 68.00

001-220-505 6.00

001-220-505 90.00
h Total Payment Amount: 340,385.76

54:30:38 PM

Page 10 of 10



	January 7 2025 Agenda
	ADMINISTRATIVE
	CONSENT AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMENT

	January 7 2025 Agenda Packet
	cityofpasschristianscanner@gmail.com_20250103_131359
	cityofpasschristianscanner@gmail.com_20250103_131542


